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JUAN ETUIJERA. 

called as a witness on behalf of the Prosecution, being first duly sworn 

through Interpreter Rodas, was examined and testified through Interpreter 

Rodas as follows, with Interpreter G-ojunco acting as "check
11

 Interpreter： 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

Q,. (By Captain Cslyer) What is your name? 

A, Juan Etuijera• 

Q,. Where do you live? 

A , Obando, Katangalan.. 

Q,. How old are you? 

A 60 years. 

Q On the 7th of February,1945, did you see some Japanese at Panghulo? 

A Yes, in the place where we were. 

Q How many did you see? 

A. Eight• 

Q,. Do you knov; uhat branch of service they were from? 

According to uhat エ know, they are army men. 

Q. Hov; do you know that? 

A* Because of the uniform, that they wore, khaki shirt and khaki pants• 

Did you see any marks on the uniform? 

A .エ l o a o T： there is an officer, because he brings with him a sword. 

Q. Did you see any stars on the uniform? 

T7here \ie kept our things. 

Q. Did they take the men, v;omen and children from the town? 

A . No. v/e -.:ere there in that hut, 40 of us altogether. 

Q,. Was that .uen,フomen and children? 

1“ Yes. 

Q。 No:, v?hat did the Japanese do to the people in that hut? 

A. ^hey tied all of us, all men and the old women were tied together. 

The children and the young girls were not tied, and they were separated from 

our ^roup• 

Nov;,
 %

.7hat happened to the men? 

A. After men and the old v;omen.フere tied, one by one 口ere taken downstairs 

and were killed, and baj
r

oneted.ェ saw one who ロas bayoneted and was thrown 

into the ditch. 
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0,4 Did you see more than one killed? 

丄“ エ did not see, because as soon aじ they were taken down the doors were 

closed, but afterwards エ found all my companions in that ditch, because エ was 

the last one that て;as killed -一 that was supposed to be killed. 

q. No'；:
f
 vJhat did they do to you? 

A* エ：:as taken downstairs, my hands were tied at my back, and エ was asked — 

エて/as pushed to the fish pond. 

Q,. What happened thore? 

A. He held the gun, and .ith full strength he hit me right here on my 

neck. 

What part of the gun did ho hit you with? 

上“ The handle, the point * 

Q,t マill you shov: the Conmiission the mark of that blow? 

A. Yus, sir* 

(The witness exhibited the back of his neck to the commission.) 

〔レ NOT;
t
 vjhat happened to you after that? 

丄“ They threv; me into the fish pond, face do\;n• 

Q. Were you struck again? 

A . エ cannot tell whether they hurt me again. All that エ felt was they 

stepped on me to sec whether エフas dead or alive. 

Q,. Weren't you struck on the shoulder also? 

A. Yes,エ ロas struck once more on my shoulder with the butt of the gun. 

And I will shor; the Conmiission, 

Q . ブ i l l you show it? 

(The ivitness exhibited his shoulder to the Goinmission.) 

0’
o
 While you T7ere lying in the fish pond did you see anyone else? 

i i . Y e s . 

Cぃ Who? 

i“ My niece, who is single, 7/ho happened to have fallen beside me on my 

right side. 

What x;as her condition uhen you sa: her there? 

レ She ©ailed to me
0
 She did not have any — she was not tied, and then 

ェ"told her to uatie me and that ve are going to leave. 
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Q, Had she been wounded? 

ム . Y G S , she has a wound in her abdomen. 

Describe it. 

A. YGS, she uas bayoneted in the abdomen and hor intestines caxae out. 

Q,- Did you and your nioce get out of the fish pond and go to a hut? 

丄“ Not in our hut, but into another place,双e got away far from that place 

iind did you have a conversation Trith your nieco at that time? 

ム.Yes• She uas able to talk to me, and she \7as asking for water because 

sh© Tias already dying at that time. 

Q. Did she say what had happened? 

厶 • It is a sad story to t e l l , b u t she said that she was raped and then 

was bayoneted in the abdomen, and then thrown into the fish pond. 

Q,. Did she sa3厂 anything about other people 7;ho ；7ore v;ith her? 

丄“ She told mo that all 一—she and all her companions there T?ere raped. 

HOV.
t

 many wore there? 

』 “ エ kno〜7 of nine, and t^o of them were married, 

。ぃ Do you know how meny people were killed in the group that you were in? 

A . There v/ero 29 killed. 

Q,, Did that include • ;omen and children? 

J“ Yes. One of them — 

C - U、
T

 G A Y E R : You may exanine. 

Ci^PT^IN HEEL: No questions 

Ci^PTAIN OuLYERs Thank you, sir. That is all* 

(Witness excused)• 
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

I, To R，0. King, Maj に，，Inf. (TD) , Executive Officer, Legal Section, 

General Headquarters, Supreme Commander for the allied Powers
f
 do hereby-

certify that Document 2876 is a true and correct copy of the transcript 

of the testimony offered by JUAN ETUIJEBA in the trial of the case against 

Tomoyuki Y細^SHITA, General,Imperial Japanese uincy, before a Military 

Commission in Manila5 and that the rhole record of the case, including the 

transcript of all testimonies taken, as well as the affidavits admittod in 

eTidence, are no:7 on file 7/ith this Section. 

/s/ T, B. C. King 
T。Rん King, 
Major, Inf. (TD) 

Witness：_/s/ John R, Fritchard 

Sr/orn to before me this 2(3th day 

0
f November,19^6, Tokyo

f
 Japan, 

/s/ John R. Pritchard 

Capt. Inf. 
Summary Court 
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GEiJmAL HEADqU-fflTSRS 
SUP23ME 00MI1ASD3R 腿 THE ALLIED POIJERS 

LEGAL SECTION, I'lMILA. 

3SG 

APO 500 
18 April 1946 

MSMOILaTOIM TOi Prosecution Section (Report Ho. 287) 

THRU ： Executive Officer, Legal Section, Manila 

SUBJECT : Arson, rape and ro"b"bery at 7oalilihan and Sikatuna, 

Bohoi, P. I., after 2 September 1945. 

II. SIMMABY OS
1

 S7IDMCE: 

Aftar their defeat ty American forces about 19 April 1945, the 
Japanese on Bohol fled to the hills. Here, they separated into snail 
groups and. lived in the forest and caves (R 2), One of these groups 
consisted, of six mon under tho leadership of Sergeant Ii.'AOKU (R 1). 
•from time to time, this 'baiid male m i d s UTJOD. the civilians in order to 
obtain food (H 2), "but they also stole personal property and raped 
young women on saveral occasions (R 8 , 1 1 , 2 2 , 26, 29, 33). 

One.、!，when the occupants nf a house where? they sought food 
failed to admit them, Sergeant r

r

A0KL
T

' s men surrounded the house and 
set エire to it, "but the residents were able to escape after tho Japanese 
had fled in fear of OTerrillae (E 1 , 3 6 ) . 

On another occasion, a group of six Japanese looted a heme 
pjai forced the son and daughter of the household to accompany them as 
guides (S 14,18). The son was later bsyonnttei and left for dead (R 18), 
wtu丄e thG "body of the daughter was found about a month later near the tent 
wliero the Japanese had camped. Six front teeth were missing and her legs 
had "been severed from the. "body (R 14), Her hands were still tied "behind, 
her "back (R 15). 
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LIEUTENANT PELZ: I have nothing further, sir. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

(By Colonel Lim) Was this captain the commander of the forces in the place? 
Yes, sir, 

COLONEL LIM: That is all. 
GENERAL DONOVAN: Anything further? 
LIEUTENANT PELZ: Nothing further, sir. 
GENERAL DONOVAN: Any questions by the Commission? 
(No response^) 

The witness is excused• 

(Witness excused^) 

By whom was he threatened to be shot? 
The one who raped me. 

Q A Japanese soldier? . 
A A captain. He had a sword, a very long sword, and that is the sword that 
he was threatening me with. 

COLONEL LD1: You may cross examine• 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

Q (By Lieutenant Pelz) Do you know the name of this captain, or did you know 
the name of the captain at that time? 
A Due to my fright I do not remember, 

Q Did you report the incident to the Japanese authorities? 
A Yes, sir, we reported the incident to the Japanese authorities, and the one 
who renorted it was threatened to be shot. 

who raped you? 
I cannot remember his name, but he is a Japanese, 

Q On 10 January 194.2, do you remember having seen some Japanese soldiers in 
the barrio of Sanipaic^, Municipality of Talavera, Nueva Ecija? 
A Yes, sir, on the 10th of Janu&ry, 194-2, Yes, it was on January 10th, 194^2, 
and the Japanese went there and searched and arrested people, and I was 
threatened with a bayonet^ and at that time エ was pregnant. I was pregnant and 
about to deliver. 

COLONEL LIM: Incidentally, sir, this is in connection with paragraph 
number 5» 

Q (By Colonel Lim) What happened next? 
A They boxed me on the face, both sides of my face, both arms, and also on my 
thigh, and when I laid prostrate on the ground I ?/as raped. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

(By Colonel Lim) Please give your name? 
Francisca Bernardo. 

What is your married name? 
De Luna, 

What is your nationality? 
Filipina, 

Q You reported to the one who raped you? 
A I said that after I was raped, two days after, w© went to town to report 
the matter, and we reported the matter to the same captain who raped me. 

FRANC ISCii BERNARDO DE LUNA 

called as a witness on behalf of the Prosecution, being first duly sworn, 
was exainAned and testified as follows through Interpreter Rodas: 

o
?
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A
 

Q
 
A
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Q
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

I, T . R . C . King, Major, Inf. (TD), Executive 

Officer, Legal Section, General Headquarters, Supreme 

Commander for the Allied Powers, do hereby certify that 

Document 2862 is a true and correct copy of the trans-

cript of the testimony offered by FRANC ISC A. BERNARDO DE LUNA 

in the trial of the case against Masaharu HOMMA, Lieutenant 

General, Imperial Japanese Army, before a Military 

Coirmission in Manila5 and that the whole record of the 

case, including the transcript of all testimonies taken, 

as well as the affidavits admitted in evidence, are now 

on file with this Section. 

/s/ T . R . C . King 
T . R . C . King, 
Major, Inf. (TD) 

Witness: /s/ John R . Pritchard 

Sworn to before rae this 15th day of 

November 1946， Tokyo, Japan. 

/s/ John R . Pritchard 
Capt. Inf. 
Summary Court 
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Q Will you indicate on Exhibii.19J where you saw the Japanese setting fires? 
A The fire was set on the corner of Carried.o Street and Escolta, thereafter 
at the corner of Escolta and Risal Street, From there they set fire to the 
building occupied, by the Romanaeh music firm

c
 The next building they set 

fire to was the one occupied by the Music Association； at the corner of 
Estero Cegado and Carriedo. The ne:rb vras tho Roceo Building at the corner of 
Rizal Avenue and Carriedo, 一 

CAPTAIN PACE: Will the record show that the witness has indicated 
the buildings on the north side of Carriodo Street, beginning with the unnamed 
street north and south at the extreme right of the photogi-aph, and ho pointed 
all the way along on Carriedo Street on the north side until he reached Rizal 
Avenue, to the point marked "L". 

Q (By Captain Pace) Will you point out on this exhibit where the Roces Build-
ing is? 
A It is where the letter "A’

1

 is shown. 

Q You have mentioned the Romanach Music Store; 
by the letter

 fT

M" on this sketch? 
A No, sir; it is in iVont, 

is that correctly indicated 

Q You mean it is on the north side of the street】 
side as it is shown hare? 
A Yes, sir,、it is in the north. 

bead of on the south 

Q Now, will you descritie how the Japanese 
that you have described? 
A They started by breaking down the doors 
Carriedo, and they poured gasoline and set 
same procedure, with the other "buildings. 

- 1 -

set the .fires in these five blocks 

of the buildings at the corner of 
fire. And they continued with the 

What Army did they belong to? 
The Japanese Army. 

DIRECT E2AKINATI0N 

(By Captain Pace) Give your name, please• 
Vicente Arias. 

You will have to speak louder than that. Where do you live? 
(Through the Interpreter) 211 Carriedo Street, 

Are you the owner of tho Arias Building? 
Yes, sir

# 

Will you look at Prosecution
1

s Exhibit 193 and point out where your building 
located? 

(The witness indicated on Prosecution*s Exhibit No, 193.) 

C A P T A I N P A G E： Let the record show that the witness is indicating the 
building — or the block south of Rizal Avenue, and just to the east of the 
foot of Rizal Avenue, on Carriedo Street, 

Q (By Captain Pace) On the morning of February う , 1 % 5 , did you see anything 
unusual? — ^ ^ノ 
A Yes, 

Q What was it? 
A On about eleven o

f

 clock in tho morning a group of Army men set fire to the 
north of Carriedo Street-

VIGSNTE ARIAS 

called as a witness on behalf of the Prosecution, being first duly sworn 
through Interpreter Gojunco, was examined and testified as follws through 
the Interpreter: 

Q
 
A
 

Q
 
A
 
Q
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(A photograph was marked Prosecution 
Exhibit Ncu 196 for Identification.) 

Q Will you look at 
show? 
A The photograph I 
Cegado and Carriedo 

Prosecution^ Exhibit No* 196 and tell what pages 1 and 2 

have before me shows the building on the corner of Esterc 
,where the Romanach business was* The second photograph 

is of the same building, 

0 What are those shacks that appear in the picture? 
A One of the buildings is the one occupied by the night club, 
buildings were occupied by other businesses• 

Q Were the shacks that appear on pages 1 and 2 on the exhibit 
fire, or have they been built since? 
A I七 is after the fire that they were built* 

and the other 

there after th 

Q And immediately after the fire were any buildings left in the area which 
you have described? 
A The northern part of the night club building. 

C:J?TAIN PACE: The witness is indicating a concrete structure in the 
background of the second page of the exhibit. 

Q (By Captain Pace) Look at pages 3, 5， and 6, and tell what they are. 
A They show part of the building of Roces and the other buildings that were 
right by the fire

% 

CAPTAIN PACE： I offer this, Exhibit 196 for Identification, in 

Evidence, 

GENERAL REYNOLDS: There being no objection, it is accepted in evidence. 

(Prosecution Exhibit No.196 for Identi-
fication was received in Evidence and 
so marked•) 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 
A 

Q 

(By Captain Pace) The buildings which you have described were all on the 
north side of the street, is that right? 
Yes， s i r . 

Your building is on the south side of the street; right? 
Yes, sir. 

Did anything happen to your building? 
Yes, sir. It has been partially set on fire. 

During tho hours which you observed the Japanese doing this, was any 
artillery being fired into the area which you described? 
A No, sir, 

CAPTAIN PACE: You may inquire. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

y (By Captain Reel) Did your building catch fire from the others? 
A A part of the building A part of the fire that burned my building was 
through the flames on the other buildings. 

Q Yes. Nobody set fire to the building you were in? Nobody deliberately set 
fire to the building that you were in? 
A Yes, sir. The lower part of the building was set on fire

# 

Q Was that deliberately set on fire by somebody, or was that fire started by 
flames coming from the other buildings? 
A It was deliberately set on fire. 
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And that was before these fires were set? 
Yes. sir. 

So you were in the building when it was on fire? 
Yes, sir. 

Did they have storage space in thera? 
I don't believe they had warehouse space, 

What floor of your building were you on when all this occurred? 
On the third floor. 

r TJ.ovr ^loors did the boj.lding he.ve 上'hat yr,u r.nr 

A. Four floors • 

Q And was the Japanese Navy using some of that space? 
A Those that set a military outpost at the corner of Rizal and Carriedo 
Streets were the ones who occupied the buildings 

Q Were these other buildings that you saw destroyed also occupied by military 
forces? 
A The Roces Building was occupied by t^e Navy

y
 and the other buildings were 

not/ 

Q Do you know what the other buildings were used for? 
A The other buildings were not occupied by the Japanese military, but were 
occupied by their owners and some leases. 

Q Anc- were the other buildings warehouses? 
A No, sir, they wore not warehouses• 

、 D i d n ' t you see some more American soldiers after ten o'clock in that area? 
A No, sir. It was until after three o'clock in the afternoon at when we saw in 
the middle of Rizal Avenue some more Americans• 

Q Yes. And by 3:30 in the afternoon that area was pretty well in the hands of 
the Americans, wasn

T

t it? 
A I don

1

t believe the area was well controlled by American forces at that time, 
and there was no fire. 

Q. So that whatever American soldiers got there got there without a battle, is 
that right? 

INTERPRETER GOJUNCO: Would you please repeat that? 

CAPTAIN REEL： So that whatever American soldiers got there got there withou. 
a batiJLe， is that correct? 
A Yes, sir; withouて any resistance. 

CAPTAIN RE^L： That's all
t 

C U N PACE: Thank you, Mr. Arias. (Witness excused.) 

^ Ana was there pretty heavy fighting going on in the vicinity of these 
burning buildings at that time? 
A There was no fire, 

Q Didn't you hear any machine guns? 
A No, sir, I didn't hear anything of a machine gun sound, but there was a 
machine gun at the lower part of my building, but I believe it was not used, 

Q Did you see the American forces that day? 
A Yes, sir, I saw only an American soldier at the corner of Plaza Goiti and 
Rizal after about ten o

1

clock in the morning, 

Q And did you stay there and watch all those fires being set? 
A We stayed until about three o'clock in the afternoon when we were only able 
to go out. 

Q Did you leave your building before it started burning? 
A No, sir. 

Q
 
A
 

Q
 
A
 

Q
 
A
 
Q

 
A
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

I， T . R. C . King, Major, Inf. (TD) , Executive 

Officer, Legal Section, General Headquarters, Supreme 

Commander for the Allied Powers, do hereby certify that 

Document 2868 is a true and correct copy of the transcript 

of the testimony offered by VICENTE kRIkS in the trial of 

the case against Tomoyuki YAMASHITA., General, Imperial 

Japanese Army, before a Military Commission in Manila; 

and that the whole record of the case, including the 

transcript of all testimonies taken, as well as the 

affidavits admitted in evidence, are now on file with 

this Section. 

/s/ T. R . G. King 
T. R . C. KING, 
Major, Inf. (TD) 

Witness: /s/ John R . Pritchard 

Sworn to before me this 15th day 

of November 1946, Tokyo, Japan* 

/s/ John R . Pritchard 
Capt. Inf. 
Summary Court 
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GENERAL HEADQUARTERS 
UNITED STATES ARIIY FORCES, PACIFIC 

OFFICE OF T>IE THEATI：；! JUDGE ADVOCATE 
CRIMES BRANCH 

A。0 弓 0 0 

11 October 1945 

MEMORANDUM TO: 

THRU: 

SUBJECT: 

Prosecution Section (Report # 71) 

Executive Officer, War Criines Branch 

/ Borbin? of Manila 

II. SIPHARY OF EVIDENCE: 

-Qn z k 3i?cem]D£r .Manila was declared an open and 
undefended city’ The anrourtcement was published fn t'He 
local press, broadcast over the radio in English and Tagalog, 
ani announced throughout the streets of Fanila by trucks with 
loudspeakers.. On the night of the 26th, all the lights of 
the city were turned on, The text of the ar^ouncsrent was 
cabled to the United States on the same day (R 1 0 , 1 1 ) „ 
On 27 December 194-1, between 12'"'0 and 1330 hours ？'-irjroxiirately 
twenty-one (21) Japanese bombers, copies of the American 
Douglas DC-2 bomber, plainly marked with the rising sun on 
their fuselages and wings, flew low over Intran-uros. Erik w

. FRIMAN, a pilot in the First
 T

"
r

orld VJar, and later a test 
pilot for Douglas Aircraft and Lockheed Aircraft Companies, 
es-ciiriated the altitude of the first three planes at aつ”rox— 
ima

 +

 ely twenty eight hundred (2P-00) foet (R 1 1 , 1 2， 1 3 ) . 
The following succeeding waves of throe pianos oach flew 
over at less thar one thousand (1000) feet 13). These 
planes probably flew froir. a base on Formosa. After thcr raid, 
Radio Tok

r ,

o broadcast "Ovr Isnd-based planes from Forrosa 
made another svccossf-ul raid at Fanila" (R 14), The estimated 
fuel capacity of the olanes, coupled with the distance of 
available and adequate Japanese landing strips, also irdi-
cate that Forrrosa was the nrobable base for this raid (R 14). 
The boffbs dropped on Ifitramvros were 100 and 300 pound bombs 
(R 15). The Sonto Domingo Chrrch, Lotrsn College, Santa 
Posa College, Sant? Catalina College, the Intendencia Building, 
and Santo Tomas University were struck by Jaxjarose bombs 
on 27 and 28 December 1 9 4 1 ( R 13，18). Mary other buildings, 
including the DMHM Bvilding (Herald Building) , Intr^innros 
Slernentar^ School Building, and a large block of houses be-
tween Santa Catalina

?
 Beatorio and Solano Streets, w^re des-

troyed bマ fire as a result of the boraMr^s (R 1 3， 1 8 , 1 9， 47). 
Estimates of the number of planes engaged in the raias on 
27 and 28 Decerbor varv, but it Is believed that eっっroxirrat.ely 
twenty-one (21) planes were used on each occasion. Estimates 
by expert witnesses of the Ax—ent of pron^rty dp.irage in In-
tramuros resulting from the bombing raids are included in the 
record (R 4-6, 32, 84-87, 97, 98; Ex* P), The totsl esti-
mated fiamuge was Pl，077，538,00. This estimate does not include 
privets residences d e s t r o y ^ "b^-fire. 
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J / / > 
J4 C ) ン 

Does that accurately represent that aroa? 
Yes, sir. 

CAPTAIN ？ A C S : ェ offer it in evidence. 

What is the whole paper? 
This is a map, sir. 

Q Will you describe it? 
A Between 9 and 10 A.M. on February 厶 t h while I was going to the office 
and the police station I saw a truck on Reina Regente Street, near Solcr, 
stop in front of a building. Six Japanese soldiers left the truck and 
entered the building• Being suspicious that something nay happon,エ 
stopped and make observation for about 20 minutes• There was a sudden 
explosion and a fire, I did not proceed to my officc anymore and ェ 
returned home• 

Q I show you Prosecution's Exhibit No,丄93 for identification and ask you 
if you can tell what that is? 
A This is the place (indicating)• 

Did vou see anytmng unusual hanpen on the morning of Fooru-iry 4,194 
Yes, sir. 

You will have to speak louder• 
Doninador Santos• 

Where do you live? 
No. 5 Cuesta, Manila• 

GENERAL REYNOLDSs There being no objection, it is accepted in 
evidence• 

(Prosecution Exhibit No.193 for 
identification was received in evidence) 

Q (By Captain Pace) Fill you point out on there the Singer Building 
about which you are talking? 
A Right there, sir (indicating), 

CAPTAIN PACE: Let the record show that the witness is indicating the 
letter 

Q (By Captain Pace) How long after the Japanese went into the Singer 
Building did you see and hear the explosion? 
A About 20 minutes, sir, I heard the e:cr)losion. 

Q Are you familiar with the area which that represents? 
A I am familiar with the area, sir. 

Q What is your occupation? 
A I am the deputy chiof of the Detective Bureau, Manila Police Department. 

r

4 In the early part of February，ユつwhat was your occupation? 
A I was the executive officer of the North Sector, Man ".la Police Department 

DOMINADOR S:J、IT0S 

called as a witness on belir.丄f of the Prosecution, having been first duly 
sv/orn, 7/--.S examined and tec;tified follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

Q (By Captain Pace) Give your name, please. 

A Dominador Santos. 

Q
 
A
 

Q
 
A
 

Q
 
A
 

Q
 
A
 
Q

 
A
 



DO(T_NT 2866 

Q Look at page 3. 
A This is the picture of tho Singer Building as it appears after some 
remodeling, 

Q What remodeling has beon done that shows in that picture that T7as not 
present after the fire? 
A The roof and these windows, sir. They were not in that position ロhen the 
fire ruined the place. 

Q Look at page k, 
A This is the remodeled picture

;
 also. 

CAPTAIN PACE: I offer Exhibit 19厶 in evidcnco, sir. 

GENERAL REYNOLDS: There being no objection, this is accepted in 
evidence• 

(Four photographs of Singer Building and 
block were received in evidence and 
marked Prosecution Exhibit No.19厶）• 

Q (By Captain Pace) Was there any militoiy fire that landed in that area 
at the time you saw the Japanese carrying something into the Singer Building? 
A There was no artillery fire, sir. 

CAPTAIN PACSJ Y O U may inquire. 

C-iPTAIN REEL: Could I have that last question read back, please? 

(Question read) 

CAPTAIN REEL: And the 

(Answer read) 

C“PTAIN REEL: I will ask that TT',:.t be stricken., sir. There was no 
testimony by this witness that he sav/ tne Japanese carry anything into the 
building• It is a deliberately-framed question. We object to it and v/e 
ask that the question and answer bo stricken. 

I show you Prosecution's Exhibit No
0
 194 for identification and ask you 

tell me what each of these four pages is. 
This i3 a picture of the building behind the Singer Building. 

It is a rear vie?/ of the Singer Building? 
Yes, sir. 

Is that the v/ay it looked after tho fire? 
Yes, sir. 

Had the Japs left? 
Before the explosion the Japanese left. 

What happened after the explosion? 
There 7/as a firo, sir

0 

Q Is that the way it looked after tho fire? 
A After the fire this is the way it looked• 

Q Look at the next picture. What is that? 
A This shows the picture of the Co Poe Building. 

Q Did you return to that building after that? 
A I was already -- The following day； Monday, February 5th. 

Q What was the condition of that building and the other buildings in that 
block? 
A They were all burned. 

Q
-
A
 

Q
 
t
 
A
 
Q
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Q
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Q

 
A
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CAPTAIN PACEs You may cross-examine. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

(By Captain Reel) Had there been artillery fire during that day? 
I beg your pardon? 

^'Question read) 

Did they bring the dynamite out \nth then? 
They did not bring anything when they went out. 

A There v/as no artillery fire, sir. 

Q (By Captain Reel) No artillery fire in the area in the vicinity of the 
Singer Building shown as

 ,i

A
M

 on this plan, Exhibit 193, on the 厶 t h day of 
February, 194-5? Is that your answer? 
A Yes, sir. That is no lie. There v/as no artillery fire. 

Q Were there some airplanes flying above the area? 
A エ did not observe airplanes flying during that time. 

Q エ 3物/ you the second picture of Prosecution's set of pictures on 
Exhibit 194., and ask you if this is not the daxiaged fuselage of an airplane in 
the lower lefthand corner. 
A That is not. 

Q Answer loud so he can hear. 

ム It seems to me that that is not an airplane fuselage. 

Q And what do you think it is? 

A That might be some -- some military — military objocts that are being left 
by the Japanese^ 

GENERAL REYNOLDSs Y/ill you point out to the Commission that which you 
refer to? 

CAPTAIN REEL: This instrument here, sir, on the second picture in the 
lower lefthand corner• 

Q (By Captain Reel) How far away from the Japanese v/cre you standing whan you 
saw then go in the "building? 
A I was approximately at a distance of e.bout う0 neters, 

Q 50 meters
 9
 And at a distance of 50 meters} you saw ho;/ many Japanese go in? 

A Six Japanese. 

Q Were any artillery projectiles landing in that vicinity at the time you 
saw the Japanese do this? 
A There was not. 

C A P T A I N PACE： If Counsel were right I will agree with him. To nake 
certain I will be sure to get something in the record at this time which I 
thought was already there. 

GENER‘xL REYNOLDS: There seems to be agreement that tho question and 
answer be stricken. 

Q (By Captain Pace) What did the Japs do ヮhen they drove up in front of the 
Singer Building in a truck? 
A They were bringing dynamites. 

Q Where did they bring tho dynamite? 
A They took the dynamites inside the building. 

Q And did they cone out then? 
A They cane out. 

Q
 
A
 

Q
 
A
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Q And what did they carry? What was the shape of the article they carried? 
A They were carrying somewhat round objects. 

Q And from う0 meters away you identified that round object being carried by-
six Japanese as dynamite, is that correct? 
A Yes, sir. 

Q Do you know what the Japanese were using the Singer Building for? 
A I don't know what thoy are using that for, but that is the tine that --
Before that time there was a Japanese oentinel in front of the building. 

Q There was a Japanese sentinel in front of the building. Do you know whe-
ther they had naval stores in that building? 

THE WITNESS: I beg your pardon? 

^Wuestion read.) 

A I don't know, 

Q (By Captain Reel) What branch of the service were these Japanese in that 
went in there, if you know? 
A They are infantry men

t 

Q And how did you know 50 meters away? 
A Because they 7/ere wearing leggings and puttees. 

Q And because they were wearing leggings, you assumed the.t they were 
infantry men; is that right? 
A Yes, sir. 

Q And that was the only way you identify them, because of the leggings? 
A Because of the leggings and the uniform that thoy are wearing• 

Q Leggings and the uniform• Did yon see the "anchors" on the uniform? 

THE WITNESS: What is that? 

(Question read.) 

A I see the uniform. 

CAPTAIN REEL: Repeat the question. 

(Question again read.) 

A (Continuing) Anchors? I sar; the uniform of the Japanese soldiers* 

Q (By Captain Reel) Could you see any insignia of an "anchor" on that 
uniform? 
A (No response•) 

Q Do you know what an "anchor"Is? 
A Ohl I did not see any "anchor." 

CAPTAIN REEL: No further questions. 

CAPTAIN PACE: Thank you very much. 

(iVitnoss excused
%
) 
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Ordered out of the Bank of the Philippines Building? 
Yes. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

(By Captain Pace) Give your name, please. 
Armando Alvarez. 

ffhere do you live? 
(Through the Interpreter) 2296 Juan Luna, Tondo. 

Q 衩here did you go then? 
A Opposite the Bank of the Philippine Islands, 

Q Did you see anything unusual happen? 
A During the whole midnight nothing unusual happened 
being fired. The following morning, four o'clock, we 
Bank of the Philippine Islands• 

Q What did you see then? 
A When we were ordered out, I first evacuated my two 
a guard, and we went to the opposite side. I took my 
Street and stopped at the corner of Rosario and Dasmarinas, and left my 
children there under the care of my companions; also the guard. 

r

： Did you see anything happen? 
A When ェ returned to take my wife, I saw that all our property was scattered, 
and ェ saw on the other side a group of Japanese soldiers• Because,ェ want to 
find out what this Japanese soldiers will do,エ tried to recover my property 
and the articles they had scattered, slov/ly, 

Q What did the Japs do? 
A The Japanese were trying to break down door, but when they could not, they 
break down the glass windows. 

Q The door of what building? 
A The door of the Bank o£ the Philippine Islands• 

Q Will you point out the location of the Bank of the Philippines Building on 
Exhibit 193? 

(The witness indicated on Prosecution
f

s Exhibit No
#
 193«) 

C A P T A I N PACE: Let the record show the witness inAitmted the letter 

Q (By Captain Pace) What did they do after they broke the window? 
A They were trying to break down the door again, but they could not because 
there is iron bar. I heard a voice order, give command, ana ェ saw a soldier 
scurry away in the direction of Dasmarinas• He came back carrying rags. The 
soldier laid the rags in front of two cans of gasoline. One soldier pour 
gasoline on the rags, and with the help of the other soldiers they began threw-
ing the rags inside the edifice.羽hen they finished throwing the rags inside 
the edifice, one soldier ran away carrying a long pole. At the tip of the 

except we hes^d shots 
were ordered out of the 

children, and with me ば 
children to Dasmarinas 

0 Where did you work in February, 1945? 
A At the Bank of the Philippine Islands• 

3 What did you do on February 5,1945? 
A Between four imd five o

1

clock on the afternoon of that day we were all 
ordered out by the guards, I, my companions, my wife and two children. 

A R M A N D O A L V A R E Z 

called as a witness on behalf of the Prosecution, being first duly sworn, 
through Interpreter Villa-Real, was examined and testified as follows through 
the Interpreter: 

Q
 
A
 

Q
 
A
 
Q

 
A
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And was the entire building occupied by the bank? 
les. 

Will you look at page 2 and state what that is? 
This is the remains of the Bank of the Philippine Islands• 

a week? 
tried to return, but I was prevented by the guards. 
and I found out the whole place was scorched, burnt 

(A photograph was marked 
Prosecution E^diibit No,195 for 
Identification•) 

Q And do 70U know vrhether the Japanese kept their funds, or any of their 
funds, in that bank? 
A No. 

GENERAL REYNOLDS：ェ don
!

t understand --

C A P T A I N P A C E : エ offer Exhibit 1 9 5 for Identification in Evidence, if it 
please the Commission. 

GENERAL REYNOLDS: There being no objection, it is accepted in evidence. 

(Prosecution's Exhibit No,195 for 
Identification was received in Evidence 
and so marked•) 

CAPTAIN PACE: You may inquire, 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

Q (By Captain Reel) How many floors did the Bank of the Philippine Islands 
have? 
A Two stories: one down- and one upstairs

# 

Q I show you Prosecution's Exhibit 丄 f o r Identification and ask if you can 
describe what the first page of that exhibit shows• 
A Yes, This part is burned (indicating)

# 

Q What is that a picture of? 
A Picture of the Bank of the Philippine Islands, 

Q Is that the way it looked when you returned and saw it? 
A Exactly the appearance, after one week. 

pole seemed to be rags tied, and it smelted with gasoline. He went oit^j
;

 '.y 
to an eStfice adjacent to the bank； which is burning; he dipped the tip of i/he 
pole where is the fire that was lifct and he came back to the edifice oP th'3 
Bank of the Philippine Islands and threw that pole with the burnii^ fci-j ir.nida 
and suddenly fire spurted out as far as the door where the Japanese stooc

1

, so 
the Japanese ran away. I ran away to help quickly my wife, gather those 
things we had left, went back to the place where my two children v/ere, took 
them, and we went away, 

Q Was there anything on the end of the pole that he took across the street 
to set fire to? 
A Yes, a white — l o o k s white

f
 It is considered rags. 

3 Was the Bank of the Philippine Islands burning when you left? 
A Yes. the whole down part was burning. 

Q Did you return in about 
A The following morning I 
I went back after one week 
down. 

Q
 A
 

Q
 A
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Q (By Captain Reel) Were there some vaults in the basement of that bank? 

GENERAL REYNOLDS: I don't understand 一一 

A Yes, there are iron vaults
v 

GENERAL REYNOLDS: You asked if the Japanese kept funds in that bank. 
エ did not understand whether the witness meant to answer he did not know, or 
that they had no funds in the bank. Will you clear that up? 

G A P T A I N REEL: I will straighten that out, sir. 

Q (By Captain Reel) When you answered the question relative to funds in 
the bank, did you mean by your answer that you don't know whether they have 
funds in there? 
A Yes • But what I know is the Japanese Mickey Mouse money• 

GENERAL REYNOLDS: Well, is it correct, then, when he said the Japanese 

did have --

CAPTAIN REEL: Did have funds in that bank. 

GENERAL REYNOLDS: They did have. Very well^ 

Q (By Captain Reel) One more question: Did you see ？/hether these Japanese 
were Army or Navy soldiers? 
A I cannot tell exactly, but what エ know, they are Japanese soldiers with 
caps. 

4 Did you see any insignia of anchors on them? 
A At that time it was very dark, I cannot tell, 

CAPTAIN REEL: That is all. 

C A P T A I N P A C E : Thank Y O U very much, 

(Witness excused^) 
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you aay girls killed by the Japanese in attempting to escape? 
I die net see them. 

Were you and your hasbaiid separated after you got to the Cathedral? 
The next morning they took all oar men； they took my husband,, 

You mean tho Japanese took all the men? 
Yes, the next morning• 

Do you know what they did with them? 
No, but ェ seen them« 

Several? 
Yes, several. 

How long did you remain in the Manila Cathedral? 
We stayed there for two days

d 

When the;-' at comつted to escape? 
Yes. 

Did the Japanese take these girls by force? 
Yes, by force^ 

Were you in the rear, to the rear of the caxnedral? 
Yes, siru 

Q Did all the merabers of ycuv fainily stay there during that time? 
A My mother and juj niece wer3 zneve in the St。Augustine Church, We were 
separated because trie very afterncon they told us to leave the house, you 
see I told my mother I would be going to Sz

0
 Augustine, and he told in3

?
 he 

said, "You can
T

t go into St. Augustine., because there are already plenty 
t h e r e H G told me 匕hat I go to the Cathedral. So I and my two children 
and my husband were separated, and my mother and niece were separated• 

They told me エ couldii
:

t go there. There was plenty there, that I better 
go to the Cathedral Church-

Q How many dia you see shot by the Japanese? 
A ェ d.on

?

t know 5 there are many thefe • 

Q The nbxt. day did you se-3 any girls killed by the Japanese when they 
attempted to escape? 
A エ H & V S yesp in front of that well. There were girls there that were 
shot by the Japanese.、 

Q And how many Japanese did you see take women out of the cathedral during 
the night? 
A There are many; but I have seen two, they are very, very near me, in 
front of me, in front of our place those Japanese are raping her, and I have 
seen plenty of girls that they are taking outside of the cathedral, those 
Matista .girls, they are very young. They are telling, "No, don

T

tj mama, don
1

t 
let them take me•“ Those girls are shouting like that. 

Q And for what purpose did they come irtc the building? 
A I don

1

't k n d out thsv went inside the cathedr^J. and they v/ere going 
around, and then af berwardc they have been pulling girls outside of the 
cathedral, and I saw two Japanese raping those women right there in the 
cathedral, and one by my side she is pregnant five months• 

Q What part of the cathedral were you and your family located in that 
evening? 
A We are in the middle of the cathedral• Suppose this is the churchj 
we are there at tnat place (indicating). and this is the door. 

d
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To the Manila Cathedral Church? 
Yes. 

Q Here you residing there with the other members of your family? 
、 Y o s , sir. 

Q What were their names? 
A Jesus Carngtos, ray husband5 Victorina Alban, my mother; my children, who 
are Aurora Carugtos, Angelita Carugtos and Basilio Carugtos. 

Q On the 5th of February of this year did you, together 
with the ether members of your family, have occasion to leave your home and 
seek refuge? 
A Yes, sir. 

5 And where did you go at that time? 
A In the Cathedral Church. 

DIRECT E 仏fJINATION 

(By Captain Hill) Will you state ;
r

our name, please? 
My name is Rosa Ce丄along. 

Can you speak a little louder? 
Rosa Calalong. 

Where do you reside? 
2642 Tinaldo, Manila, 

Where were you residing the first p irt of February of this year? 
In Intramiaros • 

Where in Intramuros? 
Anda Street. 

Q Jifhere was the Manila Cathedral located? 
A Located at Calbildo and Postiago. 

Q Was that at Intramuros? 
A Yes, that is inside of Intramuros• 

Q At what time of the day or night did you and the other members of your 
family go to the Manila Cathedral? 

A At about 5:30 in the afternoon of February 5th• 

Q When you arrived there did you find any other people in the cathedral? 

A There were plenty there. 

Q Can you state to the Commission the approximate number of persons that you 
saw there in the cathedral? •‘ • , , . , 一 
A There was lots of people; it is a very big church, and it was very, very 
orowaca• 

Q Would you say that there were 500 or 1000 or 1500 people there? 
A Maybe around 厶 0 0 0 or 50005 it is plenty. There are very many. 

Q Did you and the members of your family remain there in the cathedral that 
night? 
A Yes, sir, 

Q All night? 
A Yes. 

Q Noろ during the night did you see any Japanese come into the cathedral buil 
ing? 
A Yes, sir. 

DOCUMENT 2861 

called as a witness on behalf of the Prosecution, being first duly sworn, was 
examined and testified as follows: 
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And no bombing yet? 
No bombing yet. 

Do you know what caused the fire that burned the Manila Cathedral? 
There is some explosion,, plenty of explosion inside the Cathedral, 

Do you know if any of those men ever returned or not? 
Yes. 

Did they return? 
Mr. Sanchez Andriguez, ho returned. 

Q When you were in the cathedral did you see any signs of explosives being 
placed around inside the building? 
A I just see those drums there, and supposing this is the church here, the 
convent, there are plenty of gasoline drums there• 

Q Around the church? 
A Yes. 

CAPTAIN HILL: You may have the witness• 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

Q (By Captain Reel) These Japanese soldiers you saw, were they army or navy 
or marines? 
A They are wearing green suits• 

Q Did jail see any insignia on their green suit? 
A No, I don't, I don't look at the Japanese• 

Q You could not tell whether they had little anchors on their green suits or 
not? 

A No, I dor^t pay any attention, to that, 

Q You did not pay any attention to that? 

Q Are you sure those explosions were coming from the inside of the 
Cathedral? 
A They are inside the Cathedral, yes» We are here and the Cathedral is only 
on the next street• 

Q Were there any American "bombings or shells hitting in that area at that 
time? 
A There was no shelling yet. 

Q Did any of the others that you saw taken away from the Cathedral ever 
return? 
A No, I have not seen them, 

Q And you have never heard of them since that time? 
A I have not heard of them, no, 

Q Now, after you left the Cathedral, what did you see, if anything, 
relative to the destruction of ths Manila Cathedral? 
A I see the Cathedral;I see it burning• 

Q You saw it burning? 
A Yes, 

Q Have you seen your husband or heard from him since he was taken from you 
at the Manila Cathedral? 
A That is the last time エ have seen my husband. 

Q How many men did you see the Japanese take from the Manila Cathedral on 
that day? 
A There are many; there are two very long lines• 

Q Well, when you say ''many" can you give the Commission a little more 
definite answer on that? Would it be 50 or 100 or more than that? 
A It would be more than two or one thousand, something like that. 

Q
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And is that as the church looks today after it was destroyed? 
Yes. 

Is that the ruins of the church as it looks today? 
It is not like this today. 

You did not pay any attention to that? 
No, I don

!

t pay attention to that* 

CAPT ムIN REEL: That is all. 

GiOPTAIN HILL: We will offer into evidence Prosecution's Exhibits 308 
and 309, sir. 

GENERAL REYNOLDSs There being no objection, they are accepted 
evidence. 

(Prosecution Exhibts No
t
 308 and 

identification were received in 

CAPTAIN HILL: That is all we have. 

CAPT '.IN RELLs No further questions, 

into 

309 for 
evidence^) 

Q I will hand you Prosecution's Erdiibit No, 309, and ask you to state what 
it is| if you know. 
A Yes, this is the Cathedral Church. 

CAPTAIN HILL: I will ask to have these two photographs marked for 
identification• 

(Two photographs were marked Prosecution 
Exhibits No, 308 and 309 for Identifica-
tion respectively,) 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

Q (By Captain Hill)I、’ill hand you Prosecution's Exhibit No. 308, and 
ask you to state what it is, if you know. 
A Yes. this place here, this is the Cathedral Church• 

Q
 A
 

Q
 A
 

Q
 
A
 

(Witness excused,) 
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called as a witness 
sworつ,was examined 

JUA^
T

 P . JUAT、.
T 

on behalf of the Prosecution, 
and testified as follows: 

being first duly 

D I R E C T EXILMI
T T

ATION 

Q (By Captain Hill) Please state your name. 

A Jty name is Juan P, Juan• 

Q T^here do you reside, ！!r. Juan? 

A I reside at 1312 General Luna Street• 

Q •？Hiere is that with reference to the former Philippine Red Cross 
Headquarters Building ? 

A It is just next door, back of the former Philippine Red Cross 
Building, 

Q The buildirg that was used for that purpose on 10 February 19厶う？ 

L (、丁o response 
s 

Q You are next door to the building that was used as the Philippine 
Red Cross Headquarters in early February of this year? 

A Yes, sir, 

^Q How eld are you? 

A エ am lil years old, 

Q What is your business or profession? 

k I am not in any profession, but I have been enpaged in business, 
in the Educational Alliance, since 1935• 

Q On 10 F e b r u a r y , 1 9厶 d i d you have occasion to go to the Red 
Cross building adjacent to your home? 

A Y e s ,エ was practically there the whole day on February 10th. 

Q Tell the Commission the occasion for your going to that tuilding 
that day. 

A Ls my house was just beside the Red Cress building, ard the ether 
house of mine was just 50 meters away from the place, on February 9th, 
in the evening, we had ”o other plr.ee to go than the house that 
belongs to me at the back of the Philippine Red Cross. So we slept 
there on the night of February 9th. Or February 10th intense ghelling^ 
was going op. Shells were dropping around my yard and my building* 
was already hit. So we were in commotion, and my wife and エ decided 
to go to the Philippine Red Cross Building, especially when we 
accepted an invitation from Mr. Farolar, then in charga of the Philippine 
Red Cross• So after breakfast on February 10th I brought my whole 
family inside the Philippine Red Cross, because it was being used as an 
emergency hospital. My daughter then needed the doctor

!

s assistance, so 
I to«k the opportunity to bring the family inside the Red Cross Building, 
especially whe-B my daughter had just delivered and needed doctor's 
assistance because she was weak due to hemorrhage and exhaustior> while 
run”irg away from the other building that I have which was burned the 
night Sefore, 
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Q
 N

ow, just a minute. Let me interrupt you. Tell the Commi
&
6-i.ori 

how many members oi' /our family went to the Red Gross Building that 
day, 

A Fifteen altogether. 

Q Fifteen? 

A Yes. 

Q And did all of the 15 remain in the building throughout the day 
and evening? 

A A few of us happened to step outside late in the evening of that 
day, when it was almost dinner time, before dark, because our food 
was prepared outside of the Red Cross, inside my yard, 

Q And how many members of your family remained in the building when 
the few of you went back to your yard? 

A Ten of them remained inside the Red Cross Building, 

Q Give the Commission the names of those ten members of your family 
that remained there in the building, 

A There were my wifo, Lucia Santos de Juan; my daughter, Pc.ulina 
Juan Zabala, v/ho had the baby; rny older daughter, Juanita Juan 
Marcelo, with four children; txvA my daughter-in-law, ^enita Recio 
de Santos, with two children. 

Q Afoer you returned to your yard 
any noise or anything unusual from 
Building? 

to prepare the food did you hear 
the direction of the Red Cross 

A Yes, About almost less than an hour after エ l e f t the Red Cross 
Building I was standing at the back yard supervising the cooking• 
Suddenly I heard shots from inside the Red Cross c.no simultaneously 
with the screaming of women• Then more shots followed and more 
screaming was heard. 

% reaction was that the Japanese were killing the German 
refugees — German-Jew refugees _ Fhom I saw inside the building 
when I left. Ify reaction Kas that the German-Jews v;ere being 
killed, because I remember a statement of one of the Japanese officers 
thこt the Orient should be for the Orientals, and that there should be 
no mixed blood. 

Q just a minute • Did you know the name of that Japanese who 
made that statement to you? 

A The second name is Captain Watasaki^ 

Q And when did he make that statement to you? 

A That was more or less two or three months before the massacre. 

Q Dia you know this Japanese captain personally? 

L エ happened to know him several months before that when he waa.— 
introduced to me by a certain friend of mine in Paranaque. 

Q Just what were the circumstances under which you hn.d the 
conversation with this Japanese captain? 
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A As he used to visit me in the housa time and again, we happened 
to mention about xiie last war, the war th&t was going on then, and 
in the course of our conversation he said that eventually the war 
will soon end; that the Japanese — 

COLONEL HENDRIX: If it please the Commission, at this time we 
would like to interpose an objection to this particular answer, and 
nny line of questioning, on the ground of hearsay, as to what this 
particular witness heard another witness state; and further, that 

it is violative, and not in accordance with Article of Wlt 38 in the 
Manual for Courts Martial and the rules of evidence in criminal cases 
in the District Courts of the United States• This witness is at-
tempting to state what a captain in the Japanese Army has told hira

# 

That is hearsay. The captain should be here before this commission 
to testify as to whatever he did say, 

MAJOR KERR: If the Commission please, this is a very important 
question. During the course of this trial the Commission will 
receive, or at least we v/ill offer to the Commission, a considerable 
quantity of hearsay evidence

#
 I advert once again to the regulations 

which provide that this Commission shrJLl receive such evidence as it 
believes to have probative value

 # 

The Commission is not a jury to te insulated mentally against 
every possible suggestion• You gentlemen are certainly in & position 
to evaluate hearsay, or any other type of evidence that may be of 
value to you. The closest analogy on this question to an executive 
body such as this, a military commission； is afforded by an adminis-
trative t r i b u n a l , I believe counsel will grant that under American 
practice the administrative tribunals have been held by our courts 
to have a very broad leeway as to the receipt of evidence of this 
sort, and that they may receive hearsay evidence if they believe it 
will help them in the doterraination of the issues before them. 

Ii that is true as to an American administrative tribunal under 
the statutes applicable to those tribunals

>
 certainly it is true 

as to this Commission• And I most earnestly submit, sir, that the 
Commission will deny itself some extremely illuminating, trustworthy, 
and helpful evidence, which certainly m>uld have probative value, I 
am sure, in the mind of any reasonable man. 

I certainly object to any effort by counsel to prevent the 
introduction of so-called hearsay evidence in this proceeding. 
Furthermore, there are about 57 different varieties of exceptions 
to the so-called hearsay rule, and if the Commission has to get 
into that maze of legal "technicalities to what is and what is 
not admissible as hearsay, we will be here for months• 

COLONEL HENDRIX: If it please the Commission, it is not the 
purpose of the Defense to delay the case or to drag it out, but 
we do want the case to be tried along the rules of evidence as 
have been approved by the District Courts of the United States. We 
base that on this: 

Article of War 38 states: "The President may, by regulations 
which he may modify x'rom time to time, prescribe the procedure, 
including: nodes of proof, in cases before courts-martial, courts 
of inquiry, military commissions and other military tribunals, 
which regulation shall, in so far as he shall deem practicable, 
apply the rules of evidence generally recognized in the trial oぐ 
criminal cases in the District Courts of the United States, pro-
vided that nothing contrary to or inconsistent with these A

r
t i d e s 

shall be so prescribed; provided, further, that all rules made in 
pursuance of this Article, shall be laid before the Congress 
annually." 
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I do not concur with the Prosecution as to his contentions of 
administrative practice and procedure in the United States. In 
one breath the Prosecutor states,

 f,

We do not have a”y rules and 
r e g u l a t i o n s T h e n in another breath he attempts to write in the 
Massachusetts law, and certain rules and regulations of adminis-
trative procedure. 

We take this position: Congress, by virtue of the Constitution 
of the United States, passed certain laws called the Articles of War. 
Article 38 is one of the statutes tHat is a part of the Articles of 
War. That particular Article of War gave the President of the United 
States the power to do two things s One was to prescribe rules of 
procedure and make rules of evidence for courts-martial; and the 
other for military commissions. 

This Manual pertains largely to courts martial• The President 
of the United States has so acted, so far as courts martial are 
concerned, bat from the recsord in this case, from T7hat has been 
brought before this Military Commission, there is nothing on this 
subject as to the actions of the President of the United States for 
prescribing rules and regulations as to evidence. 

In the abeence of action from the President of the United States 
it surely 町as the intent of Congress that if the President did 
not do anything about prescribing such rules, the rules of evidence 
generally recognized in the trial of criminal cases in the District 
Courts of the United States must apply

 #
 Let us assume that the 

President did act on this subject. If he had, he would have to go 
by the rules in the Federal Court, so far as possible. 

There has been presented to this Commission a letter that the 
Prosecution has mentioned on numberous instances and no doubt will, 
throughout this trial, which letter is dated the 2^th of September, 
丄945, concerning the regulations governing the trial of war criminals, 
and so forth, Tfe contend that this particular letter setting out the 
procedure such as evidence, bringing in hearsay, bringing in affi-
davits ,bringing in what witnesses heard from other people, is 
absolutely null and void; that this entire letter is ^ull and void; 
that General MacArthur, in preparing this letter, did not have 
authority from Congress to make any rules or procedures of a 
military commissioru The orly man in the v/orld that has such power 
from Congress is the President, and he has not done anything about 
prescribing any rules, as far as the record in this case shows. 

We insist that any hearsay as to this "witness, or any ovher 
witnesses, must be ruled out and should not be allowed in evidence. 
Furthermore, we contend that as far as the rules are concerned, they 
should not go by this letter issued by General MacArthur, bat by 
the rules of procedure of the Congress of the United States. 

It comes down to this: Congress has made Article 38. Apparently 
the Commission will have to decide whether we are going to decide 
the evidence on what Congress has passed, or whether we will go by a 
letter that has been prepared by General MacArthur and which has 
directed General Stver to carry on this trial• We contend that the 
hearsay should be stixcken and not allowed. 

G E蘭 A L REYNOLDS: Subject to objection by any member of the 
Commission, the objection of counsel for the Defense is not sustained, 

G O L O m HETORIX: We except to that, sir； 

GENERAL REYNOLDS: LB to the stating of exceptions, the proceedings 
of this Commission, unlike that of civil courts, are automatically 
subject to review. All rulings and decisions and findings are subject 
to review of the appointing authority. Accordingly, the statement of 
exceptions from counsel is not in order and will not be recognized by 
this Commission. 
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COLONEL CLARKE: If the Court please, that is new to me. If that 
is the contention of the Prosecution, if he can show us the authority, 
we are willing to abide thereby. 

GENERAL REYNOLDS: The Prosecution will continue• 

Q (By Captain Hill) Mr, Juan, I believe my last question vies that I 
asked you to tell the Commission the circumstanoes under which you had 
the conversation with the Japanese captain which you related to the 
Commission. 

ノ A On several occasions the Japanese captain ^diich I mentioned used to 
visit my family

0
 I don

f

t remember exactly what particular visit was 
that when he mentioned to me that the Orient should be for the Orientals, 
and that there should be no mixed bloody Bat we happened to talk about 
what would be the outcome of the war, and he said that it is not far 
when the mir

1

 will end and people in the Orient will live in peace 
without being disturbed• 

Q And what position, if you krovj, did this Japanese captain hold 
in your particular neighborhood with the Japanese Imperial Army? 

L The last time that I know of his outpost was in Santa Mesa, and I 
"ohmk he was connected with the construction of railroads. 

W i>xd he say anything to you about where he had gotten his authority 
for the making of such a statement? 

A He didn't say anything about it* 

Q Continue with your story of v/hat happened there at the Red Cross 
Building and in your yard after you heard the shots and screams about 
which you have testified, 

A As エ heard more shots and more screaming of people エ told the 
rest of my children who were outside the building with me to get inside 
the ouilding and not to come out, A few of us men outside posted our-
selves around the building so we could see whether the Japanese were 
coming or not. One by the name of Romano Abad, who is a brother to 
Patrocinio Abad, one of the victims in the Red Cross, he stayed near 
the Red Gross Building, and when he saw a certain Japanese with fixed 
bayonet climb up the fence he ran to us and told us what he saw. 

Q Did this Japanese cone cn over into your yard over the wall? 

厶 He dia not continue to get into my yard because he didn't see 
anything there. We were all hiding. 

Q ^hen did ycu first learn what had actually happened over in the 
Red Cross Building? 

A At about dark T>ime that eve”ing one of our maids, Leticia by name, 
came into the air raid shelter, and she 讶as pale and looked very much 
afraid and could hardly talk. And so w© ask her, ”What happen?" 

Q Just let me interrupt you. Where had she come to the shelter from? 

A From Inside the Red Cross Building. 

Q Go ahead, 

A And then she burst, cried, and could hardly get her words, and told 
us that the Japanese killed everybody inside the R6d Cross Building, 
including my wife and all my grandchildren. That was the first time 
I learned about the tragedy that happened to ry family. 

Q Did you go to the Red Cross Building later? 
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A エ attempted to go that evening, February 丄Qth, about midnight, 
but the rest of my children who were with me inside the air raid 
shelter prevented me from gettingout of the air raid shelter, es-
pecially when one of the survivors told us that there were still 
Japanese soldiers in front of the Red Cross Building. So I did not 
go any more and w a i t e d the f o l l o w i n g d a y , 

Q Did you go there the following day? 

A On the following day the shelling was very intense. We could 
hardly get out of the air raid shelter, and besides, the buildings 
all around us v/ere on fire. 

Q Did you go to the building later? 

ム On the following day, on the evening of the 12th.； I，with 
my son-in-law, Jose Zabala, whose wife was kille&y<： ent inside 
the Red Cross Building then, after tv;o days, after the massacre. 

Q Was it light or dark when you ^ent to the building? 

A It was not exactly dark yet. There was still plenty of light. 
But it was getting dark, 

Q When you went ir.to the building did you see any dead bodies there? 

A I saw plenty of dead bodies on the corridor as I proceeded to the 
room where I though rry wife and children v:ere. 

Q Can you give the Commission an estimate of how many dead bodies 
you think you saw in the corridor and in the room where ycu thought 
your wife

f

 s body would be? 

A approximate estimate is about 20 bodies• 

^ In those two places? 

ムYes, 丨
v 

Q ^!cre you able to identify and recover the body of ycur wife or 
any other members of your family? 

A On that evening of February (lOthJ エ only saw the bodies of ny 
daughter, Paulina.ェ tried to look in the snme room 奴 here my 
daughter was for the rest of my family, but エ could not find them. 

Q Fere you able to recover any bodies there and take • then cut of 
the building? i 

k We ^ere able to recover the 10-day baby of ray daughter. 

Q Any other bodies? 

A I could not recover any more excepting the bones of the rest of 
the family. 

Q Do you know wheth r any other bodies ？:ere identified and recovereci 
from the building? 

ム The daughter, the 10-month daughter of Corazon 狱oble vjas also 
recovered and brought into niy yard. 

Q Mr. Juan, how long did you remain at your home adjacent to the 
Bod Cross Building after the 10th? 

A Four days, as we left the premises on the 14-th -- February 14th. 
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Q T
r

ere you present in your home when the Red Cross Euilding was 
destroyed? 

A Yes， I was, 

Q Will you tell the Commission how that building was destroyed? 

A On the early momiTng of February 14.th, or when I was at tho back 
yard of rny building,エ saw flickering lights inside the room where 
the manager, or Mr. Faralon, was, as エ Y:as actually in that room 
t h e r e • 1 had been observing what was going on, whether there v/as 
somebody inside the building, but I didn't notice anybody. And for 
several niinutes， approximately less than half an hour,エ noticed 
that very suddenly the flickering light burst into flames, and that 
part of the building where my daughter vas then enveloping in flames• 

W Were any members cf the Japanese forces in your neighborhood at 
the time the building burned? 

ムエ did not notice any, but エ noticed several soldiers on that street 
in front of the Red Cross Building. 

Q On that day； 

A On that day. 

Q Do you know whether or not the Red Cross Building vjas hit by any 
shells prior to the time that you saw it burn? 

A I didn't notice any^ 

CAPTAIN HILL: I willひsk that this bo marked Prosecution 
Exhibit ^ o , 1 5 for Identification. 

(The photograph of the Philippine Red Cross 
Building v/as marked Prcsecution

f

 s Exhibit 
^ o . 1 5 for Identification). 

Q (By Captain H i l l ) I will hand you Prosecution
1

s Exhibit 15 and ask 
you to state to the Commission what it is, if you know? 

i:This is the former Philippine Rod Gross Building as it stands now, 
after it hc.d been burned • 

Gx^PTAIN HILL: We offer Exhibit 15 in Evidence. 

G5T靴丄 REYNOLDS: Is there any objection by the Defense? 

COLONEL CLARKE: None, sir. 

GE
Tv

tERAL REYNOLDS: There being no objection, it is accepted as 
evidence, 

(Prosecution
1

s Exhibit N o . 1 5 for 
Identification was received in 
evidence and so marked)• 

、( ^ y Captain Hill) On the 14th, the day that you saw the building 
burned, were those persons that you saw in front of the headquarters 
building Japanese soldiers? 

ム They were Japanese soldiers, because they had the unifcrm of the 
Japanese, and no other civilians cculd roam around that building there• 

Q They wore the uniform of a Japanese soldier? 

A Soldier. 
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CAPTAIN HILL: I csk that this be mr.rkod Prosecution
1

 s Exhibit 
N o . 1 6 . 

(The photograph of ruins inside Philip-
pine Red Cross Building was marked 
Prosecution

1

s Exhibit No.16 for identi-
fication) • 

hc.nd you Prosecution's Exhibit 16 and 
if you krov;? 

of the PhilipDine Red Gross inside the 
be a portion of the toilet, 

CAPTAIN HILL: We offer in evidence Prosecution's Erfiibit No.16, sir, 

GENERAL REY^LDS: Is there objection by the Defense? 

COLONEL CLARKE: None, sir. 

GENERAL REYNOLDSs There beingno objection, it is accepted in 
evidence. 

(Prosecution's ErfilMt 16 for Ideritifi-
cation was received in evidence and so 
marked•) 

CAPTAIN HILL: I ask that this be marked Prosecution Exhibit N
0
. 

17 for Ider-tifice/tion. 

(The photograph of grave of 10-day baby 
v;ae marked Prosecution^s Exhibit 17 
for Identification.) 

Q (Sy Captain H i l l )エ hand you Prosecution's Exhibit No,17 for 
Identification and ask you to 3tate what it is, if you know, Mr* Juan? 

A This is the photograph of the grave of the 10-^ay baby of rry daughter, 
including the 10-month baty cf Corazon ^

T

cble, inside my yard at the 
back of ny house. 

CAPTAIN HILL: We offer in evidence Prosecution's Exhibit 17, sir, 

QE^mJiL REYNOLDS: Is there obi ectiori by the Defense? 

COLONEL CL/JIKE: If the Court please, on these various exhibits, 
unless v;e state an cbjection, if the Court is satisfied, it will be 
admitted v/ithout any objecstion, 

GENERAL REYNOLDSs I didn't clearly understand. 

COLONEL CLi\RKE: On these exhibits that are now read, unless we 
state an objection, will the Court understand that we have ro objection, 
without having to go through it each Lime? 

GENERAL REYNOLDS: Very well, 

(Prosecution^ Exhibit No* 17 for Identifi-
cation was received in evidence and so 
marked•) 

Q (By Captain Hill) Ivlr. Juan, you were in yourhone adjacent to the 
Philippine Red Cross Headquarters Building from the time the fighting 
in Manila between the Americans and the Japanese began, until February 
H t h , is that correct? 

Q {By Captain H i l l ) I will 
ask you to state what it is, 

A This is part of the ruins 
building.ェ think this must 
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ii Yes, sir. 

Q And during that time, a”d up until the 10th of February, the night 
of 10 February 1945, was the Red Cross Headquarters Building used for 
any military purpose by the Filipinos or by the Americans? 

A It was not used for military purpose because it was then used as an 
emergency hospital, 

Q Did you observe, on the 10th of February, whether or not the Red 
Cross insignia or conventional sign appeared upon the outside of the 
Red Cross Building there? 

L Yes. I noticed that even at the back of the building there was the 
Red Cross sigru 

Q Did that sign appear on other sides of the building? 

A Yes, that appeared. 

Q When you went into the Red Cross Building on the 10th were any of 
the people in the building that you saw armed in any way? 

h 好 T h e r e was no arm whatsoever. 

Q Were all of the people in the building ncn — combaterit civilians? 

A Yes. They were all non-combatant; mostly children, refugees, and 
patients, who were then being treated by nurses and doctors, 

Q From yourknowledge and observation, after the murders had taken 
place, can you give ihe Commission an estimate of how many persons lost 
their lives there in the Red Cross Building at the hands of the Japanese 
cn the 10th of February, 194-5? 

A エ cannot exactly tell the number, because I didn't get inside the 
other rocms, 

Q Can you make an estimate? 

ム エ figure it to be approximately around 30 to 1,0. 

C ^ m HILL: Cross Examine. 

GROSS EXA::骤iTI0，
T 

Q (By Captain Reel) YJhen did the fighting in Manila begin? 

れ Only in cur plr.ce I can state when, because v/e couldn
1

1 gc outside 
of our yard, 

Q Well,ycu told us a moment ago that you were at home from the 
beginning of the fighting until the 14th of February. All I want to 
know is what you mean by "beginning of fighting•“ "Tien did it begin? 

“i.only learned that the American forces 巧ere already on the north 
side of the River on ‘ ae 3rd, 

Q Yes. Did ycu see any American soldiers between February 3rd and 
February 10th? 

ム The first time I saw the American soldier was cn February 13th, 
when they came around r̂ y yard. 

Q Were there any Filipino soldiers in your neighborhood at that time? 

ム I didn't see any Filipino soldiers• 
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Q Was there aerial bombardment going on after the 3rd of February? 

A I didn't notice^ Mostly artillery shells
t 

Q Artillery shells• “”d when you say you rent to the air raid shelter, 
that was for protection against artillery shells? 

ム Yes • 

Q And when did t\ds artillary shelling begin, approximately? 

“ In our neighborhood the shelling began on February 9th, in the 
morning. 

Q In other words, the day before this incident at the lied Cross 
Building the shelling beganV 

A Yes. 

Q ムnd your home building, I believe you said, was hit by a shell 
that day? 

“
 ?T

o» The first building 坍here I used to live before was burned by 
the Japanese on that same nights 

Q That was the 9th of February? 

A That v;as the 9th of February, 

Q Didn't you say that the building was hit by shells? 

A The other building at the back of the Red Cross was hit "by shells 
on February 10th. 

Q February 10th. I see. Lt the time ycu saw the flames in the Red 
Cross Building — エ think you said a "flicker" — did you see any 
persons in that room where the light was flickering? 

ム I didn't see any, 

Q Did you see anyone in the Red Cross Building at all after the 
flames started coming out of it? 

L I didn't see anyv 
Q You told us that you saw some Japanese soldiers in front of the 
building• Just when, with relation to the fire, did you see them in 
front of the building? 

“ エ saw the Japanese soldiers before the fire took place. 

Q How long before the fire took place? 

A On February 12th, when I went inside the building, I locked at 
some soldiers in front of the building• 

^ And what day dii the fire occur? 

ム The fire occurred in the efirly morning of February lAth. 

Q So that it was two days before the fire that you sai7 the Japanese 
soldiers in front of the building? 

A Yes. But we notice continuous movement of Japanese soldiers on the 
street just in front of the building continuously after the fire. 

Q Did you see Japanese soldiers in front of the building after the 
12th of February? 
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A Not exactly in front of the building• 

Q You mean they were active in the City? 

A Yes. 

Q They v/ere active in the area? 

A Yes. 

Q All right• Will you describe for us the Japanese soldier
1

s uniform? 

A I cnly noticed that the soldiers v;ere dressed in olive green. 

Q Any insignia that you remember? 

A エ didn
f

t notice any more. 

Q Will you describe for us the uniform of the Japanese sailor? 

“ Japanese? 

Q Sailor• One who is on a boat; a sailor• 

A I didn't see any Japanese sailor• 

Q Let me ask you this: Do you know uhat the uniform of a Japanese 
sailor looks like? 

A I am not familiar with the uniform of the Japanese sailor
# 

Q J.i I tcld you that the Japanese sailors v^re the same colored green as 
the Japanese soldiers, would you then express some doubt as to whether or 
net those persons you saw \;ere soldiers or sailors? 

L エ cculd only identify they are sailors when they show their cap 
with the ®chor sign on it. 

Q Ah, fine! So that you do knov? that a Japanese sailor has an 
anchor on his cap? 

A Th.at is iny identification. 

Q And what does a Japanese soldier have on his cap? 

A Star. 

Q ムnd did you see the caps of these men who were in front of the 
Red Cross 3uilding on the 12th of February• 

L エ didn
f

t notice any more the caps• 

GAPT/iIN REEL: That's all. 

Ci^miN HILLs That
f

s all. 

(Witness excused•) 
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ShSRS TO QUESTIONS C0SCE25IKG- PHSS^NT LEfrEES OF HECOVSRY. / / / く •ハ 
/ r^ 

1.Summary of •physical dest ruction and other Iobsqs,-
 ;

 The value of da nudges 
sustained "by the Philippines r-s f result cf the v

r

a.r (l)rsed on reports still in-
complete) amounts to a'oout P2,740,526,649 distributed as follovrc： real este.te 
improvements, including government "buildings

5
 private lesidential and comnier— 

ciel structures, churches rnd other roligious inefcitatiens, P539,374,o20 or IS.7 
per cent； government corporations, P81

?
75G,232 or 3。〇 per csnt； industrial and 

commercial properties, P512,950,454 or 18.7 ner cexit ； agricoltare, P281,l?0,790 
or 10.3 per cent; public works improYeineiits, excluding damages in the provinces 
of ^e'UB^n, x>ataxies, BuLcidJion, Catanduanes, Cota"bato, Pala.\ran sx.d Zn'boanga, 
P244,988,081 or 8.S per ccnt; personal effects, suck ；?.s clothes and linen, house 
furniture, fixtures rnd utensils, motor errs, jevelry, "books, etc, P413,778,327 
or 15.1 per cent; government offices, exclusive cf "buildings, £125,653,4:77 or 
4.6 per cent ；li"brerieB (from reportp of 2 public end 4 private libraries in 
Manila only), 624,963 or 0。2 per cent; rnd prewar vplue of Japanese notes 
issued in exchange for goods pnd services, £635, 220,000 or 19.5 per cent. 

i The following taole gives a. summary of the vrrr losses sustained "by the 
Philippines： 

ESTIMATED PHILIPPIlffi DAKA5SS (PAxSTIaL) : DEC. 8 , 1 9 4 1 TO JULY 4 , 1 9 4 5 
Lf:,sed on reports received "by the 上。じ u p to June 1946® 

Percentage of 
Item 1941 Value 

Reel esta.to improvementb a/ 535,374,320 
Government corporations 81,756,232 
Industrial and commercial properties. 512, 950,454 
Public works improvements \l 244；988,081 
Government offices cj •• 125,663,477 
•Agriculture d/ 281,170,790 
Tnlue of Japanese military notes issued e./.. 5o5,220,000 
Personal effects f/ 了 … 4 1 3 ^ 7 8 , 3 2 7 
Libraries gj 5

t
624，9od 

TOTiil' -53,740,526,649 

Seduced to physical quantities, these looses are represented as follows: 

a. Destruction of h o u s e A b o u t 27C,CCO private ctructures wore des-
troyed rendering from 1,500,000 to 2,000,000 persons homeless. 

Td. Q-overnment "buildingc*- The destruction of a"bout 1,200 government 
structures h s forced the も‘over皿ent to occupy privpto "buildings whicn could 
otherwise oe utilized as dwellings, 

c. School "buildir^s* - At out 15.0f 0 school "buildings v>rere destroyed, p.s 
a, result of vrhich thousands of children of school r^e ere out of school. 

The following ta'ole skews the estimsted num"ber of structures damaged as 
a result of war operations in the PhiliiDpineni 

IlSIIMAEili CP :&UILDIK<JS AHD OTHSE STRUCTUIJ:^ DAKaGIUD 
hS a BSSULT or War OP』?上TlOiiS IK TIlii PLILIPPIWEb 

December 8 , 1 D 4 1 一 July 4 , 1 9 4 5 
Items Number 

Public school "buildings 15,100 
G-overnment offices rr.nd other government structures 1,200 
Private residences 269,950 
Business houses 8,800 
Private schools, colleges, hospitals & other structures ••••• 100 
Churches, convents & other religious structures 150 

TOTAL 295,30^ 

a/ Govt "buildings included- b/ Excluding dsmf.ges to Agusan, Betrrxes, J^uicidnon, 
Catandu^ne， Cota/bato, PalrTO.n and. ZanfboangFし• cj Doer, not include "builamgs; 
includes only office f u r n i t u r e f i x t u r e s , supplies & materials, records, docu-
ment s, "books, journals， etc- d/ Includes crops, livestock & farm implements only, 
e/ 3stimrted prewar value of worthless Japanese notes issued in exchange for 
goods & services^ fj Clothes, furniture, fixtures & utensils, books, jevrelry, 
errs, etc。’ gj As reported "by 2 public d： 4 private university & college 丄lorrries 
in fenila.1/ 从s reported ty 831 municipalities and cities. 2/ Does not include 
"buildings. 5/ As reported by 15 provincial,5 city and 386 municipal govern— 
ments ^nd 46 "burems and offices• 
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249.069.5bO 
5s424.no 

1 0 , 0 0 7 , 9 3 0 

1 0 , 1 3 1 . 4 6 0 

515,7hh>010 
1 2 8 , 1 1 2 , 0 7 0 

1 , 8 0 3 , 9 9 0 
8,337,040 

118,537,600 
1 2 6 , 7 4 2 , 0 6 0 
57,572,850 
1 3 , 6 8 8 , 4 9 0 

2 , 1 4 4 . 1 1 0 
71,489.100 
1,980,910 

355,520 
19,622,480 
22,746,200 
8
9
81|5»810 

,775.180 
,607,040 

198,780 
113

9
650 
384 

414.990 

16,401,290 
2 , 0 1 5 , 7 4 0 

T O T A L 
AGRICULTURAL CROPS -
Rice 

Pal ay 
Rice (clean)。。.… 

Cavan 

Corn 
Corn (shelled) 
Corn (ears) 0。 

Cavan 
Number 

Sugar cane 
Sugar 。 .• 
Canes »»• 
Molasses 

Kilo 
Ton 
Liter 

Tobacco Kilo 

Coconuts 
Nuts 
Copra . 
O i l … 
Tuba “ 

Number 
Kilo 
Liter 

Ai kJcl o o«**«oooOOOOoa 
6 0000000000006a 

SSQ.V& 0000000000000 
GaOe ooooooo»oooo«ooe 
MoilgO oooooeooooo.ooe 
33 HQ S ooooooeoooeoc 
Coffee ……。。。。o … 
CaCaO OOOOOO.OOOOOOO. 
Beans and vegetables 
Fruits 

All o^hcjTs «O«O*OOOOC 

LIVESTOGK AT© POULTRY -

ゾat七le oooocooooooooc 
^Brabaos »

0
<>e««ooooo« 

Horses 00000 • o o o o o 0o < 
J-ff oo«ooo«ooooooooc 

、-七 S ooeooooooo o o o o « 
0 h !L clvc n S OOOOOOOOOOOO 
丄ソ， ooooooooooeoooa 

Eggs 
v̂ h Jt ClC©Ho ooooeooooc 

uiOlCS OOOOOOOOOOOO。 
F』IMPLBMffS -

？lows o。o « o « o。o • o o •。0 
Wo oooeooooooood 

Tractors ««
0
«. •o»•«o o 

“•Ll 0000000004 

mSCELLANHJUS …。…… 

Kilo 

Nimber 
H 

Number 

Number 
N 
II 

do Damage to ^ricu.lture - The following table reflects the 
damafes to faim crops, livestocks and poultry and farm implements。 

TOTAL QJJANTITY OF WAR DAMAGES TO AGRICULTURAL CROPS, 
LIVESTOCK AND POULTRY AND FAHJ HvIPLELlH-JTS IN THE 

PHILIPPINES 3Y ITEM DECELIBER 8 , 1 9 4 1 TO JULY 4 , I 9 4 5 , 
DOE TO LOOTING, REQUISITION, FIRE, COlFISC/iTION, ETC。 

1 t 
ェセ6131 ；U n i t , Quantity 

3 
338 

75。 
000 
390 
700 
620 
180 
800 

93。 
710 

15 
；78 
00 
！39 
75 

23ら 

288, 

6 
5' 
l丨 

1
0
2 

9 

34.451 
1,393 
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(Census year) 7,3〇れ,3〇0 
7,720,200 
8,672,900 

These estiimtes arc based on the assumption thct existing 丄 a D o r supply 
bears the sane rc.tio to population as the labor supply in 1939* The casualties 
resultir^ from in^ssacres by the Jepejaese, the bettle for liberr.tion r.nd other 
•car causes roay reduce the estimates for by from 2 to 4 per c^nt. 

3 . Effect of v;cr on rc.te of -nro^rese of inclustriclizetion end cconoir-ic 
develo'incnt 

The destruction wrought by cr.ueed g jseriouc sftbc.cK： to the progress 
of industrialization and cconciTiic development. 3efore the ¥.anile, and 
comniercial centers v;ere teeming v.ith Icrge factories end industrial plants 
v.ith all the modern &gnipijient and facilities for turning out hl^h-grade rianu-
fc.ctirree in comaiercial quc.ntitics• HOT.ever, the siigrT :.:ills, rope factories, 
cigar and cigcxette factories, coconut oil 二ills, etc•,…ere lr.id ^rostrate 
in the "v.cke of tHe liberation and unable to produce sorely needed goods. It 
• ill take considerable time before production can catch up て.ith the derncind 
both for local consumption and for e ^ o r t . Llany of the pre'.xr operators -depend 
lastly on て/ar dai'Xge peyinents for the rebuilding of their business but so fc.r 
no parents have been rxde so that the prospects of er.rly recover?/ of the pre•— 

rete of induetrie.lizction and ccononic development is very dexk. Eelir.bili-
teticn is ^rec.tly hendienpped by lack of cocl and motive pov;er, heavy machinery 
end pe:riiCLps tGclinioel guidance. 

ith 41 out of the 43 su^er cenxrcls destroyed and 73 out of the li
;
.S srぶ 

rrdlls totally doLtrcyed, production of sugar end luiribcr is very insi^nificarxt, 
as conipered to prewar production. The seine is true with the mining industry. 
Onl：- coprc. is recovering rrpidly with 4_5,GOO tons chipped to the U.S. in 
June as compared to 33,000 prc^rr monthly cverr.ge» The rvcrrso for the eix 
months enuin^ June,19た-て,び hov,ever 23,600 tons, 

2,. ConsuiniJtion level of foodgtnff^ ？.nd other con^rrxrc qooCs.-

Bicc^-Boncstic concur：-!tion of ricc before the て:':r \,rs 35c d.c.ily 
.per capita, or c, ycc.rly per cap it r. coiisur.^ticii of 2.23 cr vanes of clcrncd 
rice (56 kilos to r cr.vr.nj . On the basis of an estirr tec populrti^n of 18,ん8〇, 
000 in 19^6, out of rhicli 69.5 Per cent const it irfce the rice-cr.tirig popuirtion, 
c. totc.l of 291283,400 ccvr.ncc of cloancd ricc touIci be necdocl to support the 
pcpulc.tion, c’.s cgr.inst the 1945~1%6 crop of 17,C67,1/L0 crvrncs of cleaned rice 
or e dcficicncy of 12,216, 260 ccv-:.ne£, uliich have to be cuppl5XC

1

 partly from. 
imports end, î e.rtly fron ricc subistitutcs', such as coriit ĉ s££?.vr., sebc, tv^ni 
and ether root crops. 

Sugc.r.-Prev;rr ccnsunption of sugr.r is Cotii:rtGc
q

 r.t 7 kilos or Ij^k 
pounds per cepitc., or c. total estir.r.ted 1$46 consui.:ption of c.bout 1丄ン2,0〇0 
£liort tons- Tho e£ti:r£:tod 1946-47 output of the ^ sugcr centrc.ls in czerc-
tion is 66»000 short tone. There is, thus, c. ehcrtc.se of 76,OCC short tons, 
;vhich have to be who 11 v supplied from iixorts* 

2. Brief suixiary of the effects of the \var on r'o”.ulg"tion and r̂ iTpo-,.でr 

The occupation of tlie Fhilr pines by tlic enemy brought untold hardship 
and suffering unon the people^ For about "tliree years the inhabitants ；.ere 
cn the verge of starvction, Food supply

 T

;:as forcibly aprrorrirted by the 
eneiau, food product ion ras haxperea end the 1iv-^i-hood of ifhe people Sisrupted 
by 7,ar operations. ^The inevitable der.oralization of the populetion resulting 
from the savage fight for existence iLanifested itself mcirkeclly even after 
liberation in i n c r eこ c r i m e s end social unrest. Yv

T

ar nortality v:o.s enormous • 
Based on available figures, it may be estirxited at around half a million. 

The estirmted labor supply for the Philippines, including all persons 10 
years old and over v;ho are able to vork, follcn.s: 

19.39 
1941 
1946 
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Unit of 
エ terns measure 

Sugar, centrifugal•。…Short tons 
Lumber Board feet 
Abaca Bales 
Copra Tons 
Coconut oil

 0
。

000
_。。

0
。

0
 Tons 

Cigars Thousand 
Electricity •。…•。。。。• Kwh (thousand) 
Mines

9
 gold •。” Pesos 

Present 

13,000 
150,0000000 

237.000 
200,000 

(Nil) 
5O

0
ooo 

50,000 
1,000,000 

Meat•- Meat consumption in Manila before the war was 16 kilos or 
35-2 pounds per capita. Because of the excessive postwar price of meat which 
is practically eight times that of prewar, a large portion of the population 
has shifted to canned food stuffs, mostly imported from th© United States. In 
view of present difficulties of collecting statistics on slaughtered animals 
in the provinces

 9
 however

 9
 there are now no means of ascertaining actual con-

sumption data^ エt may be stated that the war had a most disastrous effect on 
the livestock industry。 

Imports for consumption of the following articles may throw more light 
on consumption levels of various other comnoditiesi vaノ 

エ terns 
Grains and preparations 
Meat and dairy products 
Vegetables and 

preparations。o*»o。o«» 

Textiles and icaiiu-
factures 

NOTE: (a) 

4a. ^resent level of production in significant industries as compared 
wii:,h significant prewar yeapg。一 

The present level of production compared with significant prewar 
years is as followss 

PRODUCTION 

1941 Per capita imports 1945 Per capita im~ 
CKilosJ 

20,824,766 

28,986,842 

(Soo yards) 

167,568,210 

\
1
/
 

s
 

d
 

r
 

0
3
 
2
 
s

 
9
 

3
8
 
7

 
V

 
9
 

•
 
•

 
•

 
s

 
•
 

8
 
1

1
 a

 9
 s

 

(Kilos) 

6 5 , 8 2 3 , 5 4 8 
1 2 , 4 8 0 , 5 7 6 

6,800,886 

(So. yards) 

835,108 

ports(Kilos) 

3.57 
.67 

-37 

(Sq, yardg) 

.045 

9^1 estimated population 16,771,900 

945 “ “ 18,415.100 

5. Present level of agricultural production compared with prewar.-

Rice.- The area planted for the crop year ending June 30,1946 was 
1•653,820 hectares, or about 21 per cent less than the prewar average of 
2 , 0 9 6 , 7 2 0 hectares. The production was 36,134»280 cavanes (44 kilos) of palay 
(rough rice) or about 3O per ceat below the prewar average of 51。4〇1。ら6>0 cavani 

Corn.- The area planted for the crop year ending June 3 0 , 1 9 4 6 was 
5220570 hectares or about U3 psr cent less than the prewar average of 911(,11).0 
hectares., The production wn.s 5»178,000 cavanes of 58 kilos or about 45 per 
oen

J

 belov/ the prewar average of $,If.21
t
71̂ .0 cavanes. 

Sugar (centrifugal),- The present production is about 11,646,000 kilos, 
or about $8.82 per cent less than the prewar average of about 990,000,000 kiloi 
Tiiere were 5 centrals that started operation out of 42 before the war。 About 
じ more are ready to operate this coining milling season. There are at least twi 
more sugar centrals ready to operate but they lack sucar cane to mill. 

Fre-

遞 
•4. 044,000 

400,oo6 
342,000 
738,000 
243.000 
331,600 
175.400 
700,000 

1 
340 

1 

2
 

6
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“br.cr.-_ The production \.as about 30,000,000 kilos for the crop ；xr.r 
ennin^ June 3C,1946, or e.bcut 83 per cent less than the prov.?.r avercgc of 
177.730,000 kilos. 

Cozrc. - The production for the crop year ending June 30,1946 \Tas 
ebout 200,000,COO kilos or about 70 per cent less than the prev:ar average of 
c.bout 673.000,000 kilos. 

6 . Present scrvic&r.ble qu&ntity of reilroed rolling stocky ti-ucks
r
 p.ir 

and -c.r.ter trcnsport fequiprisnt (oce&n-goina： e.nd inlrnd'), e.s compg_r&fl with & 
significant pi-ev,r.r period .-

The totc.l rolliAS stock of the Kr.nilr- Reilror.d Conpp.ny is 1,905, includ-
ing 73 locor.»tives, 67 peEsenger coechee,エ rr.il no tor ccr, 36 express, 
baggage and ccboose cr.rs, end 1*728 freight errs end service errs. As con-
pr.red v;ith the serviceable rolling stock in 1941, there is a aecrer.se of 29 
per cent in the ^rr.nd totc.l, r.nd of the folioて,-ing perccntr.gec in the dif-
ferent types of rolling stock： About 49 per cent for locomotives； about 68 
per cent for passenger cocches； over 9-8 per cent for rc.il motor errs;100 per 
cent for rail irjotor err trailers (in 1941 there v;ere 100 of then) ； cibout 62 
per cent for express, beggr^e and cab'oose errs; and e.bout 17 per cent for 
freight c c t s end. service carr. 

The Philippine Eailv;ay Corapeny uhich operates lines in Cebu r.nd "Fancy 
islands hc.ve not c.s yet cubaitted figures.ムvx.ileble prev;c.r fijureE for this 
conpr.ny give e total rolling stock of 388, consisting of 16 loconotives, 
pr.sscijger ccxs and 266 freight errs. The Cities of Iloilo Sebu zere 
burned by the Japanese end it is rnrc than likely thr.t r.large perccntcge of 
tho rolling stock of the Philippine Rcilv;ay Conpr.ny night he.ve been destroyed 
thci-e. 

The tranv;&y transportation syst&m in Ifenile., en /jnerican_enterpriEe tlic.t 
fei* h"S.'d r,r6uiid.150 Clectrxc cars end 30t> buses, entirely ripec. 

out. The only visible r.ssote in Ifenil?. r.re the trexiT;&y lineご not renoved 
or destroyed by the JeKnesc. 

Before the f;r.r, there TCre.t::。conpeni&s thnt op err. ted schcdulod air-
lines. Thoy rrc the Philippine A5.r Trcnsr-ort Cocpcny rrxd the Iloilo-Ncgros 
Air Egress Conpr.ny. fron the foregoing Scheduled opcrctors, there '.vere 
six non-schcduled. operators. All of tho above echccluled end non-sched!u丄ed 
ci':e.rr.tors lied duriac the fiscal yec.r 1 S39-19̂ 1-0 n total of over 20 serviceable 
passenger r.nd freight planes that carried 16,209 revenue pr.ssengers and a 
total freight of 3,098,271.50 pounds in sir m i l r.nd rir express. As of June 
1946, there v. ere d total of 37 cor^icr cial r.irp lanes op err tod by the Far I ast-
ern ムir Trc.nsportction Corapr.ny andtho Fhilipjinc Air Lines for pe.£senger end 
freight service and both hnve reported c. totel revenue pcssenser.of 107,367 
and. freight consisting of rr.il end exprees totalling 7,757,258.30 pounds for 
the first hr.lf of the current yerr. The stetistics indicate oonsidere.ble 
progress over prevrr.r connercial eirplr.ne operations. 

^vc.ilcble prev.-£r stetistics on Tvct&r transportation c.re those for 1940 
v."hen 730 ocoEn-£oing vessels xrith e total net tonnege of 2,755,606 and 3,5k7 
inter-is lend and bey rud river cre.fts of different categories (stoaners, 62； 
steen launches, 28； rx>tor ships end cuxilicry schooners, 98;latuaches, borts, 
bcjiccs rith no tor, 820 j scot;s, lighters, br.rges, cp.scos, and bancr.s, 960； 
c.nd sailing vessels,1,515), rith e. total net to image of 154,613.20 vrere cn-
gaged in foreign end interislejid end bey end river trade during that year. 
Fostrar statistics on this subject are still being gathered, although it is of 
cordon knowledge and obscrvctinn the.t rater trr.nsporte.tion facilities v;ere 
sxx>ns 版 v.orst hit during the ~ar. The ocem-going vessels vrhich mostly 
belonged to the belligerents ixrc prrcticclly ell riped out, and present ocean-
going steaners coming to the islands r.re the for； survivors and several new 
ijiiorican-ovmed steencrs. Ninety' (90) per cent of the stecners belons to the 
United States ； the rest belong to the 3ritish, Norv.e-ir.ns, Dutch, Danish c.nd 
Chinese. 1're.ctically all tho inter isle, nd stoaners verc sunk during the . 
A fc-v; of the ratcr-crrfts cf lesser ce.tcsories, oostly aciling vessels, \Tere 
e.blc to survive. 
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Prewar 
production 
51,妙1乂60 
9,421,740 

Attainable level 
of productipn 
40,000,000 
6

f
ooo

0
ooo 

Products unit 
Rice …。Cavanes 
Corn

 e
 0

 M 

Sugar -
Centrifusal……Kilos 
Muscovado " 

Abaca
 w 

Tobacco «o o.»oo00 0 o “ 
Copra

 00
««

0
»。"0

0
<>。 

Coconut o i l • … … T o n s 
Lumber Board feet 
Embroideries 
Cigars … … … … T h o u s a n d 
Cigarettes •。。。0 • •。 ” 
Cordage ••…。… 
Shoes 0 oo»»«oooooo« Pairs 
Electricity …。… K w h 

8 . y / h a l ? ^xtfflt has the ImX of .^yiQuitura； flitf tfidugipr^l ^cui-oTOnt 

impaired iTmnediate recover^ 

In the case of th© sugar and tobacco Industry
9
 the lack of agricultural 

and 丄“clustrieil equipment will retard 60 per cont of their immadiate recovery® 
In the case of lowland rice® about 10 per cent and for upland rice and c o m

0 

abou.t 30 per cent。 In the case of abaca® it will be around 40 per c©nt
0 

for copra
9
 20 per cent

9
 and for coconut oil,5。per cent# 

9o To wtet extsn^ has 彻 ？ f raw m ^ i e ^ s ijnwir^ taB^iat^ 
recover^? 

The lack of raw imtorials has not seriously impaired the immediate re-
covery of industries, with the exception of the sugar industry and to 30m© 
extent of the abaca industry as almost all the sugar plantations were destroyec 
and some of the big abaca plantations were partly damaged due to war operation; 
The scarcity of hides for the shoe and slipper industry and for cannisters for 
the canning industry also handicaps the rapid recovery of these intJustries。 

As regards motor vehicle transportation, there were registered in 
(only coraolete available record) a total of 20,236 motor tracks and 33，8)8 
automobiles® or a total of 5 4 ^ 3 4 motor cars and trucks•丄n 19459 the pre-
liminary registration figures give a total of 8,996 for motor trucks and 
3,824 for automobileSj, Manila and Rizal excluded, or a total of 12,820。 
Adding the registration of 12,613 trucks and automobiles for Manila 
and Rizal for the first part of 1946, we get a full total of 31,909 motor 
car registration in 1945-1946. This full total compared with that of 194° 
shows a decrease of over per cent。 

7。Sstin^t^d ^ti^ir^bl日l^vel,明 compared wii^h prewar output, or 
industrial Qnd qgyicultural ?rodî 1?iori。一 

a. Dajnage to agricultural industry during the war may be conservatively 
estimated at about 33-1/3 per cent of the total value. 

、a; Sugar industry - 43 P®r cent of sugar centrals and refineries. 
(b) Tobacco industry - 60 per cent of prewar production. 
(c) Abaca industry - 30 per cent of the plantations

f
 excluding 

damages to stripping machines, sheds, etc., worth more than 
i?3,000,000, 

(d) Coconut industry - 5° per cent of the coconut oil and desiccated 

coconut factories, 40 per cent of copra driers, warehouses and 
other establistaents and 5 per cent of coconut trees. 

b. Attainable level of agricultural and industrial production assuming 
an adequate supply of raw materials and energy, compared with the prewar. 

190,000,000 350,000。000 
41 ,000,000 20,000,000 
77.730,000 100,000,000 
42,000,000 20,000„000 
.75,000,000 500,000,000 

343,000 10„000 
！ 4 0 , 4 0 0 , 0 0 0 1 0 0 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 

,755,000 j 1,000,000 
331,600 50,000 
,292,900 lp000 ,000 
,300,000 » 1,000,000 
,455,600 500,000 
175,400 75.000 

1
 
6
 

PI) 

3 

分3 
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rfc*ixvcr
 f
 the key to imncdirte recovery is the restoration of the -lants, hcr.vy 

rne.cliincr̂
r

 c.nd buildings to start sizeable production. The Philippincs is cn-
dov;ed vitli plenty of rav: r^terir.ls so tlir.t Ic-.ck of it is net so nuch a probDer., 

10• To '；/aet oxterxt has lack of transport facilities inqc.ircd irx:cdic.tc 
rccover:^? 

Iin..ediate recovery is bei^g ii?.ptded greatly by こle.de of sufficient 
transportation facilities e.nd this is particularly true in the case of inter-
island transportation which has been crii'plcd alrDst 100 per cent by the vrar 
and has affoctcd serious^ the shipnent of luiri>er and other building r^.terials 
as v;ell as of foodstuffs and other necessities of life to the devastated e.reas• 
The T;ide disparity betvrecn the living cost in I'lanila and distant provinces is 
due le.rgely to the lack of transportation facilities that hinder the flov; of 
coinaerce to and fron the r̂ s trope lis. But even in oversees ccmerce

 t
 the lack 

of lines t-> Europe ezd parts of Asia has left only tlie United States 
as the nerket for Philippine products uhich before the ^cr had a niuch Trider 
outlet, pcrticularly for leaf tobacco, copra, Manile henp, Manila rope, hides 
and skins, etc, 

11• To v;hat extent has the lack of finr.ncial r.:eans iin^c.ircd ir.zr£;clic.te 
rtcovers? 

3ccause of the insufficiency of gcvernnent revenues
f
 the Govcrnnent has 

not been able to undertake any ；vide-scale reconstruct ion v;ork. D a m g e d public 
b*mldings

f
 r^c.cls, bridges, port7/orks, railroads, etc., are not e.s yet repaired 

pending the receipt of the P240
f
000

f
000 she.re of the Government fron the 

Tydiiogs Y/ar Drj^age Conpensation Act. 

The sane can be seid of privete industry• Destroyed sugar centrals, 
tobacco factories, rice nilIs, lunber mills, coconut oil nills

9
 desiccated 

coconut factories, rope factories, distilleries, shoe factories, mining works, 
etc,, c.re still out of operation pending the receipt of eubstantiol capital 
to rehabilitate then or to supply the nuch needed capital eq.uipnent c.lmost 
totally destro3^ed by the v;ar. 

II • てER£ TO ^UE£TI0Nc XNGERNING LONG RiJTOE RECOVERY ひID IiyEI0でMEM
1 

I E C G H 
11c.^ Wliat is the level of consur:"otion of foodstuffe end other concuncrs 

£oods c.nd str.ndc.rdc of konsing, cnticipr.tccl curiii£_the next 13 nonths
 9
 five 

vcr.rs or :.]ore * 
(See e,nsv;er to question No.lj. ccnccrning the level of consumption of food-

stuffs and other consumers seeds Yv
T

ith the enormous destruction of dv;elling 
e£i:;ecially in urban centers, thousands upon thousends of people are housed in 
temporary structures devoid of the necessary sanitation facilities. It Day 
take 10 tc 巧 3

r

ears before prefer standards of housing is restored, 

12• Loes the vroduction 'pattern 'irorosed in the county's development 
prcy;ran differ r.iaterig.lly ftrori the ^revrar ^cittern end in v:hqt respects? 

The production pettern proposed in the country^ development Trill not 
differ rxiterielly fron the prer;ar pe.ttern except in the sugar industry uhere 
production r£.y be reduced as a result of the destruction of mchinery T/hich 
uas extensively used in this industry before the v;or. Owing to the destruc-
tion of v;ork r.ni:^l£, the use of fexn rxicliinery is contenrlr:ted in the pro-
duction of rice, corn, tobacco, root crops and vegetables besides sugejr ct'yie. 

13 • To vrlast extent do the chan^cs ^rojoscd in the prevrrr production 
pattern' tcke into account the ::r>dific,。tiっns in the oconcnics of other countries 

The production pattern proposed, for rice is based on the rxthods of pro-
duction in the United States. For this purrose, an agricultural nission 〜:as 
sent to the United States a ytor ago to study the possibility of nechanizing 
our rico industry in a runner sinilc.r to thc.t of the United States • 

To •.licit e?:tont arc such tho result of a nocissi-ky to increase 
exports? 

Our principal export crops before the \:c.r rere. sugar, copra, coconut oil, 
desiccated coconut, abe.ee

t
 and tobacco. Before the i\cx (l^bfi) , v;e exported 
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40,517,858 kilos of desiccr.tcd coconut；177.453,863 kilos of inedible coco-
nut oil; 8,445,294 kilos of edible coconut oi}; 3 4 1 , 9 3 0 7 1 kilos cf copra； 
923 ,542,586 kilos of centrifuge I suger ： 52,931^183 kilcs" cf refined sugar; 
1 ? , 2 2 2 , 1 1 8 kilos of leaf vob-rco; 2 C 6

;
2 3丄，102 ciders;I36,556,743 ci^crottes; 

and about- l
r
i|O2

?
720 bales (12C、S kilos'} of ’u^T.rrafactured aor.ca, or about 

177“1_00,000 

In 1945 we exported only about 9,000,つ00 kilos of oc^rr. and about 
2,400,000 kilos of abace., end d-xrij£ ！:he first half of 191；.6, we exported only 
around 141,733,000 ifilr;ど of coprc and about 20,000,000 kilos cf rbrcr. We 
liave not ezrorted Giigar' a.nd てoしご.cco

0
 To increase, therefore： our production 

both of the reぶ rcit^ri^ls .nd of the rar.nul'ac-Lur̂ d producbs ard thereby in-
creasing our cxportr

?
 ve nesrl agricultural and industrial rachinery to rc-

plcce those destroyed during tno war。 

15• Tr. whz'.t extent ere ruch chafes tho result of.し nccec-5. ity to ご.ecr(へrse 
iivrorts? 

Our rice iroduction bs.fore the tjqt vvas &bout ^l^hpO^OO^ cevanes of 
ン&le、y (rough rice) and our yeer.ly averc^s rice importation fror.: 1537 to 194^-» 
excluding about 15-000 cabanee eyportec

1

 at the some t ir:ie v.as 7 5 ^ » c a vanes 
of' 56 kilos» or eguivzleri'b to about ccve.nes of pelay

e
 The yearly 

consump tion of :.:illed rice no?; in the FliiiiiT'ines is cboufc 30,0CC,000 xjrvenes, 
or about 60,000,000 c?jrr.nos of pr.lr?.y

c
 Cur production vc.s only rbout 15,000, 

0C0 c£vr.nes (3ら
9
00、）

r
000 ceivane.s of pcilpy^ <, Hence, a deficit of about 12,00C, 

000 cavanes of 56 kilos
?
 or 2i!.，G00,C00 ce.venes (I4 kilos、of 1:で.ley て.:.hich v;e 

1IC.VG
#
 to I::iport froニ other countries • Hence, the need for the use of fern 

iv^cliinery for tlie irr.ediate recovery of the industry to ninir.ize our riae 
inport • 

Bevclopnent of vest potential resource? and Indus tr ial izr.t ion of our 
country, through the introduction of Dcde'rn eg.u5.rncnt and the trairxi'ig of • 
the necessary porsonnel

5
 would help decror.se iniorts

 d
 Such in;orted it ens 

as ic/ Gr, textiles, fish, vegetp.bles, cocoa, cox'fee, SU3しr, edible 
oils, ctc. could be eafil), producec

1

. or processed locally. 

16. To v. hat extent ero_ guch chciigos dcr end exit u'^on the ir*.: ort-'tion 
of cc.; itご.1 eiui""T..ent? 

In the rxnuf^cturing industries, such che.iigeG €xe largely dependent 
on the iixortation of capital equii.nent 

17* To "what extent are ruch chantss dc" cnr'.ent 〇n ir^ortGi rav. • I'.tcric.Is? 

The i-rorosed cLanges £.0 not cierenfi cn inv^ortod rc w r;.r.teriels as the 
Philippines abounds in ra"V7 rp,terialSn e::ce;: t irjlus orial che:::icals „ Conver-
sion of raw iv^terihils irrtつ finished products through the use of ini or ted 
capital eŷuirてユ已！！七 is one of our distinct needs

3
 if irxc'.ustr io.lisc.tion is to 

be encouragcd. 

18. "iiVhet addition to^ the stock of trucks, r^ilror.d ；• r;ater r.nd 
e.ir trans'.or t- equi"'--:6nt are, required， in order to nest the reels set bv the 
l〇iv;er rこ r e c o v e r y c'svelô -'nerit. rrorrrm..e? To t ezrtcni- cr.n xhese 
add it ions be met ocii- of dor.:est ic rrcduct ion? 

Inforir^ation ceJled for by this question c m be fittiij shed only by higher 
authcritie£ — those that shape the brsic policies cf the government. Hcw-
ever it car: be assumed thr.t it is a basic i.olicy to restore the r-ublic 
utilities to their ^re^vr status to imTove the living c つ！̂. it ions of the m s s 
of the people; in v;hich case the nuch needed equiprjent nuet have to be 
inperted as they core not rxmufactiircfi locally, The ^hilij rines is as yet 
in cn a^Ticultiiral ste^e of develcrm己rrt

5
 r.nd it vrill teke ycr.rs before 

hcc.vy industries can be successfully estcblished here. 
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100.0 

40c 8 
41.1 
1.2 

ii.2/i7„21^ 

3.354,576 
37,977 

TOTAL
 0 

A. iculture 
)c aestic and 
Professional 

/I.21QN278 

2 , 9 8 1 ^ 5 5 1 

123,508 
6 5 4 3 8 

personal service。 
VI CO OOOOOOOOO 

Axblic service (not elsev/here 
classified)。。 4 8

9
卿 

J ishillg OOOO。
00
。。0000»0«000000 175 0 8/j.l 

Forestry and hunting …。。…。 24o9°3 
Mining and quarrying ……

。
。o も25 

Manufacturing & mecho エindustries 3明 
Trans。and communication »。"。 202

fl
449 

••• i
 1

 cU- O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O /{î } 0 ^Oi^. 

0 0 o O o o » o o q b o < » o o o o o o o o o o 1 7 1 ft Q 9 9 

1/ Includes 3^k5s>7^3 housewives, 

18 ac ^Jhat additions are contemplated m construction of roads
n
 bridges

g 

aQ^ wqi^ywjyg a ^ aiyf^elds fpr economic d^velopmeqto 

The primary ot jective of the Republic is to repair prewar damaged roads 
and bridges9 portworks

9
 public buildings (including schools and hospitals)

5 

airways, lighthouses
9
 and the government operated railways； that is to say, 

restore them to their serviceable status before the war。 However
0
 in re-

constructing devasted Manila
9
 there is a project to build a national capitol 

with an outlay of some B45i>000
d
000

o
 There is also a project to build a mili-

tary road connecting San Fernando
9
 La Union province and Batangas, Bataxigas 

province
 9
 and another project to repair pre sent piers and warehouses in Manila 

and to build several new ones on the north side of the harbor to provide for 
future expansion of the volume of trade passing through the port of Manila。 

All the foregoing projects will be built from the sum of P240.000
 9
000 

to be set aside for said government projects in the Tyd ing
9

 s War Damage Act。 
The sura of B150

9
000

9
000 has already been made available for the military 

road
 P
 the repair of the University of the Philippines。the construction and 

repair of portworks
9
 construction of the proposed national capitol

9
 and the 

repair of public schools and hospitals。 

New projects of similar magnitude may also be undertaken in naval and 
military reservations of the United States in the islands

0
 including the 

constructiono improvement and expansion of airways for military use within 
those bases。ェt is the United States Government that will finance them。 

19o Significant data on the trend of birth and death ratesn nopulation 
shift So and related factors «> 

The birth rate in the Philippines appears to have registered no appre-> 
ciable change

r
 the rate per thousand population in 1940 being 32。28 as com-

pared with 32083 in 193L ェ
11

 years between these two periods the variation 
in the birth rate is insignificant• On the other hand

9
 the death rate per 

thousand population indicated an appreciable improvement
0
 as the rate dropped 

from 17。97 per thousand in 1931 to l6
0
_5。in 19な0。 It is estimated that about 

35O
9
000 persons are added annually to the population。 （•Population as of the 

Census of I939 was l6
0
00 0

 9
303

?
 estimated as of January 1

0
 1%6 it was 1 8

0
8 2 i 6

0
O O < 

Prior to the war
8
 there were two classes of population movements in the 

Philippines,
0

 namely
9
 (a) natural current and ("b) artificial movement

9
 the 

latter representing persons transfering to scarcely populate” areas inder 
Government auspices for the purpose of settling lands of the public doraain

0 

For the period 1931-1939 the average number of homeseekers sent under Govern-
ment assistance was 2

9
520

o
 The natural current may be divided into two kinds 

migration from rural to rural coinmunities and the drift of rural population 
toward the cities。 No data are available regard ing these movementso 

The following table shows the occupational distribution of gainful 
vvorkers in the Philippines? 

GAINFUL ；/0RKERS TEN YEARS OLD AND OVEK, BY GENERAL OCCUPATION 
GROUPS AM) BY SEX.2 1 9 ^ ‘ 
5

 s Per cent 
Occupation Group

 3

 皿IBER distribution 
容 ̂ ale t Females Both sexesi Both sexes 

6
 1

 3
6

 1
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6
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.libb.k^^ 
456,370 
478

t
084 U 

103.415 

49.620 
180,569 

2 6 , 8 2 0 
47.019 

6 0 1 , 3 3 5 
203,596 
48,899 

2 7 0 . 7 6 6 

o
 
9
 

一

 3
3
 



P o c .ぬ. 2 8 8 0 Ps.ge 10. 

In view of the unsatisfactory conditions in agricultural employments, 
there is a tendency for rural people to seek work in ur"ban centers. As a 
result, a considerable proportion of those formerly engaged in agricultural 
activities may now "be found either in trade or in U. S. Army en^loyinent• 

20 • Can the co ntenrrl^t ed chaises in the prevar pre duct icn pattern take 
•place vith the -prebent labon.r frrcc ； taicin^： i.nto account, a^eraae working hours? 

Whatever cliangec ar分 con、emplaned in preva/r production pattern, the labour 
supply is more thxi adLequ^te tv) meet th.3 damarxds of both agriculture ana 
industry for man:，years to cぐme. 

21• To v/hat ejebent do such changes require tho transfer of la"bour "between 
different re.tices of • • c , pa.rticulaily oetween agriculture and industry? 

Expansion in agriccJ ix:re ani ind.ustry will net "be handicapped as far as 
la."bor reqi.,irement is concer..ied. Prior to the vra.rj it the practice of "big 
enterprises to send repreisntatives to recruit la."bornrs in areas where la.tor 

plentiful. Vith improved s^3tem of later recruitment and. "better conditions 
of employment, the labor needs of "both agricul,し ure pud indue try can "be easily 
met. 

22. To whpt extent vill such trangfers require the increased mechaniza/bion 
of agriculture? 

The need for increased mechanization of agriculture is not so much due to 
lack of manpower on the farm as we have e n o ^ h cf them, tut we lack vrork 
animals* Before the war, there were at out l,870,

fc

)C0 work animals on farms, 74 
per cent of which were cara."ba.os* The number of carabaos left is about 40 per 
cep.t >elow the prewex of a"bout 2,4C©,000 eiid our cattle is about 70 per cent 
oelow 'the prewar of about 1,400,000 heads* The number of work animals left 
after the var is probably around 40 ptr eont belov th# prewar population. 
The tranefer of la^or ^ t v a e n e^riculture inductty will not l»erM8# 

wmch the need for mecheniMition of agriculture. 

33• To vhat extent will the develo-oment Drogramme require an increase of 
certain categories of workers, or of managerial or scientific personnel? 

As Philippine economy is essentially agricultural, the great "bulk of the 
vork:.ng people are engaged in agricultural pursuits. At present unskilled 
lator predominates as mechanization in agriculture is negligible. In 1939 
there were 247,146 skilled laborers, most of whom were employed, in industrial 
and commercial enterprises and other non-farming occuoptions. The iromter of 
skilled laborers ms.y have increased since liberation as a. result of the train-
ing they gained while in the en^loy of the U.S. A m y . In Greater Manila area 
alone, the U.S. Army was employing some 70,000 skilled workers in August 1945• 
A large proportion of these probaoly "belonged to th© "onskilled class "before 
t^e w&r雛 the total HMsibev o£ ckilled workers in î Ianila was 35

1
941 only# 

M exA f u t w . AwbsAb^ Mc.e.ity of trainlm AAHf^riaX cotf 
i c l n t & X U perMiUMlt ihieh th« w^Aly laok«» 鄉 1 a order, fhm 
tralniftg of additionax skilled worker* nay likewise be neCee8ery. 

24. lo vha.t extent is a. surplus of labor puticiioated over the next few 
years, and in wha.t categories of workers? Is migration of such labour coil— 
.teciip̂ ated• to v/hat extex^t ？ 

Ac alreedy indieftted ©leeiAere in thiB report
 f
 BVCPplMe ©epeelally la 

the unskilled class will "be ^vailr"ble to meet future expansion in agriculture 
and in industry. In 1939, the total numlDer Qf ver.infully employed persons 
10

 t
yeers old rnd over vas 5,320,730, excluding housewives, and the lator 

supply was 7,304,300, or a surplus of 1,983,580, or 37.03 per cent. Prior 
to the war, the mobility of lp*bor from island to island presented some dif— 
iiculties although in centers of populrtion like Luzon, la"bor motility was 
facilitated "by the network of good roads and cheap means of transportation. 
The migration of laborers from one area, to another v/ill depend upon the 
demands of einploying enterprises. 
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Desiccated coconut。。。"。“ 
Copra meal or cake。"。。… “ 
Tobacco leaf

 0
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Abaca 。 • 書 。 。 Bale 

280 What is the expected balance of parents for the years 19ム6麵ム8, and, 
if possible。 later years? 

ASIATIC COUOTHIES 
1941 1940 

Count Export s Import s Exoort s Imr)orts 

27o To what extent are difficulties contemplated in marketing exports 
in countries which can provide needed imports, or can T)av in convertible 
foreign fiychflnge? 

The chief difficulties met with at present in marketing exports to 
countries which in prewar years provided needed imports are the lack of 
transportation facilities 
the war。 

Country 

and the much reduced rate of production caused by 

E Q R 0 P丽 COUNTRIES 

1939 1938 
Exports Imports Exports Import^ 

25o 7fhat volume, of imports is reouired annually for 19ZI6-1J.8 (and if 
possible

0
 for a longer period) to fulfill the recovery and develoDment pro-

issaagl 

The present upward trend of Imports« the value of which avarage a 
monthly value of 45 million pesos。or with an estimated total of 54° million 
pesos for this year (1946) as compared with 271 million pesos for and 
569 million pesos for 194°? may be the requirement annually to fulfill re-
covery and development program

0 

The accompanying table (Table A) of imports shows the comparative value, 
by commodity group, for the years 194^-48» 1941 and 1%。。 

260 Ithat volume of commodities can be available annually for export 

XhQ r^CQV^ry ^ d ^ l Q P ^ n t 令？ 

There seems to be at present a bright prospect in the exportation of 
r3esiccated coconut

 B
 copra

0
 copra meal

 fl
 and abaca

9
 as the United States is 

apparently quite willing to absorb our available output, and Sp
a
in

9
 one of 

our best markets for tobacco, could be made to renew the export trade• The 
volume required for desiccated coconut exports so as to meet the 1941 level 
is about 57 times; copra

fi
 5 times; abaca

9
 紅0 times； leaf tobacoo, 3 times； 

and copra meal
9
 27 times

9
 under the recovery。 

The following table shows the guantity of several exported items for 
the first six months of 1946 oompared with the calendar year of 1941

: 

Coonoditjr Unit Jan,-June 19ム1 

5
 5
 2
 

p
 

辽 5A961O760 

5
9
907,845 

1,599,749 
170,483 
172,934 

^ 3,687,494 
3.719.348 
934.982 
388,788 

265.H9 
57^284 
55,396 

2 , 0 1 4 
282,794 

0
5
4
2
9
 

8
 7

 9

 9

 3
 

8
 3

 2

 7
6
 

9
 9

 9
 

1
1
 3
 

5
 3
 

The expected balance of payments for the years 194^-1948 is shown in 
the attached table (Table B)。 



Doc. No. 27C7-K Page 12 

(•？art of Answer to question No. 25，page 11.) 

TABLE A -VALUES OF PHILIPPIM： IMPORTS j 1946, 1941 and 1 % 0 

Commodity Group 1946-1948 1940 

TOTAL ： P^0,000.000 ' 
I t 

9 271, 1 8 2 , 7 8 0 
1 

269,462, 542 

Textile fibers and manufactures.• 65, 000 ,000 ' 60 ,612,038 ‘ 51, 568 
Lfetals and manufactures . 38 •000 ,000 ' 39 ,035,470 • 51,787 .768 
Electrical machinery and appliances 6 ,000 ,000 * c 801,476' 7,591 ,327 
Vehicles and parts ： 20, 000 ,000 1 10 614,482' 12,300 960 

24 000 ,000 ' 29 946,662, 32,198 086 

55. 000 ,000 1 16, 010,420 • 14.337 679 
20， 000 ,000 ' 13, 0 0 0 , 7 1 2 ' 130007, 952 

34 ,000 ,000 ' 11 , 1 6 3 , 6 3 4 ’ 9,285, 511 
Chemicals, drugs, dyes & medicines 18 ,000 ,000 ' 10 ,205,974' 8,137 ,901 

5 ,000 ,000 ' 7 ,107,480 • 5,291,520 
Inedible animal products。••••••• J l ’ 000 ,000 ' 4 ,557,602 1 3.225 .803 
Vegetables & vegetables preparationsl9i ,000 ,000 ' 4 , 2 0 3 , 1 2 2 • 4 , 1 6 0 ,993 

9. 000,000 ' 4 ,008,606 i 2,710 .597 
Explosive, fireworks & amnuiiitions 1 ,000 ,000 ' 3. 769,480 « 3.342 

iTish anc! fish products •ノ 8 ,000 ,000 ' 3. 2 7 0 , 0 9 6 , 3.045 ,813 
27 ,000 ,000 ' 3 ,059，236 • 3.302 ,816 

3, 000 ,000
 1 

2 ,479.648. 2,757 142 
Paints, pigments & varnishes "

 9
 J 2 ,000 ,000

 1 

2 ,069,252' 1,941 ,874 
Fertilizer & fertilizing materials 17 ,000

 1 

1 ,725,340' 6,966 ,119 
Sugar» molasses and syrups 3. 000 ,000 1 

1 ,438,320» 1,481 ,814 

fc^OSipS o o o o9«»0«oo 90»ooao«o»*o o m a o 1 ,000 ,000 ' 1 ,289,470, 796 ,4^9 
Gums

9
 resins, and oils 。•••。•"り

1 

6oo ,000 ‘ 934.774' 809 ,017 
1 ,000 ,000 ' 818,028« 9 1 2 >0ii5 

Vegetable oils and fats« edible"' 500 ,000 ' 3 7 3 . . 507 ,865 
200 ,000 ' 140,734' 522 ,868 

Nuts and preparations ««。》。《••••零
1 

1 ,000 ,000 * 1 1 1 , 6 5 0 ‘ 184 ,827 
Seeds (except oil seeds) & nursery stk .100 ,000

 1 

107,778' 105 ,582 
300 ,000 ' 87,550' 73 ,27ii 

60,000 ' 6 0 , 7 7 2 » 118 ,09s 

Animal oils and fats, edible •••« Coo ,000
 1 

38,836 ‘ 64 ,774 
Cork : 200 ,000 * 3 8 , 3 6 0 » 84 

b
821 

176 .423 ,000 ' 29,102,594' 26,725 »203 
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29. "-̂ hat r:ininuiv- cii.iounts of foreipn crec.its will be reaulnd e.nnu^l-1^ 
in 19il.6-191.S-8 and, if iros.sible; for a lcr^cT criod, to cover rny dcficit 
in tlie belance of internaticnal prynents? 

With e. go Vermont reserve of P 670,000,000 in round nui:ibers, the bulk 
of v,hich is derosited in the United States

 f
 and uith the ^liilip::ino leso 

pecsed! to the dollar, the Philippines not expect any deficit in the 
balance of internetional pa^a^nts this year or even in next fiscal yeex, :ro-
vided, of course, that the Philippine Rerublic does not draw fron sr.id re-
serves to ineet huge budgetary deficits estiirted to be around ？ 2 5 0 t C 0 0 , 0 0 0 
in the national budget for the fiscal yeex 1946-1947. The Rerublic, however, 
is not using its reserves for the purpose, and instead has passed several 
tazetion measures calculeted to cut dora the reported deficit by about 
550,000,000 thus, leaving a possible net deficit cf eround ^200,C00,C0C . 
11:is to r.:eet this exiected net deficit that the Governnent hr.s been press — 
ing its licet ion for 1つ&n in the United States, end. indications r.re that 
the President n y even go to the United States to negotiate such loans. 

In the 1S47-1948 fiscal yecr, e sinilar situation rx«y occur, elthough 
the several new taxation neasures nj-irrte to cut dovTn further the ex-
pectec. deficits as business r^ay be stiriu>.r.ted by ；?or f.rr.x̂ e ::’eyrもnts reported 
to comence ebout the letter pe.rt of this yecx^ Not until the destroyed 
industries are restored — sue；or» fining, coconut oil, rope, cigar, etc., 
will such threet to the e.bilrLy of the Philippines to neet br.lrnces of inter-
national pr.yrients g a i n s t her cease to be a serious problen to the nev; 
Republic. 

In the iiecxitazie, as r.bove indiceted, R. rininur:. 1OP.II of ^20^,000,000 
should be grcntecl e.nnue.lly to the Philippines for the next t\,o yerxs. 

fenile, Seitcricr 2 7 , 1 % 6 

(とニ丄） 

true copy 5 

/s/ __Leon Mr., Gonzeles 
LEON Mi.. GrOWJUS 

Director of the Census end Statistics 

Noveriber 19, 
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(Part of Answer to C^ueetion No. 28 page 11) 

TABLE B — ESTItlATSD BALANCE OF INTERNATIONAL 2雇 I M T G OF THE ？HILIPPINEE； 

1946 - 1 9 4 B 

G : e d i t s I t e ra s j V A L U 

"レ 

Exports of Merchandise 6,000,000 

1 
Receipts from foreign coun-

tries - W a r damages •»。
r
 -

書 
Interest on government in

r 

vestment 1,000,000 

•1 
Remittances of Filipinos , 

in foreign countries 13,000,000 
or 丨 

Civilian tourist expend i-, 
tures 200,000 

1 
Army and JIavy expend iturep 

including pensions to , 
veterans

 r
 233,000,000 

‘ 

TOTAL CREDITS -'253,200,000 
1 

BALANCE - -<385,900,000 

,639,100，000 

e (-Pfisoa) 

1947 

65,000,000 

100,000,000 

1.000,000 

13,000,000 

200,000 

193,000,000 

372,200,000 

262,900,000 

635,100,000 

1948 

130,000,000 

100,000,000 

1,000,000 

13,000,000 

200,000 

153,000,000 

397.200,000 

241,900,000 

639,100,000 

D e b I t e m s 

Imports of Merchandise 

Freight charges, insurance, 
etc 

Expenses of Filipinos 
abroad 

Interest on foreign, capital in 
the Philippines 

Philippine government debts to 
be paid 

TOTAL DEBITS 

V A L T,T E_42®SOS)-
19k6 .19^7 

590,000,000 

35,000,000 

100,000 

6,000,000 

8,000,000 

639,100,000 

639,100,000 

590,000,000 

35,000,000 

100,000 

10,000,000 

635,100,000 

635,100,000 

丄 m 

590,000,000 

35,000,000 

100,000 

14,000,000 

639,100,000 

639,100.000 
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Eepublic of the Philippines 

Office cf the President 

SHEffiAU OP THE CmSUS • STaTISTIGS, VIMILA 

Kovemter 19,1946 

TO WHOM IT KAY CONCE脈 

This is to certify that the e/ttached report dated September 27,1946 is 

a true copy of the statement cf informaticri furnished "by the rureau of the 

Census and Statistics, thru the Office cf the President, in answer to a 

questionnaire jreferred tc this Office "by the Department of Foreign Affairs, 

"bearing, among other things, en \rax damages, population, and economic 

conditions of the Philippines. 

/B/ Leon Ma. Gonzales 
(SEAL) Director 

Encl. 

Office of the President of tha Philippines 

Eepuolic of the ) 
fhiliDpines ) SS 

City cf Manila ) 

(S2AL) 
I,學ilLIO AESLLO, Chief of the Executive Office 

do here"by certify that Leon Ma. Gonzales, whose name 
appears signed to the attached certificate, was at the 
time of signing the said certificate, Director, ；Bureau 
of the Census end Statistics, Manila, Philippines, duly 
appointed snd au^lifiea and v/es, as such, Lirectcr, duly 
authorised "by "the laws of the Philippines to sign, the 
same, and that the full faith and. credit axe and ought to 
"be given tc his official acts; and エ further certify 
that I am well aconrdnted with his handwriting pnd verily 
"believe the signature and. seal affixed tc the said 
certificate are genuine. 

in witness whereof,エ he.ve hereunto set my hand 
at Manila, PiiiliD'oines, this 20th day cf UovemlDer, 
A. D.,1946. 

/s/ 亚ェLIO 13SLL0 

Chief of the Executive Office 
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4S幺真 
REPRODUCTION OF PERTINENT PARTS OE； CAPTURED DOCUMENTS 

EXHIBIT D 

DOCUMENT No. 

AUTHOR OR OWNER 

UNIT 

CAPTURED A.T 

DATE OF CAPTURE 

RECEIVED ATIS AE 

RECEIVED ATIS, SWPA 

TRANSLATED BY 

TRANSLATION CHECKED BY 

PHOTOGRAPHED ON 

OKADA Unit JL. 

Intramuros、 Manila C i t ^ 

X 、 24 February 1945 

2 March 194ぢ_ 

6 April 1945 

S/Sgt FUJIMOTO, Yoshlto, AUS 

1st Lt KADANIj. Tsuneo G.« AUS 

25 April 1945 

/s/ Sidney F . Mashbir 
Sidney F . Mashbir 
Colonel, S.C., 
Co-Ordinator 

cada Unit 

BATTALION EMERGENCY ORDER 1200 

1 . N o , 1 Bn. is fighting desperately under enemy fire and is 
defending Paco station to the last. Our stronghold near 
the tobacco factory has been broken through. 

2. Nn, 4 Coy and No. 5 Coy will send their reserve forces 
(including the reinforcements from the Okada Unit) and post 
them at important points around Dait»a Road to meet enemy 
frontal attack from the east. 

3. Secure important points along the different roads east of 
the Daitoa Road. There is no knowing from which road the 
enemy may attack. Keep this in mind when posting troops. 

4. Be careful to make no mistakes in the time of exploding and 
burning when the enemy invades. 

5. Beware of guerrilla firing, etc. from behind. 

When killing Filipinos, assemble them together in one 
lace as fer as possible,, thereby saving ammunition ana 
a V o u r . 

Disposal of the deaj^ hndlps will hp； troublesome
f
 so eithey 

assemble them in houses scheduled to be_burned or blown 一 
"or push Iheui inter th<i Jpiver • 



SUBJECT: JAPANESE VIOLATIONS OF THE 
LAWS OF WAR 

DATE OF ISSUE 23 June 194ヲ No. 72 ( S _ l 2 

SU.^JARY: 

SU.°)L丁了,：SNT NUI服..；R 2 to COMPILATION PHFPARED FOR, 
AND SUBMITTED IMDER OATH TO "CC^'ISSICN REGARD-‘ 
ING BREACHES OF THE RULES OF WARFARE BY THE 
JAPANESE FORCES" (CON O ^ A L T H OF AUSTRALIA), 
12 麗 C H 1944

r 

1 , T h i s renort st^nlerents A.
rn

IS Research Renort No. 72 
(previously AT.IS Information Bulletin M o . 1 C ) , and Sunr>i 
1 , a n d cor^rises a further record of violations of the 
lavs cf war noted in cocuments cn file at ATIS, GHQ, 
It contains information 'vhich has becore available 
from 12 October 1944 to 2卩 March 194 

2r Photolithographic corM.es of per tine nt sections 
of such original docuirents as are available 
relevant i den.'ifyinj： data are reiDrodrced as appendices 
to this reporto 

エセ has not been possible in all cases to establish 
definitely tho existence of a violation of the laws of 
war, but where data indicates the probability of such 
a violation the incident has been included, 

4
P
 Renort addixes evidence of one hundred and ninety-

four executions in South West
 D

acific Area； burning of 
guerrillas in the Philippine I s l a n d s t h e destrvction 
of riroperty; o f f i C a l Jananese admission cf 
cannibalisra; ill-treatment of prisoners of war. 

GC/CHR/nf 
/s/ Signey F . I-Jashbir 

Distribution H Sidney F , Mashbir 
Colonel,S.C,. 
Co-Ordinator 

SOURCES: Captured Documents. 
Statements by Prisoners of War, 
Intelligence ReDorts, 
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RE PRODUCT ion OF PERTINENT P‘\K 

' E X H I B I T K 

DOCUMENT No
e 

UTHOR OR OWNER ち 

UNIT 

G/lPTITRED /IT 

DATE OF CAPTURE 

RECEIVED m S AE 

RECEIVED AT 13
5
 SWPil 

TRANSLATED B Y 

TRANSLATION CHECJXD BY 

PHOTOGRAPHED ON 

*•» * M • mm 

WO ^"MAGUCHI. Ypshirai 
tmmmm^ mm mm >mr^^m^i • mm^tmm mm. mmmmwrnmm^mmmmtmmmatmJmamm^mtm , 一 

C^ 10 T a n k Kee：.!merit 

U 

3 Febi'-'-'.̂ ry ].945l 

17 Iferch 1945 

T/'^KTJE^/l. Tat sushi T , , klS 
mmrn-'tm-K h— • - « m* 1 1 丨—.••_••! •丨 n 1 mm^mt mmm--mtmmmmu mnmtmmi 

l ^ J L T s u n e o G. 

I M U I ^ 

l\ TTO 
t \ ~ J O 

/s/ Sidnev F , M s s h M r 
£ 7 dn^y F,llsshbir 
Ccloiiol,S ,0. 
Co-Ordinator 

N o v . 28. Fair Zcbul Spring — quartered at Santa Rosa. Last 
night (27th) v;e were gi^er. orders for mopping up bandits. We 
left Zebvd in the direcfcion of Santa Rosa at 1300 hcai-s fcr our 
new post. >.7e had no accidents on the way and arrived at 1700 
hours. 

We took up quarters at the 2Cfth Artillery Unit barracks. 
The oponing of the actack is said to be schedul.ed for Dec：. 1st. 
Information has bec-n received thab the enemy has landed ncre than 
1^0 m e n on the eastern coast of L u z o n Island subnari:.ies<, and 
are instigating the native bs and doing tiielr bes c to supply 
ammunition. There is supposed to have been a ^klcmish yotwsen 
the たmGrican end Philippine troops end the native bandlto last 
night to the east of Ssnta ROSG, v;aen BNFVV were shootIN.G each 
other all night long. Recently the n a t w e bandits have become 
very active," in view of the i m i n e n c e of the erieroy landing, 

We are ordered to kill all the males we find. Mopping up 
the bandits fFom now on v;ill by a sight Infltitid"； 

D e c . 1 . F a i r . Santa R o s a . Preparations for the mopping-up. 

During the morning we loaded the things we are to take witt 
u s . In the afternoon we rested. ft 1830 hours, we were given 
instructions about the mopping-up, with the situation and plans 
explained to us in d e t a i l . 

W e have to set up at 0300 hours Nov. 2 and complete our 
preparations for departure by 0430 hours. We are to reach 
KilB/.MTSPiN by 0^00 hours and receive quv orders from the Kempei Te ^ 
c o m m a n d e r . R e f e r to the maps a n d £ f e r e n c ^

-

t 5 5 a f c s for the first 
the mopping-up operrtions, 

Since the beginning of December, there have been signs of 
dry weather, and with the long spell of good weather, it has becor 
hotter. 
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The infnntry unit will go into action at 2400 hours 
tonight and is expected to s u r r o ^ d the enemy by 0100 hours on 
the second. 

The moonlight is bright and it is light as day. The 
infantry will find it difficult to advance as there is great 
danger of being detected by the enemy. May God grant them 
success. 

ks we are to attack the hsadouarters of three thousand 
American and Filipino soldiers under the command of Major 
MacKinsey, we feel animated and encouraged. 

Rizal, which lies directly in front of our company, is 
where the families of the American and Philippine‘soldiers 
reside, and where the activities of the native bandits are very-
active . 

Our sim is to kill or wound all the men and collect 
information. Women who attempt to escape are to be killed. 
A.11 in all, our aim is extinction of personnel. 

I shall sleep in high spirit tonight and shall perhaps 
dream of home. 



SUBJECT: JAPANESE VIOLATIONS OF THE 
LAWS OF K\R 

DATE OF ISSUE 23 June 194? No, 72 ( S 額 1 2 

SU.€.
T

ARY: 

£ U
do

L
t:^enT 駆/I3

T

:Tl 2 to COMPILATION PHFPAB.ED FOR, 
AND GlIBMITTED UNDER OATH TO " C O m S S I C N REGARD-‘ 
エ N G BREACHES OF THE RULES OF WARFARE BY THE 
JAPANESE FORC3S" (CO：； 0 H E A L T H Of A U S T R A L I A ) , 
12 :..!AT(CH 1944 „ 

1 . I b i s report s\it)Dleir>ents 4TIS Research Report No. 72 
(previctisly AT IS Information Bulletin R o . 1 C ) , and Sutml 
1 , a n d co^iorises a further record of violations of the 
laws of war noted in documents en file at ATIS, GHQ。 
It contains inforrration which has becore available 
fron 12 October 1944 to 2只 March 1 9 4 、 

2r Photolithogra-ohic coo^.es of pertinent sections 
of such original documents as are available ^ith 
relevant, iden'-ifyinf； data are reurodveed as ar^endices 
to this report. 

3- It has not been possible in all cases to nstablish 
definitely tho existence of a violation of the laws of 
war, bv.t where data indicates the rirobability of such 
a violation the incident has been included. 

4
C
 Renort addrces evidence of one hundred and ninety-

four executions in South West
 D

acific Area^ burning of 
guerrillas in the ^ M l i p n i n e Islands 5 the destruction 
of property; official Japanese admission of 
cannibalism; Ill-treatment of prisoners of war. 

GC/CHR/nf 

Distribution H 
/s/ Signey F» llashbir 
Sidney F, Mashbir 
C o l o n e l , S . C , 
Co-Ordinator 

SOURCES: Canturec" Documents. 
Stater.ents by Prisoners of War, 
Intelligence Reports, 
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ADVATIS BULLETIN NO 6^3. 29 Apr 4-5 

ITEM 12 
"605074 

Mb CALUGCN^
s
 Northeast of PTJGO „ LA 丽ION 

LUZOX"- 8 Aっr」5. Reed I Corps ATIS 
Adv E c h " - 1 2 Apr 朽。 R e e d ADVATIS -
Zi i'r̂ r 

.Bound handwritten notebook dated 19 Dec 44 -
27 Mar 45

 L
 belonging" to^Pvt 1st G1 MATSUOKA 

-Itoii o? AS^Hi (*6) 1111 Force (TN 64 Inf 
Hegt

f
 23 Div，）， TOMINAGA (*7) Unit. 29 p p . 

(Partly translated in ICAE Translation 0l50, 
Batch 194, Item 7), 

X 

Extracts 

5
 4

 
Ma
 

7
 

2
 

(c 

f a k i n g advantage ofL-darkness.^ 
went ー而了预—Ell七he natives, 
was_hard for me "to ^111 them 

、because they seemed to be good people. 
—Eri^TTRni丄 cries or tne women and 
children were horrible. T~myself, 
stabbed and killed several persons. 
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

I, Jewell A. Blankenship,1st Lt, OIC R&I Files 

hereby certify that the attached International Prosecution 

Section Document No. 4-15, a portion of ADVATIS Bulletin 

No. 653 (Item 12-605074), being a translation of an extract 

from a bc-und handwritten notebook, dated 19 December 194-4 -

27 March 1945, is an English translation of a captured 

Japanesa document rendered into English by a competent 

ATIS translator. 

I further certify that the original Japanese document 

was forwarded to the Washington Document Center, Washington, 

D . C . 

/s/ Jevirell A . Blankenshiq 
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Extract from Item I-I8892-A from ATIS S/W 
Pacific Area Bulletin 2065

9
 dated 4 June 1945。 

CONFIDENTIAL 

BULLETIN NO 206^ 

TIAONG^ TAYABAS Pine ̂  LUZON - て Maてム、 
603/

O
j/15 

Reed Sixth A m y ATIS 

AdY gQh • 9 May kin IteW ATIS SWPA - ユ9 M ^ ム、 

ITEM 1 Diary dated 24 Apr 44 一 23 Jan 45
0
 Owner not stated but pre-

18892 sumably a raenfber of an airfield compan^o 5。PP。 （Partially 
A translated by Sixth Army ATIS Adv Ech 0490, Item Io) 

Extracta-

(TN Day not stated©) I cannot remember the date, 
but we received information from Lipa MP Squad 
that approximately 30 gn^r-rlllQ.c； fltt.QQkQfl Lj-pa Air 
Depot 想う+丄 p^ATiftdAg and other explosives« ana 
ユ1 of them were captured o The RIP fequad requested 
七妒！iie GIGO Force dispose of the captured guerx-
illasニ During the night we. dug holes here and^ 
there in the coconut grove near the graveyard and_ 
bayoneted and killed t h e m .エ noticed that some of 
znem. nere small like children» They had no strength 
at all since they h_r!d not eaten for the last three 
days since t"heir capture by the MP unite Their 
hands were tied behind their backs

 9
 and they stood ^ 

in front of the holes with their heads beivt slight-
ly downward® It seemed that their minds were aij 

"ready made up that they woti丄die killed, and they 
said notFing« Their hair was very Dusiyj JL was 
irri€itea。Later» one oy one t m EdSa&ers of _ the 
section bayoneted the puerrilXaa, ^ke first one 
was bayoneted by SQZUK1, Yukimatsu。 M y turn was 
the second one^ The moment ェ bayDneted the victis 
he cried

 H

Ah" and fell into the hole behind him么 
Be was suffering out 1 had no emotion at all

n
 That 

may be because 丄 was ao excited. After bayoneting 
them

9
 we covered them with soil and laid.coconut 

leaves on top。 returned to the company singing 
^TiiilItary song at 2200 hours^ 
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ェ 9 Iewell_A^ B l a n k e n s h i p し o m i 一 ? 

hereby certify that the attached International Prosecution Section 

Document No , 4 2 6 9 a portion of ATIS Bulletin Noo 2 0 6 5 (ェ七em 1 -

1 8 8 9 2 _ A ) 9 being a t r a n s l a t i o n of an extract from a diary , dated 

24 ^uly 1944 --.23 January 19450 owner not stated but presumably a 

monber of an Airfield Company9 is an English translation of a 

captured Japanese document rendered into English by a ccaiapetent 

ATIS translator。 

エ further certify that the original Japanese document was 

forwarded to the Washington Document Center9 T?.shington„ D。ら 

/s / Jewell A。 31ankenshi? 



DOCUMENT 2776 

C E R T I F I C A T E 

12 November 1946 

I, Jewell A.. Blankenship, 1st Lt. OIC R&I Files, 

A.TIS hereby certify that the attached International 

Prosecution Section Document No. 2776 is an A.TIS document, 

# 1 9 4 1 , X I V Corps, ATIS, Adv. Ech., being English trans-

lations of captured enemy documents rendered into 

English by a competent A.TIS translator. 

I further certify that the original Japanese 

document was forwarded to the Washington Document Center
? 

Jashington, 25, D . C . 

/s/ Jewell A. BlankenshiD 
JEWELL k. BLANKENSHIP 



DOCUMENT 2776 

MANILA.. LUZON - 24 Feb Reed XIV Cores AT IS Adv 
Ech - 27 Feb 45- Reed /ID'.ATIS - 1 4 Mgr 45. 

Notebook-diary presumably belonging to member of 
AKATSUKI 167。9 Force (TN 9 Shipping Engr Rogt, 
B^pl Unii.), covering period 31 Ju] 
(Partly translated in XIVCAE Translation 0082, 
Batch 719， Item 13). 

Feb 4 5 _ - 1 5 0 guerrillas wer.e d_lsp_osM 
tonight. I stabbed 10^ 

9 Feb - Burned 1,000 guerrillas tonight. 
10 Feb - Guarded approx 1,000 guerrillas. 
13 Feb - Enemy tanks are lurking in the vicinity 

of BANZAI Bridge. Our attack prepara-
tion has been completed. I am now on 
guard duty at Guerrilla Internment Camp. 
While I was on duty, approx 10 _ 
guerrillas tried to escape. They wcre_ 
stubbed to death., A.t 1600 all _ 
guerrillas were burned to death.^ 

8 Feb - Guarded over 1,164 guerrillas which 
were newly brought in today. 



IRIS^E ARAAJ K O U F T A I E P R O V
V
 L U Z O F - £2 シ ザ 仏 

P.GCぐ.I C - r ^ s ,-TIS 一.，.v S c h - T E k^r Iiecc： 
ADV ,TIS - 28 I .ay 45. 

Lrr.se一 hr^il
r

7rittari. sliest- 一.b:?.ttie re" r:&W 
"ctrrtrscT XJ A^ril, -nresuriGbly 1945. IssuocT by 
C c n n n n ^ i 如 . ゴ XJXCUL (*17) Unit. Seal 
rebels IJICKI こn'，. EIH^uIO f*l82. (Pr.rtljr trans— 
latec TLn—TC7J〕r 019‘, Br.tch 23 若，I ten 4). 

斗ゾ 
D o c . H o . 428 Page 1 

Extract fror: aDVATIS Bulletin No* 710，IterWto05588, 
fr，.n ATIS S/巧 Pacific Aroa Bulletin 2089, 
da tec： 28 June 1945. 

；JDVATIS BULLETIN FO 710 

4 . Fur.ber of s of anruimticn expended 一 
28 rTun'、ls。(i?.;:.r killing nr.t ives). 

At 1200 hours touay, 2? 11 vfis_ 
vicinity rf c.rr^nny •nnsi ti nrta . ill t/ere _ 
either stabbec. r.r sbrt t" ueath by th3 rc-:;nin-_ 
in:: r>Grsonhel '(those

 T

-rhc returnee, frcr: suici x-. 
.assault -"i.issirn. loci by Superior ？vt H、Y1-SEI_ 
of headquarters 

C T I F I C T 

I，Jer;ell A . Bl”.nkenshii~；
 f
 1st Lt • OIC 11&L Files hereby 

certify that the attached Intcrnaticnc.! Prosecution S。ctiへn 
Df.cunc.nt . 4 2 8 , a p...:>rti':n of A D V a T I S Bulletin R - . 7 1 0 (Iten 
5-605588), be in[； a translation ハ f loose han-Iv/rittcR shoot 
c^ntaininp; battle reつへ:rt， dr-tecl.13 i^ril, iirosur.c.bly 194-5, is 
an 2n

r
'lish translati";n of a capturecl J n a n ^ s e :current rendered 

intc English by ニ cニ.”r̂ etGnt ATIS translator. 

I further certify that tho criminal Japcnese C.ocurrent rrc.s 
forwarded tc the- "

T

ashin;"ton D'ciinent Conter,ワr.shin:,t?n, D . C . 
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/S/ Blr.nkjnshi'o 
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"On 10 July, the Japanese troops gathered 
all the men and. boys at tho church and_ 
Questioned those connocted 耵ith the _ 
guerflTIa unit. They had them drInk 
wat—er ?nd hit them on the checks. It was_ 
pitiful, ?.nc? I couldn't watcli. They also 
shot them or speared them to death wit為 
bamboo Isnces。 Indeod the Japanese /rmy _ 
oes extreme things." 

DOGUME.NT 2749 

PALO Bopch^ LEYTE - 24 Oct 44. Rocd X Corps ATIS Adv 
Ech - 24 Oct 44. Reed m S SWPA - 23 Dec 44, 

Bound, printed and mimeographed fjLLし.entitledjPo丄icぶ 
Affairs, B . No 2 (Incoming^ Reports on Public 0rd2r)_^

r 

dated l'Jui 43 to 12 Jan 44, issued by 14 Army IてP一 
Unit, owned by TaCLOBAN HP Soc"7 classified "Milit?ry-
I ost Secret", Marked "To be kept for 5 years", seals 
read NA.KA.N0 (*1) and l i m S H I H I R A C*2). 978 pp. 

s
"
7
 



DOCUMENT 2749 

C E R T I F I C A T E 

12 November 19^6 

I, Jewell k , Blankenship, 1st Lt. OIC R&I Files, 

ATIS hereby certify that the attached International 

Prosecution Section Doeument No. 2?49 is an kTIS 

document, 4TIS
s
 SWPA Bulletin #1862, being English 

translation of captured eremy documents rendered into 

English by a competent A.TIS translator. 

I further certify that the original Japanese 

document was forwarded to the Washington Document 

Center, V/ash5.ngton, 25? D . C . 

/s/ 7ere?.1 A,一B1 n”レen.sh
4

 v 
A , ^il/^^SJiilP 

1st L t ” ェ上ifarvtry 



ノ ゾ ダ デ 
DOCUMENT 2777 

DAGmffiANGON._ LAGUNA Prov, LUZON 一 17 Anr 45. Reed XIV Corns 
ATIS A.dv Ech - 24 Apr 4 、 O a t c h 1^48) Reed ADVATIS - 28 MaY 4? 

Bound handwritten notebook diary dated 14 Nov 43 to 17 Apr 45? 
belonging to a member of FUJITA (*i) Unit 3330 Force (TN 116 
Fishing B n . ) 1 2 3 pp。 （Partly translated in XIVCAET 0119 Itenfl. 

13 Feb JFor security reasons, all Inhabitants—, 
of the town were killed and all their 
possessions were confiscated. 

17 Feb 45 Because 90^ of the .Eiliplnos^arB^jiQiL 
pro-Japanese Army Headquarters issued 
orders on the 10th to punish them. In 
various sectors we have killed several 
thousands (including young and old, men 
and women, and Chinese)„ Their homes -
have been burned and valuables confiscated. 



DOCUMENT 2777 

C E R T I F I C A T E 

12 November 1946 

I, Jewell k. Blankenship, 1st Lt. OIC R&I Files, 

ATIS hereby certify thet the attached International 

Prosecution Section Document No. 2777 is a true and 

correct copy of an ATIS document, ADVATIS Bulletin 

No. 701, being English translations of captured 

enemy documents rendered into English by competent 

A.TIS translators. 

I further certify that the original Japanese 

documents were forwarded to the Washington Document 

Center, j/ashington, 25，D. C . 

/s/ Jewell A.c Blankenship 
JEWELL k. BLANKENSHIP 
1st Lt., Infantry 



Doc. Ho. 425 Page 

BULLETIN HO 2071 

Northeast of LUC腿，TAYABAS Province. LUZOIT -
23 May 45, Reed 165 Lang Det. XIY CorDs — 26 
May 45, (Batch 1600) Heed. ATIS SWPA ^ 2 Jun 45, 

ITEM 12 Sound diary — notebook dated July 1944 一 22 May 45. 
60^649 Owier and unit not stated. 38 pages. (Partly 

A translated in XIYC165LDT 0133, Item 5). 

Extracts： 

Pe"b 45 Every day is spent in hunt ing guerrillas _ 
and native多• I have already killed, well 
^orer 100. The naivete I possessed at the 
time of leaving the homeland, has long 

.丨 since disappeared. How I am a hardened 
i killer and my sword is always stained 

J Ijfith "blood, Although it is for my country's 一 
| sake, it is sheer "brutality. May God forgive 

/ |me! Piay my mother forgive me[ 
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

I,こe延eil—Ai Blankenshi^, ^ OIC E&I. 旦 

hereby certify that the attached International Prosecution Section 

Document; Ko. 425, a. portion of ATIS Bulletin No. 2071 (Item 12-

605849—A) • being extracts from a "bound diary-note"book dated July 

1944 - 22 May 1945, is an English translation of a captured Japanese 

document rendered into English "by a competent ATIS translator. 

I further certify that the original Japanese document wa^ 

forwarded to the Washington Document Center, Washington, D. C. 

Is/ Jewell A. Blankenship 
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Commission agsinst one's superior officers or sentries. 
Commission with intent of robbery. 
Commission with intent to acauire human flesh. 

Part III Special Army Laws 

For murder according to the common criminal code, those 
sentenced to death in the Army fall within the following 
categoriess -

參
 

1
 

REPRODUCTION OF PERTINENT PARTS OF CAPTURED DOCUMENTS 

EXHIBIT H 

： 8 C 1 0 7 DOCUMENT No. 

AUTHOR OR OVOffiR 

UNIT 

CAPTURED たT 

DATE OF CAPTURE 

RECEIVED ATIS kE 

RECEIVED m S , SWPA. 

TR/.NSLaTED BY 

TRANSLATION CHECKED BY 

PHOTOGRAPHER ON 

Ma.j Gen ADTSU 
-- m • “ 

(i 41 Infantry Group' ^ 

Danmsp, kitevie Area 
mmmm^mmmmm __ __II •丨 — 供 

December 1944 

2 January 1Q45 

?3 January 1945 

2d Lt B M M L A G E , Donald L., MJS 

1st Lt KAD/.NIj Tsuneo G. , AUS 

25 April 1945 

/s/ Sidney F . Mashbir 
Sidney F . Mashbir 
Colonel, S.C. 
Co-Ordinator 

There have been a great number of illegal acts recently 
within the .jurisdiction of this detachment especially murder， 
robbery and also cases aiming at the acquisition of hriman flesh, 
which seriously affect, the morale of the troops. We have 
frequently given instructions concerning their prevention and 
exposure, and as they are inexcusable from the standpoint not 
only of military discipline, but also of humanity, our detach-
ment is determined to completely eradicate such cases. 

Furthermore, as mony of these serious crimes arise from 
inadequate moral education, you will kindly give instruction to 
all ranks in the general criminal code, as set forth in the 
attached sheet, and the military criminal code, especially-
special Army orders, make them exercise self-discipline as 
members of the Imperial Army, and prevent these types of crime, 
or else quickly expose and deal v/ith them. 

Part II Common Criminal Code 

1 . T h e crime of murder. 

Anyone who commits murder shall be sentenced to death or 
given penal servitude for life or for a term. 

/

 N
J
-

1
2
 3
 



D o c , No
e
 2707-H Page 2 

2. / A l t h o u g h i s not prescribed in the—criminal code
s
 those 

1 Wi.c eat, ii ana n r.legh. (exce-p'G ong-c or rne e n d y ) M o w i n g 
l it to be so, siid丄be sentencea zo aeatn as tine worst Kind 
of criminal egainst mankind, “ 
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Sl'BJECT: JAPANESE VIOLATIONS OF THS 
LAWS OF WAR 

DATE OF ISSUE 23 June 194? No. 72 ( S _ l 2 

S U . M R Y : 

SU
D

っLU
T

SNT KUIJB^R 2 to COMPILATION PHFPARED FOR. 
AND ElBMITTED UNDER OATH TO " C O O T S S I C N REGARD-‘ 
ING BREACHES 0? THE RULES OF WARFARE BY THE 
JAPANESE FCRCSS" (CO；； C I ^ A L T H OF AUSTEALIA), 
12 ；IAECH 1944

P
 、 

1 , I b i s reつort suつつlerent.s A_TIS Research Report Mo. 72 
(previously ATIS Information Bulletin No. IC), and Surrnl 
丄，and co””r1.ses a further record of violations of the 
laws cf war noted in documents cn file at AT18, GHQ, 
It contains inforrrat-.ion "/hich has becore available 
fron 12 October 19^- to March 1945„ 

2r Photolithogra'Dhic conges of pertinent sections 
of such original docuirents as are available ^vith 
relevant idenrifyinf data are reproduced as appendices 
to this report,. 

3- It has not been possible in all cases to establish 
definitely tnn existence cf a violation of the laws of 
war, but where data indicates the t)robabil ity of such 
a v^.olat-icn the incident has been included, 

4
P
 Ren or t. addi^ces evidence of one hundred and ninety-

four executions in South West °acific Area； burning of 
guerrillas in the U l iっ n i n e Islands; the destruction 
of property; o^fic'.al Japanese "adinission of 
cannibalism; 1-treatment of prisoners of war, 

GC/CHR/nf 
/s/ Gigney F , Uashbir 

Distribution H Sidney F- I/ashbir 
Colonel, S,C-
Co-Ordinator 

SOURCES? Captured Documents. 
Statements by Prisoners of War„ 
Intelligence Reports« 

SECRET 

A.LLIED TRANSLATOR AND INTERPRETER SECTION 
SOUTHWEST PACIFIC AREA 

RESEARCH REPORT 
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Prisoner YAMGIZAV/A Eiji; Australian No JA 162002, a leading 
private of 9 Company, 3 Battalion, 239 Infantry Regiment, ill 
with beriberi was captured by Australian troops at MARASUPE. 
near AITAPE, 25 Dec 44. 

Ca.nni"balism On 1 Nov 44 in a speech to his troops, 
-Kaj Gen A.0TU,. 41 Division Infantry Group commander, stated 
that troops must fight the Allies even to the extent .jxf 
esring them.一一 

On 10 Dec 44 an order was issued from 18 A.rmy 
Iieadquarters that troops were permitted to eat the flesh of 
Allied dead but must not eat their own dead. A.t the t i m eご 
rumors were prevalent that troops were eating their own dead. 
15 Dec 44 four men were executed by order of Maj M0RIM0T0, 
commanding officer of 2 Battalion for disobeying this order. 

While wandering in the jungle prisoner came across 
four men of his unit whose bodies had been stripped of flesh. 
A.s there were no troops other than Japanese in the area he 
presumed the flesh was eaten by them. 

In mid Dec 44 prisoner wes shown some meat by his 
commanding officer who said it was humsn flesh and that any-
thing that looked like it was not to be eaten. 

On 21 Dec 44 at MARUJIPPU, Maj K0RIM0T0, 2 Battalion 
coriander, shared out to his troops the flesh of two Australian 
soldiers who had been killed in action and joined them in eating 
it. ks prisoner was ill he was unable to obtain a share. 

n 

/i i 
/ / j 

SJA 
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

12 November 1946 

I, Jewell A. Blankenship, 1st L t . OIC R&I Files, 

A.TIS hereby certify that the attached International 

Prosecution Section Document is a true and correct copy of 

an ATIS document, ATIS, SWPA. Interrogation Report No. 692, 

a portion of which includes the interrogation of POW 

Yanagizawa Eiji, Australian No. JA. 162002, a leading 

private of 9 Company, 3 Battalion, 239 Infantry Regiment. 

The brief of this interrogation was prepared by a ATIS 

student interrogator and only that information which 

appeared reasonable and accurate to Examiners checking 

the work has been reproduced. 

/s/ Jewell A.
t
 BlankenshiD__ 

JEWELL A. BLANKENSHIP 
1st L t ” Infantry 
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For The WAR CRIMES OFFICE 

Judge Advocate General's Departirent -- War Department 

United States of America / 7 

* * lifi jjc 
, / ダ / 

In the matter of the surrender 
of American Forces on Bataan 
on ^ April. 1942. 

Perpetuation of Testimony of 
Edward P. King, Jr., Ma i or Genera 
A.U.S. - 02442. 

本 * 木 本 > | t 本 本 本 本 本 * 

J ノ \ 
ftQ/ » jJP 

Room 2225 Munitions Building, , , 
War Pepartinent, .Washington, D。C. 

14 January, 1°46 ^ fy 

In the Presence of; Captain E . J. Connolly, JAGD, and 
Captain Philip L. Smith, Captain, JAGD. 

Taken at: 

Pate: 

Reporter Arthur C. Hendrix, Civilian, Office of 
The Judge Advocate General, War Crimes 
Office. 

Questions bv: Captain E . J . Connolly, JAGD. 

Q 汉 i l l you please give your name and serial number, sir? 

A ,Edward P. King, Jr., 02442, Major General, A.U.S. 

' • _ 一 
Q v/ere you the Commanding General of the American forces on 

Bataan in April 1942. 

A I was. 

Q At what time did your forces surrender to the Japanese? 

A about 2 A.M., April % 1942, I sent forward with a flag of 
truce C o r / E , "C;~¥IHTams, "Colonel J. K. Collier, my G-3, and 
Major Marshall Hurt, my Assistant G-3

5
 to make an appointment 

for me to meet the Japanese Commander of their forces on Bataar. 
with a view to surrendering. Colonel Williams was to make the 
appointment. Colonel Collier and Major Hurt were to get word 
back to me of the appointment. Colonel Collier and Major Hurt 
returned shortly after daylight and I started forv/ard with my 
two sides, Ma .lor Cothran and Captain Achille C. Tisdelle, Jr. 
Colonel Collier and Major Hurt accompanied us in another car. 
On the way forward, although carrying large white flags on our 
cars, we were attacked repeatedly by light bom、 and machine gur 
fire from low-flying Japanese planes so that we were compelled 
often to stop and take cover. It must have been close to 10 
0'clock when I reached Lamao, the place to which Colonel Collie 
had. directed me。 At that place I was received by a Japanese 
Major General informed me, through a very poor interpreter, 
that he commanded one division of the Japanese forces? that he 
had reported my coming to Japanese headauarters in the Philip-
pines and that he had no authority to treat with me; that 
another officer would be sent from Japanese headauarters to 
treat with me and that he would make no further aclrance for 
thirty minutes while I decided what to do. 

0 Do you know the Japanese General's name? 

A I do not know the name of the Japanese General. After some 
time, no Japanese officer having arrived from Japanese head-
auarters, Colonel Williams called my attention to the fact thai 
the Japanese troops had resumed their advance, and I imiTiediaxe. 
sent Colonel Collier and Major Hurt back with instructions to 
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direct my units in the line of the Japanese advance to display 
the white flag and to surrender and to go to my Command Post 
and direct General Punk, my Chief of Staff, to order all units 
to display the white flag and to give themselves up to the 
first Japanese who approached them. Shortly after, an officer 
with an interpreter arrived and I was told that the officer was 
a Colonel and that he was General Horama

1

s Chief of Staff, and 
that he had come to discuss my surrender with ire, as General 
Hornma*s representative。 I was concerned only with the treatmen 
that my men would receive and whether they would be treated as 
prisoners of war. The Japanese officer demanded my uncondition 
al surrender. I atteirpted to secure from him an assurance that 
my men would be treated as prisoners of war. He accused me of 
declining to surrender unconditionally and of tryinp to make a; 
condition. We talked back and forth in this vein for some time 
I should guess abotit a half hour. Finally, he said to me, 
through the interpreter, "The Irrperial Japanese Army are not 
barbarians". With that assurance I had to content myself and 
surrender. 

In destroying arms and equipment in preparation for 
surrender, I had reserved enough motor transportation and. gaso-
line to transport all of my troops out of Bataan. I endeavored 
prior to surrender, to secure an assurance that this might be ； 
done. I plead, after my surrender, that this be done, offering 
to furnish personnel as might be required by the Japanese for -
this purpose or to assist in any way that they might require. 
The Japanese told me that they would handle the rrovement of the 
prisoners as they dpsired; that I would have nothing to do with 
it, and that my Wishes in that connection would not be consider 
ed. 

Did your men on Bataan, at that time, have any rations? 

For some time we had been on one-fourth rations in Bataan. 
At the time of my surrender, I had remaining two days of issue 
on that limited basis, that is, one-half a ration per rr.an. 

Did you at any time, General, consult with General Homma during 
these negotiations? • — • 

I have never seen him in my life so far as I know. 

Did the Japanese to whom you surrendered agree to accept the 
surrender of your whole command? 

They would not treat with me at all until after some time and 
effort I convi.ncfed tr.ori that エ v,ou].d continue to insist that I 
was surrenderii'.g w'thoir卜’Gsr.era!扣ainwrisし +•パ s knowledge or 
authority. Then the Japanese said I coald surrender myself 
and send "my staff officers, Colonel Collier and Ma.ior Hurt 
back to direct my units to surrender in which case they would 
discontinue their attack. 

Did the Japanese agree to treat your men as prisoners of war? 

I was able to get nothing from them except the assurance, "The 
Imperial Japanese Army are not barbarians". 
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Q General, what happened after your negotiations of surrender 
with the Japanese were completed? 

A I was taken to Balanga where I was held all afternoon, and 
j-upt before dark I was carried to Orani where I was kept 
until Sunday evening, April 12th, when I was carried by motor 
cat* to Camp O'iDonnell i 

City of Wsshington ) 
) S S 

District of Columbia) 

I, Edward P . King, Jr., of lawful age, being duly sworn on 
oath, state that I have read the foregoing transcription of my 
interrogation, and all answers contained therein are true to the 
best of my knowledge and belief. 

/s/ E P King. Jr. 
Edv/ard P. King, Jr., 
Major General, A.U.S. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 15th day of January 
1946. 

/s/ Edward. J. Connolly. Jr. 
Edward J. Connelly, JAGD. 

Capt. 0-2052369 
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I, ARTHUR A. SANDUSKY, hereby certify; 

1 . T h a t I am Chief of the Document Division 
of the International Prosecution Section, GHQ, 
SCAP, and as such have possession, custody and 
control of original or copies of all documents 
obtained, by the said Section. 

2. That the attached photostat copy of 
Document 2713， consisting of a 3-page affidavit of 
EDWARD P . KING, Jr。, Maior General, A.IJ.S,, was 
procured by the International Prosecution Section 
from the War Crimes Branch, Civil Affairs Division, 
Office of the Chief of Staff, War Department. 

/s/ Arthur t. Sandusky 
ARTHUR A. SANDUSKY 
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DIRECT EXAMIK^I皿 

Q (By Lieutenant Raff) Will you state ycur name, grade, organization, 
and グour present assignment? 

A Basilio Hernandez, Major, A&A; presently Chief of Capualty 
Divisicn, AGO. 

Q Where do you lire? 

A In Manila; 949 Eenarides, Santa. Cruz, Manila. 

ft Major, we re you with the American and Filipino forces at the time 
of the surrender in April, 1942, on Bataan? 

A Yes, I was. 

ft Now, "based on the records presently in the k
%
 Office, and from 

your knowledge, having "been on Bataan at the time of the surrender, 
can you tell the Commission the irum"ber of Fili-oinos, Philippine A m y 
forces, in Bataan at the time of the surrender? 

A Approximately 53,000， 

Q, Will you repeat that? 

A Approximately 53,000. 

Q, Can you estimate the number of Philippine Soouts that were JJQ .一 ̂  
•Bataan at that time? 

A I quite remember there werBsJL2,000 Philippine Scout, before the 
outbreak of the war. I understand they were all coramitt«d to Eataan 
at the 4ate of .surrencior, but I can't tell the exe.ct nvimter aX the 
date of surrender. I know they w^re committei "bsfore the date of 
currender. 

Q, Can you give us fh estimate? 

ん Around six or seven thou&pnd, 

LIEUTEHAMC RAFF: You mpy cross examine, 

CAPTAIN OTT: ITo cross examinrtioii, 

&EKBEAL DOllOVAN; Any questions "by the Commission? 

(llo response.) 

G-ENEBAL DONOVAU: The witness is excused. 

(Witness excused.)
 # 
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

I, Alva C^ Canoenter, Chief, Legal Section, General 

Headquarters ,Supreine Commander for the Allied Powers, 

do hereby certify that Document 2^7? is a true and correct 

cov>y of the transcript of the testimony offered by BASILIO 

HSRN/IND^Z in the trial of the case against Masaharu HO?"MA, 

G e n e r a l , I m p e r i a l Japanese Army, before a M"'litary Coinr.ission 

in Manila； and that the whole record of the case, incli'ding 

the transcript of all testimonies taken, as well as the 

affidavits adirtitted in evidence, are now on file with this 

•Section,. 

/s/ Alva C» Carpenter 
Alva C . Caroenter

? 

Chief, Legal Section 

Witness ； /s/ John R . °rltcha.rd 

Sworn to before ne this 21st day 

of November 1
Q

4 6 , Tokyo, Japan,. 

John R , Pritchard 

C a p t ” Inf«, 
Summary Court, 
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G 麵 E A L nEADClTARTSRS 

UNITED STAT3S ARMY FORCES, PACIFIC 
OFFICE OF T73

 m

HEATER JUDGE ADVOCATE 
WAR CRIFES EBA"CH 

m
f

O R A F D T l /
 r:

 0: 

THRU: 

STT.JSCT: 

APO 500 
17 October 1945 

Prosecution Section (Report # 75) 

Execvtive Officer,マar Crimes Branch 

Offenses Conritted by the Jat)?.nese at 
Camp O'Donnell. 

II. SUFI
f

ARy OF EVIDENCE: 

Ov-:.r nine thousand A m i c a n p.nd about forty-seven thou-
sand Filiriino prisoners of war were 3 --oned ir Carrp 
O'Dornell, and all had surrendered on ..pril 1942 upon 
the capitulation of the Ar.:erican Forces on Bataan (R 6， 
39)• Many of them had made the so-called "Death March" 
from Eataan to San Fernando and thence on to Carp O'Donnell 
(R 20, f8，192). As a result of this trip and the privations 
they had rndured just prior to their surrender, all of the 
prisoners reached Camp O'Donnell in a state of exhaustion 
(R f , 38). Upon arrival at the cairp, the prisoners were 
searched, and some were killed by the Japanese when found 
to possess Japanese money or souvenirs (21，37, 3 8 , 1 0 ヲ ， 
112, 161， 163). Other groups of A-erican and Filipino 
prisoners of war were executed (R 2 4 , 1 2 9， 196). or taken 
from carp under guard ard never heard of again (H 7). 

I'ost of the deaths in Carp O'Donnell were due to dysentery 
and roalsria covpled 'ith malnutrition, and many of these 
deaths could have been prevented had the Japanese furnished 
adequate food, shelter, clothing, water, sanitation faci-
lities, and medicine and hospital cere (R 1， 7 , 8 , 1 7， 27， 
9 1 , 1 1 7 , 155) l 8 l ) . T h e qrarters provided for the orisoners 
were overcrowded and inadequate to protect them from the 
weather (R 27，109， 142, 173). Only oハen latrines of the 
"straddle trench" tyne were available, but many of the pri-
soners were too weak from illness to use thorr, and flies and 
filth were everywhere (R 弓4, 8 l ) . N o screens were provided 
for the kitchen and food was contaminated by flies from the 
open latrines (R 54，134). Food was insdequate, consisting 
only of a bowl of rice sprinkled with salt, camotes, with 
occasionally a little watery soup made from greens (R 1， 
109), "but this was later increased until the men began to 
gain a little weight (R 17). The death rate mounted to 
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nearly sixty rier day during the first two months of impri-
sonment (R 27). Dレring the first few months at Carcp 
0'Donnell the prisoners were not allowed to use water for 
bathing, and conditions in the hospital were most unsanitary 
due to the inability of the patients to move to the latrines, 
There wera no beds nor bedding, and tho patients were crowded 
on the floor and under

 +

.he building, with no protection from 
insects, flies, and the weather (R 54, 96， 99，109， 110, 134， 
15?). Repeated reqvests for medicine and hosDital equipment 
were refused (R 38，133)* I'ore than fifteen hundred American 
prisoners of w?r died In Cnr.p 0 'Donnell between the period 
18 April 194-2 to December 1942 (Ex. D) 5 and ^ nproximately 
tv^enty-six thousand Filinino prisoners 'died during that period 

American and Filipino prisoners were forced to stand in 
the hot sun without hats for many hours for minor violations 
of prison regulations (R 3) • Others w、.re beaten with rifles, 
scabbards, and bamboo noles when they fell,exhausted, while 
at work (R 119). Beatings of the prisoners on work 
details by the Japanese guards, with bayonets, clubs, and 
pick handles were common occurrences (R 100, 121)« 

Fary of the prisoners were forced to bvry tho dead, bvild 
fences, and dig latrines, though they were physically unfit 
to perform srch la"bor because of illness and malnutrition 
(H 89, 91，119， 129， 181). 

Upon arrival at Carep 0
r

D o n n e 1 1 , t h e prisoners were forced 
to pl?.ce all their personal b*longings on their blankets, 
nnd the Japanese confiscated all money, jewelry, watches, 
and equipment including medical supplies, although some of 
the officers were allowed to keep a blanket (R 36, 91，114, 

The prisoners w«re required to bury their own dead in 
graves containing t 'elve to sixty bodies each, without regard 
to proper identification of tho graves or positions of the 
bodies (R 3； 4，84,14己.)、.Sixty-five who died were listed 
1 as unknown (Ex. D)•ごOn some occasions ^hey were forced to 
i-tory men who were still alive' (R 24,129"). Frequently the 
Japanese would not grant permission to bury the dead, and 
bodies were left exposed to the sun for two or throe days 
at a time before permission was granted to bury them (R 3， 

On several occasions representatives of the Red Cross and 
other charitable organizations atteirpted to bring redicine 
and supつlies to alleviate th? condition of thの prisoners, 
but they Were turned away at the entrance to the camp (R 9, 
27, 38, 55). When sunplies were allowed to be brought in by 
charitable organizations, the Japanese confiscated much of 
it for their own use and only allowed the prisoners to have 
what was left (R 8, 3P， 39) . 



DOCUMENT 2831 

GENERAL HSADQtmRTERS 
UNITED STATES ARMY FORCES, PACIFIC 

WAR CHIDES BRANCH 

I 19 February 1946 

MEMORANDUM TO: Prosecution Section (Report No. 209) 

THRU; Executive Officer, War Crimes Branch 

SUBJECT； Batsan General Hospital N o s . 1 and 2 

* 本 * 

II. SUMMARY OF E7IDSNCB; 

On 9 A.pril 1942, the American forces at Bataan Peninsula 
surrendered to the Japanese, "but it was not until about six weeks 
iater that Corregidor and Fort Drum, capitulated. During tdis inter-
val, Japanese artillery on Bataan was continually duelling with the 
American guns on Corregidor and Fort Drum. 

The chief complaint against the Japanese seems to be that 
they placed field pieces and tanks in close proximity to the Bataan 
hospital where approximately seventy-five hundred American and seven 
thousand Filipino patients were being treated (R 14, 93). The 
artillery was placed so close to the hospital that it was obvious thai 
the Japanese intended to use the hospital as a shield against answer-
ing fire from the American guns (R 19> 25)? particularly since the 
patients could have been evacuated (R 96)。 One patient saw twenty-
three Japanese guns from his place in the hospital(R 34). When 
complaints were made to the Japanese about the proximity of their 
artillery, Japanese officers replied -chat the guns would not be 
moved until Corregidor surrendered to the Japanese (R 34). 4s a 
result of placing tiiese guns so near the hospital, at least five 
American patients in the hospital were killed and many others wounded 
by gunfire from the Americans on Corregidor and Fort Drum (R 19, 25). 

After the American forces on Bataan surrendered, Japanese 
confiscated medical supplies and almost all of the food at the 
hospital, leaving only some fruit juices

?
 canned milk

?
 and dirty, 

wormy, mouldy rice (R 23 , 53 ? 65) . While the pr-isonars and patients 
were forced to live on this meager diet, the Japanese soldiers were 
eating meals w.hisfe-lnciuded vegetables and meat (H 53). 

An American nurse was raped by Japanese soldiers and 
apparently no disciplinary action whatever was taken against the 
offenders (R 1 , 2 , 1 5 ) ^ 

N i ^ - — m i ^ 
American prisoners were forced to haul Japanese field 

pieces to various locations on Ba'caan for use against the American 
forces on Corregidor (R 93). 

Filipino patients who were barely able to walk, were 
forced to leave the hospital and join the "death march" (R 158， 166). 

86) 
Prisoners' personal effects were looted by Japanese (R 85, 
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HESTHIOTSD 

UiTITSD STATES illMI lO^CSS, ？办。UI。 
MAR CHIMES B U S 

4 February 1946 

MZM03x^ICUM TO: Frosocution Soction (Hoport So- 189) 

TiHU : Jhcecutive Officer,ブar Crimes Branch 

SIIBJ3CT : Mistreatnont rxf^ imDriscnnent under improper oon5.itions 

of imerican prisoners of ws,r a七 Ccrrogiiつr, P. I., during 
summer of 

ii. simuoY oi irn旭cs: 

The record of investi^ation in su"bjoct case is composed entirely 
of statements of roratriated Arnorican prisoners of war. Those statements 
hare teen selected "from a large numtier of such statements which v/ero 
taken either in the United States or at the 29th Heplacoment Jopot on 
Luzon, and it is "believed tlmt the so statom^ nts accuratoly portray condi-
tions at the prison c^mp on Corro.::idor.% The facts are ： 

.. Shortly after the capitulation of Corr3
f
-iior, approximately ten 

thousand American and ；Filipino prisoners of war were crowclad into a small 
area, formerly the 92nd Coast Ar til lory Corps G-araga area. Conditions 
were so crowded th/vb the prisoners v/ere unable to move during tho ni^ht 
v/ithout iis七"ar"biiig sleeping companions who ^ero packed side "by side, no 
shelter whatsoever v/as furnishad to protect the prisoners from the rain 
or from the heat of the sun. Sanitary facilities consistod only of 
open slit trencli， and no chemicals or disinfectants made availat)丄e 
to improve the sanitary conditions, 'uater v;as obtained from tv/o wells 
which were sunk "below sea level, and the water WP.S salty and unpr?

J
lata'ble. 

The prisoners v/oro given inadequate food, although ^npie supplies ^/ero 、 
available and stored in the tunnels cf Correridor 〈ユ15,16,17,19, 26). 
The men were forced to load carptured Arieric^n supplies on Japanese snips 
(S 36).""""""M胃 the prisoneis were suffering frora i丄•丄noss, some had boen 
woundod in combat, and all vrore suffering from the privations endured in 
the da^s preceding tlie s-urroncler. Yet in spito of the c..;reat need for 
medicine and modical c^ro, none was furnished (H 13, 26). The Japanese 
c^ards "brutally "beat the Amarican prisonors at the slightest provocp,tion 
or for minor infractions of the rules (B. 4

?
 9

?
1 3 , 20, 22). As a result 

of the aliove condiGions and treatment, many of the prisoners died (H 20, 
36). 



Q What did you do before entering the Army? 
A I was just out of sebool when I enlisted in the A m y . 

Q Have you recently been returned to the United States fron overseas? 
A Yes.‘ 
f ŜOtet-

1

' V
 u

~ — 

Q. ^fore you a prisoner of war? 
A Yes: 

Q At what やr3 yon \irld and state the approximate i-tec-^ 
ACjjTe surrenderee' on May  ；1.942. . There is a gap Iroux that date io Lfey 26, 
1942 when we v/ere sent to Ga*>anatuan« In the anxine were, I believe, 
at Waw Waw, Batangas Province. We stayed at Cabanaturj： until .September 8, 
1942 on which date we were aiored to ？ as ay sixo remained y.e ツ until July 
19UU when we were sent to Bilibid where we rerrtiined until 'yobruar3

r

 “，194-5, on 
which date we were liberated tj troops of the Izt Cavalry Division, Company G, 
H 8 t h Infantry Regiment of the 37th Infantry Division•一 

Q Did you witness any atrocities or mistreatment of AiLe^ieau citizens at any 
time? 
A Yes. I woulc； Live to tel.l you about cl e torture methods employed by the 
Japanese at N^chol

:
s Field， .? I., between 8 September 19^2 and 1 “ July 1944• 

Q State what you know of your own knowledge about those incidentし• 
A The men were alloted a certain amount of work to be done each day. Due to 
physical conditions of the men and to weather conditions, it was in most 

What education did you have? 
I finished High S c h o o l — e l e v e n grades. 

DOCUMENT 2870 

For the WAR CRIMES OFFICE 

Judge Advocate General's Department — War Department 

United States of America 

In the matter of torture methods 
employed by the Japanese rt Pasay 
and Nichols Field, P . I” between 
S September 1942 and 14 July 19从• 

Perpetuation of Testimony of 
James Edward Strawhorn, 3 g t” 
ASN 6 398 230, CAC (Unassigned) 

Taken at: 

Date: 

In the presence of,: 

Reporter: 

Ouestions 

* * * * * * * * * * 

Greenville Army Air Base, Greenville, S.C. 
(3ace Intelligence Office) 
16 July 19A5 

William A. Allen, Jr., Special Agent, Security 
Intelligence Corps, Credentials No. 920 (PMGO) 

— 一 一 — 一 J 

Officer, Greenville Army Air Base, Greenville, S.C. 
William A. Allen, J r” Special Agent, Security-
Intelligence Corps, Credentials No. 920 (PMSO) 

Q State your nane, rank, serial number end permanent home address. 
A James Edward Strawhorn, S g t” ASN 6 398 230. Hone address is RFD テ;'3, c/o 

J. M. Strawhorn, Pelzer, South Carolina. 

Q Are you married? 
A No, I an single, 

Q Where were you born and on what date? 
A New Bedford, Kass” May 1 , 1 9 1 6 . 

T 
4 
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instances impossible to perform the required amount of work in the time alloted. 
If the assigned tasks were not completed within the time limit, the men would 
be lined up and flogged by Japanese armed with pick handles, rifle butts, 
etc. In such instances, many arms,，legs and backs were broken and if a man fell 
to the ground, the Japanese would beat him over the head until he was unconscious 
This was a common occurrence. It was amazing to ine how men could take such 
punishnent and still survive. I personally have been beaten unconscious• 

Another form of torture was to nako a person stand at attention in the hot sun 
with a bucket full of water on his head. If any of the water was spilled, the 
man was beaten as indicated above• 

Another common practice was to tie a men to a board v/ith his head lower than his 
feet and then pour salty water into his mouth. In that position, he had to 
swallow and the brine solution would cause his stomach to swell• The Japanese 
would then jurip on his stomach v/ith their feet. In like manner the Japanese 
often forced a water hose down a prisoner's throat and thus filled his stomach 
with 7/ater until he became painfully swollen and then they y/ould jump on his 
stomach. 

Still another form of punishment was to tie a man's hands behind his back and 
draw his hands up between his shoulders with a rope suspended over the limb of 
a tree and let him hang with his foet just off the ground. This usually pulled 
both arms out of socket. While at this camp， I personally hung as long as 2U 
hours in that position. No food or water was given during that time and I was 
under no shelter, exposed to the seoring sun all day and to a heavy downpour 
of rain during the night. During this time, I was beaten with plaited rope and 
hit about the face and head -vith a pistol butt. This occurred in September 194-3 

On one occasion, ny hands were tied behind my back and I was forced to kneel on 
the ground, A piece of timber v/as placed behind my knees and I was made to 
squat on that piece of timber. This resulted, as a role, in dislocation of the 
knee joints and cut off all circulation. I was forced to remain in that posi-
tion for about three hours• 

It was common practice for any and all Japanese to abuse prisoners of war by 
hitting them over the head with tent stakes, pistol butts etc” for any and all 
minor offenses and quite often for no offonce whatsoever. 

The above recounted torture methods were administered by W/0 Kajuki and several 
of his aides. The aides are recalled only by the names of "Pistol Pete", lf

Saki Sam" and "Cherry Rlossora" • There was also a Warrant Officer at this 
prison camp who w^s knoun only as "Harvard" because he was a graduate of“ 
Harvard University^ Hs spoke, read, and wrote English exceptionally well. 
He, too, participated in administering the above described punishments• The 
above torture methods, it is believed, v/ere committed and witnessed by higher 
authority, 
ference. 

including the Admiral in charge of Pasay Camps, without any inter-

x I色/ Ja‘
r

!ies_ E Strav/horn 
/t/ JAMES ED/ULD STRixf/HORN, Sgt. 

ASN - 6393230, CAC (unassigned) 

State of: 

County of: 
) S S 

I, James Edward Strawhorn, of lawful age, being duly sworn on oath, state 
that I have read the foregoing transcription of ny interrogation and all answers 
contained therein are true to the best of my knowledge and belief* 

〜/ James F. StjaFhorn 
/t/ James iHdv/ard Strawhorn, Sgt

# 

沾N - 6393230, CAC (unassigned) 

Subscribed and si7orn to before me this 31st day of July 194-5• 

- 2 -

/s/ Eugene J Twii^dlon, Capt ？JA 
Notary Public, Summary Court 
Moore Gen Hosp, Suannanna, NC 
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I, William A. Allen, Jr., Special Agent, Security Intelligence Corps, 
Credentials No, 920 (PMGO), certify that on 16 July 194-5, personally 
appeared before me James Edward Strawhorn, Sgt., ASN - 6398230, and 
gave the foregoing answers to the several questions set forth; after 
his testimony had been transcribed, the said James Edward Strawhorn 
read the sane and affixed his signature thereto. 

Place: Pelzed. S. C. /s/ William A. Allen, Jr. 
Signature 

D a t e : 1 9 July 19A5 Special Agent. S.I.C. 
(Rank and Organization) 

CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY: 

James P. Healev. Jr.. 1st Lt. JAGD 
JAMES P. HEALEY, JR., 1st Lt.,JAGD 
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C E R T I F I C A T E 

I, T . R . C . King, Major, Inf. (TD), Executive 

Officer, Legal Section, General Headauarters, 

Supreme Commander for the Allied Powers, do hereby 

certify that the attached mimeographed copy of the 

affidavit of JAMES E D W 励 STRAWHORN is a true and 

correct reproduction of the original affidavit; and 

that a signed and sworn copy of said affidavit is 

presently on file with this Section. 

/s/ T . R . C. King. 
T . H . C. King, 
M a o r , Inf. (TD) 

Witness: /s/ John R . Pritcherd 

Sworn to before me this 15th day 

of November 1946, Tokyo, Japan. 

/s/ John R . Pritchard 
Capt. Inf, 
Sumnary Court 
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MEMORANDUM TOs Prosecution Section (Report No, 

THRU; ^ Fxecutive Officer, Legal Section, Manila 

SUBJECT: Death march of prisoners of war from Cairp Keithley 
to Iligan, Lanao, Mind ana o, P. I ” 4 July 1942. 

ェェ• SUMMARY OF EVIDEITCE s 

The Filipino and American forces which surrendered to 
the Japanese in the Lanao area on 27 May 1942 v.'Gre conceiit.rated In 
Camp Keithley (Report No, 284) . On 4 Jr—ly 1942

;
 the prisoners were 

made to march from Carp Keithley to Iligsn, Lanao, a distance of 
about thirty-six kilometers, for the purpose of taking them from 
there to Ma la 7b a la Badidnon (R 1).Dv.r ing the raa r^-h, a prisoner 
who was sick ai,d unable to keep pace witn the rest, was shot:. No 
food or water was gi' en the prisoners. As a conseauGnce, one d i e d、 
from drinking dirty water which he tried to purify with iodine (R 2) 

GEI.IERAL IiE.':.DOTJ/iRTERS 
SIJPREL1E CO:服4NBSR FOR THE ALLIED POWERS 

LEGAL SECTION, MANILA. 

APO 500 
1? April 1946 

5
 

8
 

2
 

* 本 * 
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GENERAL HEADQUARTERS 
UNITED STATES AliMY FORCES, PACIFIC 

OFFICE OF THE THEATER JUDGE ADVOCATE 
WAR CHIMES BRANCH 

APO 
18 August AG O O O

0
5 (IB Aug 45) JA 

SUBJECT; Report of War Crimes Branch on Atrocities 

TO: The Judge Advocate General 
Washington 25, D

P
 C

e 

500 
194-5 

IV. StUg/fARY OF THE TF.STIMOIIY; 

1 August 1942. Barta, Bogue, and HeDole arrived 
at Puerto ？Fincesa, Philippine Islands (pp

e
 3，5，EXr B; p.. 6, 

Exo""U J 4WR B P e s u m a b l y , B a i c h u s , K o b l o s , N e i l ? e n , Pacheco and 
Smith arrived at the same time (par„ 10, p* 2, Ex, A) 
while Petry arrived sometime after 16 August 1943 (par

e
 25， 

p
c
 4, Exr A) „ All prisoners present"were Diit to ？/ork on an 

airfield (T5PC 2，ラ，8， Ex
e
 B) in the scorching sun, with 

inadequate food, water, clothing and the simplest of tools 
(pe 6，Ex，C)

P
 On 9 August 1942，six men, viz Buddy 

H e n d e r s o n , USMC p S T S h e y W r i g h t , 爾 C , D a v i e s , US‘’JC , B o b b y 
Hodges, USN, Elliot, USN and the sixth imknown, atterrited an 
escape, whereupon all prisoners wore t>laced on one-third 
rations for three days, enclosures reinforced, sontrios 
increased, and movements restricted^ (Par

P
 27, P , 4, Ex

r
 A5 

Po 5， E X o B； t)r 6 , EXr C) 
1丨丨 

Two prisoners sustained broken arms for picking a 
papaya from a tree within the compound, the punishment 
being inflicted by a cook named Nishitani (p， 6, Ex

r
 C)

r 

Staff Sergeant E l l i n ' s arm was broken beeinsc he refused 
to admit defeat and was forced to v.

T

ork v;ith his arm in a 
~sllnrWr7, Ex, C)c 

、-.‘ 

Another escape on 29 August 1942 by Joo Paul Little, 
USN, and Charlie Watkins, USN, resulted in a similar reduc-
tion of rations (p

e
 ラ，Ex. B; p

c
 7， E x , Cレ For possessing 

a small Dortion of corned beef and talking to a Filinino, 

;
s i x men, Jimmy Barna, USMC, Laidlaw, USN, Jack Taylor, USMC, 
Yoder, USN, Robert Brown, USMC, the sixth unknown, were tied 
to a coconut tree in the center of the conroound and wore 

I beaten with a small wire whip and a pole 3" or 4" in diameter 
I until loss of consciousness, whereupon they v?ere revived ^ith 
I water and the torture continued^ The six were then retmrned 
I to Manila (o

f
 7, Ex,. C ； p

c
 5，Ex

c
 B)

 c
 The^sxigoners fed no 

laccess to.„mGdical s u D D l i e s , one or two m e n "/ere b e a t e n every 
day "and an a^nendectomy v/as performed on

 T

icDole without 

【 ^ WTET： ノ •似…,-.>'.、•• 
In February, 194-3, Sergeant Swift, US^:C,, - Robert Pryor, 

MM lc, Private Sloat, MC, ！Lrny m d Hansen U.S. Army, 
escaped during the night and were missed the following 
morning, but a search resulted in the capture of Sloat and 
Hansen, who were placed in a Kerrroei (Jap Hilitary Police) 
dungeon

e
 It was later learned that Pryor was decapitatea in 
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northern Palawan and his head placed on exhibition
P
 (p。 7, 

Exc C)
r
 On 28 June 1943,

 p

f c
r
 Seldon T, White, USHC, 

and Wilson, USN, temporarily esciped but were recaptured 
on 4 July 194-3, and severely beaten before being turned 
over to the Japanese "iilitar：/' Police, who nut them on a 
truck which drove off

r
 They did not return, grid the 

Filipinos and Japanese stated that they v:ere shot (Dn
 P
 7, 

8， EXr C)
0 

One afternoon Charles Street vas missing frop muster 
and ten men were immediately locked in the brig ^nd. subjected 
to severe beatings

P
 Jack Ward was beaten with a section of 

an iron pipe
c
 Street had not tried to escape but hid lost 

his way back to camp and when he returned the prisoners 
were released from the brig and Street incarcerated and 
beaten (p

P
 2, Ex

c
 B)

0 

John Mc S t a n l e y , for no reason at a l l , w a s struck over 
the head with a pick handle, causing a gash three inches 
long (p

0
 3， Fou B). Men were required to work on the air-

strip during raids (p, 2， Ex
e
 B). 

In September 1943 Jim F l y n n , B o a t s w a i n M lc U S N , was 
accidentally killed by ilanding dive bonber, and he was 
denied a decent b u r i a l ( D . 8 , E x . C)» 

A rule was imposed providing for the exeeution of ten 
prisoners for each one that escaped (pD

c
 2， 8， Ex« B; p

r
 8， 

EXr C)
P 

Following raids by 17 B-24-‘s on 19 and 28 October 1944, 
the prisoners were ordered to build air-raid shelters 
consisting of three trenches, five feet deep, four feet 
wide, and of sufficient length to accomnodato ヲ0 nenr There 
was to be an overhead covering with only one entrance but 
due to American officers' continual suggestions, two entrances 
were permitted, ono at oach ond

c
 Some men had individual 

fox-holes in the small enclosures surrounded by double 
barbed-wire strands two meters high ind closoly interv;oven

P 

(Par
B
 3 0 , po 4， E x

e
 A; 1， 3 , 9， B; p

c
 3 x

r
 C )

P 

The Special Company shelter was near the fence in the rear of 
the compound, from which q passageway led into the one for 
"B" Company, about one reter away

f
 Tho third for the use of 

"A" ComDany was near the side fence of the compound (p, 3， 
Ex

P
 B; pp

0
 10，11,Ex- C)。 

After each raid the Japs seemed to take the attitude that 
the prisoners were the cause of the boribin^s and treatment 
became- worse (par

P
 29, p

r
 4, Ex. Aし The nunber of prisoners 

varied from time to time as new prisoners arrived and replace-
ments were sent to Manila^ However, on 14 December 194斗 there 
were 150 in prison (par

f
 29，Pc 4, Sx

P
 A; pp„ 1， 9 , Ex,. B)

P 

About 0200 14 December 1944 two Jap officers informed the rcen 
while in barracks that they were going to work early the next 
morningc So, they began at dawn but were called back it noon, 
which caused the Americans to sense something strange， There 
v/ere two air raids during lunch and extra guards were placed 
around the compound» During the early afternoon another air 
raid warning was sounded and the men were forced into their 
shelters (par

e
 29， P« 4, Ex

r
 A; p

c
 10, Ex

r
 C) and required 

to remain under cover, the Japs saying th^t there were hundreds 
of A m e r i c a n p l m e s aporoaching (p。 5， B; D p . 9， 1 1 , E x r し） 
When everyone was securely below the ground, between 50 ^nd 60 
Jap soldiers, armed with light irachine-guns, rifles, and 
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carrying buckets cぜ gasoline, attacked the unsuspecting, 
defenseless prison^

r s
 i

R
 the first shelter where there 

were approximately 40
 0
f "A" Company, Thejr first threw 

a lighted torch int‘
0
 the entrance and followed it with 

a bucket or two of gasoline (pnr
e
 29， Vr 4, A; n, 3， 

Exc. B) which exploded，setting everyone within on fire 
(PPo 5， 9, Exo B; p„ 1〇，Exo C), As screaming men ran 
from the shelter, they.

 v ; e r e
 .

m 0
wcd down by michinc guns 

and rifles (p^o 1， 6 , 9 Ex
r
 B: p . 1 0， Ex. C) while others, 

realizing they were trap,
p e
d, ran to the Jans and asked to 

be shot in the head, but tho Japs laughingly would shoot 
or bayonet them in the s t U

r a a c
h

f
 When the men cried out 

for another bullet to put t^
eiri o u

t of their misery the 
Japs continued to make merry left the men to suffer, 
twelve men being killed in this manner 5， 
Ex, A) c Captain Sato, commander .0ぶ the Jap garrison at 
the camp, walked over to C

P
 C‘ Smith,,. Signal 2c, USN, and 

split his head open with his saber (paへ 29 4, Sx
r
 A)r • 

The Japs started shooting everything in sight', poked guns 
into the foxholes and fired thoni,threw fi>

n
d grenades", 

while throughout Sato was laughing and shotrtn^ng, urging 
the men to greater effort (p^r

P
 29，P. 5, Ex

n
 „ iicn 

were thrown into holes while still alive ind coWeced with 
coconut husks (par® 31，Po 5, Sx<. A)

 c
 Some esc3pea->throm^ 

a hole in their dugout, while 30 or 40 others successV^ry 
tore barehanded through barbed wire fences and ran to tn.e 
water's edge (pnr

e
 29，p

c
 4’ A; TD

0
 9 ， B ; p , 1 0 , 

Exr C) o Those who attempted to swim the- bay were shot in 
the water from the shore or from a barge moving just off 
shore (par

6
 30, p

0
 4, Ex, A)

r
 Still others who sought 

refuge in crevices "/ere hunted down and dynamited 1， 
9 , Exr B; p

r
 1 0 , F;xo C) o Bogue located Bart a , P e t r y , 

Pacheco, and Martyn, and about 2100 hours they swam the bay 
to safety,. For five- days and nights, without food or water 
excopt rain, Bogue tramped through the jungle until rescued 
by Filipino prisoners at Iwahig ^enal. Colony where he met 
McDole, They were taken further south to Aborlan where 
Barta joined them, whereupon the three proceeded to BrooKfe's 
Point and were picked up 21 January 194-5 by

 a
 ？BY from 

Leyte (p„ 10, C) „ 

Neilscn reached the beach covercd himself with 
coconut husks for three hours

r
 He wis discovered but 

feigned death and was left by the Japs and crawled, into 
a cove, finding 15 Americans, eight of whoir wore sub-
sequently killed from a barge。 When a group of Japs 
approachcd. the cove Neilsen dived into the water, was 
struck in the leg, head, and ribs by bullets, but never-
theless kept on swimniing as the Jans continued shooting, 
wis washed seaward by a strong current， finally reached 
the other side of the five-iriie bay at 3s00 and 
remained in a mangrove swamp until noon the next day when 
he moved into a coconut grove v/here he was found by a 
Filipino who led hiri to Petry and ^acheco, and was later 
joined by Balchus (par

c
 3 1，〜 5， Ex

r
 AJc The litter had 

been hiding in the underbrush with Deal, while the Japs 
were firing at Neilseru They moved along the beach and 
picked up Williams and Daniels,. Balchus and Deal separated / 
from the others when an argument arose ns to the best plan ./ 
for an escape, and decidcd. to approach the ton of the / 
cliff, giving up the idea of swimning the bay is Deal h，-d,, 
a shoulder wound (par

0
 32， p„ 5， Sx

P
 Five J^ans hearj3

/ 

them and started to investigate； two of the Japs movedルrthor 
down the cliff but the three others cime directly t o y ^ d s the 
two menr It wis quite dark at this time and the Japs were 
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using torches
r
 As one of their came within a few feet 

of the twsa men, Balchus hit him on the head v/ith a big Diece of 
coral and they then jumped the other two^ These Japs 
were killed but reinforcements started moving towards the 
vicinity of the rov“ Balchus and Deal moved a short 
distance from each other and when some Japs got in 
between them, Deal ran over the cliff and Balchns ran 
down the beach, dived into the water and swam the bay

r 

Hearing gnnfire back on the beach he assumed that the 
Japs had killed Daniels and Wi.lliaras (r)ar- 32, tu 5, -

-.he Filipinos had the foiir .nen change to civilian 
clothing and took them to Brooke's Point, kicking up 
Sirith at the southern Penal Colony and Koblos at Aborlan^ 
They stayed at Brooke 's '

P

oint until 6 January 1945 when 
they were picked up by the "Catalina" (par- 33，p,ヲ，Ex

P
A)«. 

Barta with four others, including :)acheco,つetr:严 grid 
Bogue started to swirc the bay between 2000 and 2100r lie 
became unconsciov.s about half-way across and when he 
regained his senses he was floating out of the mouth of the 
bay but only about 5〇 yards fror the shore which he 
managed to reach about sunrise the next morning. After 
being in the jungle 10 days he reached the Philippine Penal 
Colony from which he was taken to Aborlan, where he met 
cDole and Bogue and all were then taken to Brooke' s 

Point (pp
P
 4 , 6，10， E x

r
 B; p p , 1 0， 1 1， 1 2， Ex« C ) , 

Bogue, after being in the jungle five days and nights 
was also rescued by the Filipino prisoners at Iwahig Penal 
C o l o n y (pc 1 0 , EXr B )

f 

ifcDole saw six Japs torturing one American with 
bayonets when another Jap joined the group with a bucket 
and toreし While the American screamed to be shot, the 
Japs poured burning gasoline on one foot, then on the 
other until he collapsed, whereupon they Doured gasoline 
over his body and ignited it (o

e
 6, F--x

r
 B)

 r 

McDole stayed with Hamrick, whom he found on the 
beach, until the latter died of gangrene on 18 December 
194.4 from a bullet wound in the arm

P
 Covering the body, 

McDole swan the bay to Iwahig Penal Colony shortly after 
dawn and in the late afternoon started out again but 
because of exhaustion had to remain on a fish trap all 
night, from which he was rescued by Iwahig prisoners 
gathering their fish, and he, with Bogue, was sent to 
Brooke's °oint on 7 January 1945， from whence the PBY 
nicked them up 21 January 194-5 tppr. 6 ， 7 ， B ; p

P
 12， 

Exc C)r Martyn swam the bay but did not contact the 
others (Dr 1 3 ， ム C) 

That night the Kojima Tai officers, in company with 
personnel from the Kempei Tai and the Obayashi Tai, held 
a celebration to commemorate the incident 2, S.x

r
 E) „ 

Following the landing by American Forces a t Puerto 
Princesa, Palawan, on 28 February 194-5 a search of the ^OW 
enclosure was made and identification tags, certain personal 
iteps, and fragrientary records concerning American Dersonnel 
were obtained (p

r
 1 , K x - D)

r 

Between the 15 and 23 of March 1 9 4 s e v e n t y - n i n e 
individual skeletons were burled by the 3rd Platoon, 
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601st QM Co,- (GR)
P
 Twenty-six of these skeletons were 

found Diled four and five high in one excavatioru Bullets 
had piercod the skulls and they had been crvshsd with 
blunt instrt-iasntsf. Nine dug oats were inspected and the 
supporting planks were charred near the oneningc indicating 
a flash fire of intense heat but of short duration, re-
sembling the resvlts of a gasoline fire

P 

The srrs.llGst nnmter of bodies were found in the 
largest dngou'c^- v.hich were closest to the cliff and 
furthest a\ibj from the prison buildings^ Most of the 
bodies were huddled together at a Diace ftirthsst away fron 
the entrance where twenty-aix bodies were taken fron one 
hole which was not a dugcvut。 In two dug cats (closest to 
the cliff) bodies wsra in prone positions, arms extended 
with small conical holes in the fin^ertiDs showing that 
these men were trying to c'ig their way to freedom, (reoc 1， 
2, Sx- 2 of Exc 



/ i / A 
For tho W-r Crines Offico 

Judge Advocr.to Goncral
1

 n Dopartr :nt 一一 Wたr DGpartncnt 

United Stoics cf iinorica 

长长并*长长 

In the natter of the failure ：-f tho *?orpotiiation of Tc3tinony 
Japanese to proviclo adequate nodical っf Charles Thona3 Brcjn, 
trcatnent and adequate nodical supplies Mrjor

9
 0-301313 

and fonri at T^.yabas, Luzon^ resulting 
in the death of unknown nunbors of 
Ancrican soldiers r 

Tr.kon at: 
Date: 
In the Presence ofs 

* * * * 并 * * 

District Intelligonco Offico, Czn ilntoni^, Texas . 
10 M-xy 1945. 
Special xlgont Jones C. Fit^gorc?-ld, Security and 
IntolligoncG Division, HoarlquartGrs Eighth Sorvicc 
Coir and, ASF. Llaxine B

#
 Stitt, Clcrk-Stcn^f?raph3r, 

District Intelligoncし Officc, Son Antonio, Texas 

questions bys Janes C. Fitzgorald, Special Agent, SIC. 

1 Stctc your nanc, rank， serial nunbor and porranont hニnc address. 

My 脈IG is Ch-XLGS Thongs Brown, Maj- r, M.C.,遍、つ0],’:1?
2 

ar-clross is 311-̂ " Bluobonnct Boulevard, San Lntcmio, Tcxc.s. 

- r 

Q Have you rucontly been roturnod to tho Uniterl States fron つvcrsuGS? 

‘‘ YGS,エ rcturnocl to Lcrbtcrmn General H spital, San Francisco, 
California, 16 Mnrch 1 % 5 . 

Q Wore y^u a prisoner of war? 

A Yes, a prisoner of the Japr.nose, 

Q At what placos v/ore you hold and stc.te tho approxinato clatos ？ 

“ I was capturorl on ,10 April 194-2^ at Mcirivolos :n I rcnc.iriGd 
on Bataan しit Ficlc

1

 Hつspit:二1K 1，until18 Juno 1942. On thr.t d.ate 
I was -ovocl tr Bilibid Pricnn in J/î n i lr\ nr.ハn 19 '丁un,; I v/cnt ni飞 vnrk 
detail to Tnyabas anr

1

 rcnainccT there until10 July 194-2. On this 
dnto I wns returned to Bilibid Prison an

r

\ roJ:ntecn^-t-hcrc until U 
February 19ム5，whon I v/as libcrrtcd by tho こncric2n F'^rcos • 

O Aro you a practicing physician? 

Yos, I an» 

Q Cutlino your nedicnl Gf^ucati^n こnd your prcvi 'us pr^ctico, 

A I cittondcd Baylor University, Schoolへ'f Mcdicine, ^t D?il::s, T o x a s , ， 
•and recoived ny M.D

#
 r'.ogroc in 1932. Upon graduation I bcg:ji ny z 

intarn3nip at Robert B . Grcon M3rori?.l Hospital San ^Int^nio, Toxan, ^ 
anr. reminod there for 。no yo^r. I bogan private practicc in 
nodicino in 1933, at S飞n It.rcos； Toxr^ • anfl after practicing for ono 
year there I v/ent on acti""j Juty しh〕じ，’(ニ A m y Mcclic^.1 Corps, 
.nud エ have roriainccl on r.coivc cluty r.s ハn ̂ fficor in the j\xlij Moclic:;l 
Corps sinco that tine, 

- 1 -
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Q Arc y^u fani丄i。r v/ith tho circunctcmccs surrounding the failure 
of the Jr.panosc tハ furnish proper nodical troatnent, supplies and fcod to 
^norican s ~ lclicrs on work rTotnilc at T

r

\ynbas, Luzon, -vhich resulted in 
tho clc、th of an unknown nunbor of Anoric^n soldiers

9 

A Yos,ェ an. 

Q Stcito yh-̂ .t you know of your or/n kncv/lGr
n

go citnut such fniluro つn the 
part of tho JapancsG

a 

“ On 19 Juno tho Japmose ordorod the Sen?.or nor'ic^l？fficcr at 
Bilibid Prison, Mr:'jiiL?ソ to furnish two r.o^ical ^fficor3 mC. four r.orTical 
cハ.rpsncn to go :n detail• I voluntocroc

1

 tc go ^n this rcquostocl detail
 # 

At th:t tine thirty dying ^jiioricans hoA been brought into the prison 
h m i t n l by the J。.p::nc、so anc

1

 uo r/cro t^lr
1

 thrvt へthci、men were c'ying，jy
3

 hcnco 
the nocossity for sending neclical porsonnol to the suffering prisoners へn 
the vnrk detail• On or cib.'ut the norning ’f 20 June, C^pt^in P'ul ^shton 
2nd four nodical detachr.iont corpsron^ v/hoso n.二riGS I do not now roc^ll, and 
I woro taken by truck to the province of Tr.yabas in southern Luz"-n to a 
point twenty kilonctors fr^n こ tovm callc^ C-ilauag. vifc arrivor

1

 there at 
night cjn̂ . found n a snail crock bo^. r.V ut three hundror'. ̂ e rican s-l-icrs, 
sailors anr

1

. marines in nost pitiful c r n こ s o r i o at the point 
death, throo alroacly ĉ eac

1

., onド tho living suffering fr^n nr2aria, ^ys^ntory 
anr

1

 nalnutrition. The Japanese furnished us nn -.odic^l supplies anc
1

. Crptr.in 
Asht，n hid '、nly a snail nodical fial^ pouch. This v;as all of the nc^icinc 
wq. h a r

1

. T h e Japanese then tolc
1

. us that no^ic-lne would cono lr.tor. Thoso__ 
tliroc hundred rion h。,, been hero f。r o.b ut throe weeks having boon pickccl 
g i raDTrion fr，n the survivors っf tho "Death I.lrirch

tt

 at Canp O'DonnoIl, All 
v7oro in pつっr physicnl conditi'n ;;hen they \iero "Dakon rr'n uanp。厂D’nnoll 
by truck. They noro ron^vod fr:-n T:,yabc?.s f。r tho purpose へf bu5-l^ing a 
r ̂ ad through mi alr?st inponotrablc jungle. V'hon v/o arrivec

1

.；/c v«rcrc 
t'’l亡 that thirty nen ha

r1

.？.lrop/'y îoc"
1

 fr'、.n ^yGontor：/, iic.lr.ria •？jiぺ uxp^suro, 
anr

1

 tho survivors \iqtq sleeping へn tho ground in the rocky crook boc
1

, 
drinking filthy 7/c.tor fron tho creek, cjicI living in tho open v/ith ut c v o r . 
These oon were fnrcGrl. to wnrk frへn daylight to dark. Men v/cro al^^st 
dear

1

 fron nal?.ri
n

- an^. dysentery 7/oro f,.rcor, to in tho sun 'Titheut 

clothing, covor or shoos, v/ith n ； 7 h o c l b a r r p i c k zn^. shrval
f
 lien were 

frequently beaten by gu?-rds for stopping t' relievo thur.sしIvos* Men tr., 
\7cc.k to v/ork ；zero bociton arr, prつ广\，.0ド.almg by J^po.noso gu' .r̂ .s

 r

7ith pick 
h^Ji'!los, bayonet scabbards, or m y ->thor objoct th•つy founc

1

 iround. When 
v/o arrived this had boon going on fnr three v/ccks. C?.ptr.in Asht^n, trho 
v/p.s in charge of our norTiccil detail, irr-o^litoly roquosto^. the J^p^iiGSC 
to allow tho noClczl clotciclinont a frco hanc' ctA askcrl th-t tho ^ying ncn 
bu allov/e^： to rest nnぺ？.skod fつr smplics. I •？.Isつ intcrccdGrl v/î oh the 
Japanese at vnri us tines boh°.lf of the 3ick. The foor

1

. at the time 
Df our arrival nirht bo c)nsi

r1

orod sufficient anr,. ha- boon for tho previous 
throe wocks, but r'uo to severe illness fr n nolcxxo. anc

1

 dysentery, ncn 
7/oro nn^blo t? cat, T、is fっo尸':jzs a st一ck pile nf capturc产 Jjnoricr.n fつ:^ 
consisting of v^.ri^us cariner' gcods. “ftcr the arrivalへf the mcr'ical 
dotachncnt tho food bogan to run out ojic

1

.nt tho onr
1

 tho detail survived :in 
rico alono. It v/as inp。ssiblc to prepare fつ-x

1

 ^uc ti tho lack of cooking 
facilities ？Jir

1

. nilた、rl was prcp^TGぺ in ^ne irへn yhcclbarro"：/ '/ith a fire 
セuilt unr'cr it. The death rate rnr iho nox^c znrco vjqokq ni'tor ny arrival 
vifis rr、n thrco tへ four mon a '，つ-；Those ncn v.

r

oro buricr' near tho carp 
site anr

n

 given a decent buri?.l
#
 In ？r^or tハ koop tho living cl:thocl thoy 

had tz strip .the rloac' of their cl^thcs. .".n accurcitc list ハf tho フ a s 

kept ニ 11 the v/hile by Captain Pnil “sht n nn: boon,ェ"boliovc, turned 
in to authorities at Lettormn Gcncril Hospital, Is tine 7/ont 。n rt tho 
canp. c^ncliti^ns beccino worse nnぐ;vith flics anc

n

 r/)squitocs it -/ニ3 in-
p^ssiblc tへ r^intain sanitary con^it"

1

"ns. Wo hc,r
n

 n。netting， rr> bee's, 
alth--ugh tho Jcip^noso guards har

1

 tonts or Nipc b-Trr.cks• On t\7"、• c。si ns, 
in the Inst ^f June, as I rcnoriber, the J^^nose ner.ical^ 'fficors inspected 
t' is v/ork ccinp but die"

1

 nothing t^ ancli"r.
r,

.tc conr.itx-ns,
 r

:lth ugh thoy 
prつniscd aic

1

.ェ广っ not ronenber tho officer allov/or!. us t^ seir，b^ck to 
the prison hospital at BilibirT^ thirty of tho ncn in the rost 3cri^us 
physical c^nrliti -n..'Iso cn or ntnut 1 July I belie ve the truck that took 
tho thirty ncn tD Bilibir'. brought the supplies bc.ck, "'g rccoivcr

1

 s^no 
nodiccil supplies fron the J SPINAS G V/hich consisted 'nly of : fev/ hundred quin 
inc tr.blcts air

n

 a snail an^unt of bandages, gauze ニnバ iodine, ニn', possibly a 
few other itong of no c- nscquoncc. Th^rc v/crc not enough no^icn.l supplies 
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so^t by the Japanese to take ccirc of ten men and there ttcls not over 
five pounds of supplies in all• Captain A s h t m ncAc dr.ily requests 

#
 for nodical supplies without succcss. Every effort was ncido on tho 
part of tho norlical dctachncnt to relieve cincliti ns つf the sick but 
without r.edical supplies little could bo acc ̂ nplishcc

1

. On 10 Juiy 194-2
5 

the Japanese mcdicai officor ag?an allov/od U3 sonc
1

 thirty r.on in 
tho nost sorious condition to Bilibid Prison^ エ acconpcinied theso ncn 
to Bilibid at tho order of Captain Ashtつ！^ cluc to the fact that エフ a s 
suffering from saverc bcri bori. Captain Asht^n anr

1

 the f.^ur corps non 
ronaincd at tho for about bvo or throe r/ooks l'njor an^. thon they 
wore brought in with tho survivors • エ clo not ronenber h^w nanj survived 

1

 out of tho original throe hunぺroこ men. During the pGrioc*. I wad thcro 

1 possibly fifty non died.エラつ not rcnonbor oxactly how n^.ny. Had WG boon 
f^arnishod v/ith morlical supplies air

1

 had v;o bocn able to improve living 
conditions, many of those ncn could have boon saved. In ny opinion, it v;r.s 
criminal to sond these ncn to Tayabas from O^np O'Donnoll as thoy hc.d not 
recoivod fir a the privati- ns of Bataan anc! almost -all r.f than har' ncAc the 
"Death March" fron B:;tacn.エ st.rbc unqualifiably thnt I hold the Jap-jiosc 
g^vornncnt responsible f^r thし rlccith of ovevj ；moriccm フhへ died tit x^his 
camp. WG called the attention of the Japanese tc the terrible c'nTitiつn3 
^aily anド told then that these non woulc

n

 rail die unless the Jr.D-ncsc '；/ould 
provide ncccssr.ry clothing，quarters, fco^. and nodical supplies. Up^n 
nrrivcil at Bilibir" Prison nony of tho survivors cliod ns a rosiJLt of their 
privations こ、.t Tajnbas • I cannot stato xvho the J:\panc3c wcro v/ho つpGrntcd 
this ca-ip, but I belieyo that Captain As h t m ̂  who is n?w

 n

t C^-r-na, 
C^ifornia, hzs infomation as to the ir'enxity of these J-panose. As 
I rccall, it \ic.3 tho general opinion that the troops in chorgc of this ^ork 
detail V/cro engineer troops from Osika^ but エ CANNC^ DO sure

 n

bout that. 

/s/ C h ^ l o g ^ h ^ n a ^ B m n 
Chr.rlos Thonas B r ^ n , M^j •, 
USA 

Str.te cf Texas 

County of Bexar 
) S S 

I，Charles Thorns Brown, of lawful cigc, being 
steto thへt エ hr-VG roicl the foregoing transcripti:n 
？222  answers contained thoroin arc truo to tho bost 
belief. 

cluly sv;-:rn っ n o?.th
; 

of ny interrogation and 
of ny knoT/loclgo cnc\ 

/s/ Ch:irloG Thonr.s Brov/n 
CharlcG Th つ；n。s Br つてm, Ma j ., US ム 

Subscribed .̂n:
1

 sフ。rn to boforo no this 12 _ clay of Bfey 194-5. 

M ^Q^^rf^ 
A

c
 C, I.bgford 

Captain, Inf. 
Sunr.こry C urt Officor 

C S R T I F I C Jx T S 

I，Jar.os C. Fitzgerald, Spcci
n

.l ,.g〇nt, Socurit:, Intolligoncc 
Division, Hoa^qu-irtors Eighth S or vie c d m 、 』 F , cortify that on 10 M?.y 
194.5, personally .ippocjod before r.o Charles Thorns Bro\m, Ifcjor, 0-301813, 
gavo the foregoing ansv/ors to tho sevorti丄 qucsti'ns sot forth; that after 
his tcstimny had. been transcribed, tho sai^： Charles Thrnns Brovm rcarl the 
sar.io arr! affixed his signature thereto in ny prosonce. 

/s/ J C . Fitzrror^lcl 
J.JvE2S C. FITZGERALD 

Place: San Antonio, Toxas 
D.rfco: May 12，1945 
CERTIFIED TRUE COrYs 
E. T. Eclrington 
WOJG, “US 

Spccial Agent, SIC 

U
C
S … v r

0
 Mciscihciru H O 狐 

Prosocuti311 Exhibit No. 322 
Rccoivod 15 Jr.nuc.ry 1946 
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lETIT^D STAT3S xJMY ？(HCSS, PACIFIC 
•.va CRIMES BlUi了CH 

19 ？e"braary 1946 

ifflMOHASDUM TO: Prnsecuticn Section (^oport iTo. 210) 

JruiU ： 2xecutire Officer, Crinos Branch. 

SUBJECT : Trarx0portB.tion of prisr nc^rs of war under improper condi-
tions from Davar' Ponal Cclor^', Mindanao

t
 F.I. to Manila, 

F.I. from June 6 to June 26,1944. 

II. SWiASI 0? ZVID?レC3: 

S'->mv̂ tine durin- tho first wo ok in Juno
 f
 1944 "bct^/oon 1,200 

and 1,:ス00 •vn’ricarL prisoners of war were transported "by truck fron tho 
Davao renal Cblony to Davao City. Tho men v/ero tied tcgethar "by rope 
^r m n i tiiwir waists and crowded into trucks. Thoy v;ere "blindfolded and 
required to keep thoir hp.nds in Yic\»；. Many cf the sick prisoners and 
even -̂ jriputeGs on crutches were required to stand durin ‘ tho 25-mile-trip. 
If it th： .u

f
-?:ht that any of the non v/ero peekinr.r, they were struck with 

clu"bs or rifle "butts "by tho ds. Maz^y were suffering: from "bori—"beri 

durin,:; the rcu^h trip thoir flosh Was rulDbod raw against the sidos of 
tho trucks. Some men faintod pind v/ero hold iro onl^

r

 "by the rope, tying 
the prisoners together, and this in turn, cut off tho circulatic.n of 
tlood of the p r i s m r s near "by. (2 1 , 6 , 1 1 , 1 7 , 26, 27, 30, 37, 44). 
'hon they arrived in the port at Davao, the mnn v/era loaded into two 
れに-id̂  jjf » a m o i 1 , j i i ^ t d 1 +セ ship that had not "been cleaned, sinco 
aazryla^ -a., xar^c) of一c。.alし The s H p ist^dd ̂  tho Haarftoy a t'em and 
then sailed with a COIXTOV. The M O R O seriously ill were in one hold whare 
tharo v/as room for them to lie down in a crov/d.od condition. Tho ship 
traveled close to th^ sh、re during tjie ani cnahorod at night• The 
^riaont^ra were allowed « free run of the ship until they woro near Zam-
Do^n,：：?. -;rhoTc a Lt. Colnnel Oolon PL••ふ&ニ3 pjid a Lt. ‘ TLTS esca-DOd 'over t h e ~ 
si do tlio ship’ _' r the roraainii:,: Î .ys of tho trip tho prisoners v/oro.… 
rocjuirod t'. stâ .- in the hold^. Thar^ ^as not onoudi room for thoci to lie 
iown and it was nocess^ry for thoin to sleep in shifts. The onlごlatrine 
faclliiii35- m^tq. su. iaw .cans tĥ at vere lr wored into tho hold, AS 

naiu.
r

 if the men were suffering from dys^ntsry ？mA diarriioa they often 
ware forcod to relievo them so Ires "beforo those latrine cans "becamo avail-
able. The hatches v/e re kept nlno st conpletelv covered. The men xiorex 
had enough imtor to drink and vrhnt was provided was not coraplotoly dis-
tilled. The tomporature cf the hold was estimated at 120 to_ 135 degrooB^ 
Paliroiuioit and m a ^ suffered from heat prostration. Tho food consisted 
of small amount of rice ?md thin scup. Sciae of the soup had "been ma.do 
from spoilod meat which pro"batl

e
y a^.7ra,vated tha sickGned condition of tho 

non. .-iftor the escape cf the two officers, the rations wore decreased so 
that it was estimtod that the -imoricans rocoived a'oout one-sixth of the 
amount recoived "by the Japanese (H 2, 7 , 1 1， 1 2 , 1 3 , 1 7 , 20, 23, 27, 30, 
33, 37, 45, 46, 47, 5 1 , 5 4 ) . 

around 12 or 14 Juna 194̂：-, tho ship arrived at Ce"bu v/here 
tlae men v/ere all put ashore. Many of tliem had to "be carried "because of 
tb.oir weakened condition. The soricusly ill wore crovricd into ？, tarrackc 
ani tho others were put into a small open area insido an Id Spanish fort 
"bolievod to have "beon called ？ort Spx. Pedro. It rained part of the. time 
and tho prisoners v/ero てi ，6n no sheltor either da：-

7

" 
no latrino facilities ani the moil had to desi.-mate 
open ground (2. 2 , 1 3 , 27, i7, 54). 

减 : _
 k

 [
1 

or niミ]rU There were 
latrine areas on the 
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After two or three days at Calm, the "orisoners were loaded 
into the holds of another larger unmarkad. former coal tofp. it was m -

— 1 Sated wfth rats aad m i c e ~ T h o u功 tJaie ship was larger, they were crowded 
worse than before, Tho physical condition of the ncn was worse as they 
were weak ani sick from malnutrition. Some of the noil were unable to 
stand, their nerves wore shattered and their rations wore so smal丄 that 
fist-fights occurred over a spoonful of rice. The men were not allowed 
oil deck. The sanitary facilities asRin consisted of 5—gallon cans and 
"ba^auso of iiincbds macy of tho ^an wore unable tc control thoir "bowels, 
The voatilation, food and fsanitaiy coaditinna on thi* «hip were in gen-
eral the sane as on tho prcviouB ship* Howevor, some medical supplies 
were finally ^ivan tc American aadical offico-rs. About 24 June 1944, 
they arrived in Manila Ba;、 On 26 June 19が-,Lt. Vfilliam 1DEH of 
Minneapolis, Minnesota, died. This is_the only death recorded during 
the voyage. The men disembarked s,t Pier 7. The litter patients were 
t^lcen V truck to Old Bilibid Prison in Manila, while the others were 
coif^elled to walk through ths streets to Bilibid (3- 3,. 7 , 1 4 , 1 7 , 20, 
27, 30, 37, 54, 55). Later, most of the men were sent to the Cabaiiatuan 
Prison Camp. Bilitid and Cabanatuan are the subjects of separate reports. 



" U リ ぐ 
C H

5 

•」デV 

M ^ f ,バ/ 一ひ-. .レ ^ ^ ブ . ^ ^ ー 、 

7ノグ 

•‘ .• • • 一 

ベ、 
x 

如メレ 



DOCUMENT 2742 

C E R T I F I C A T E 

I, T . H. C. King, Major, Inf. (TD)^ Executive 

Officer, Legal Section, General Headquarters, Supreme 

Commander for the Allied Powers, do hereby certify 

that the attached photostat?—c copy of the affidavit 

of MAJOR CIIAELES THOMAS BROWN is a true and correct 

reproduction of the original affidavit; and that a signed 

and sworn copy of said affidavit is presently on file with 

this Section. 

/s/ T ^ R . C. King 
T . R . C . King, 
Major, Inf. (TD) 

Witness: /s/ John R . Pritchg.rd 

Sworn to before me this 14th day of 

November 1946, Tokyo, Japan. 

/s/ John R . Pritchard 
C?pt. Inf. 
Summary Court 
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GENERAL HS-'iDCT
T

ART3RS 
rNIT3D STATES A W T FORCES, PACIFIC 

OFFICE OF THE .'.HEATER JUDGE ADVOCATE 
WAR CRIFES ERAFCH 

MS''OHA!
J

Dr?i TO: 

THRU: 

STTBJECT: 

APO 500 
IP October 1945 

Prosecution Section (Report 杀76) 

Executive Officer,
 w

a r Crimes Branch 

Crires Against A"
;

lied Prisoners of Wr.r 
2t Bilibid Prison, Ifanila, Luzon, P.I., 
from May 1942 to February 1945. 

11 • ST^U'^ARY OF EVID5NCS: • 

A detailed summary of the evidence cortained in the 
attached fifty-thrse sworn staterrents of witnesses and forty-
six unsworn staterents or rremorandums would serve no vseful 
purpose. Suffice it to say that these statements contain 
ample evidence to orove that froir Fay 1942 until its fall 
to American forces in February 1945, the conditions at 
Old Bilibid °rison, Manila, , w^re atrocious. 

a. The cells wore erossly over-crowded and sanitation 
facilities were non-existert or extremely crude (Exhibits 
1 - 1 1 ) . T h e regular diet consisted of a maximum of seマen 
hundred to eight bvndred calories ！5 day end during the 
worst periods, the prisoners r e c e i v d only two iresls a day 
consisting of one-half and throe-fourths of a canteen cup 
of rice respectively (R 15-21). 

b. The little food actually issued to the ^risonars was 
often contaminated, re-suiting in roany cases of dvsentery and 
diarrhea. Beri-beri was also prevalent (R 11-14). On one 
occasion eight persons died froir dysentery, no hospitalization 
having been provided (R 24). 

c. American prisoners of war frequently resorted to 
eating garbage from the scrap cans and pig troughs. Captain 
NOGI, Mcdicai Director, was sp">arently responsible for these 
conditions (R 2 , 1 1 3 - 1 1 5 ) . 

d. Ar-erican prisoners were beaten with sticks and 
baseball bats, often to insersitility. P.. Major R . E . 
PRi.GER, 26th Cavalry, wr.s hanged bv the ^rists for sixty 
hours and a M?.jor Thorras S. J0F5S of the ssme unit for 
eighteen hours in Scp'-erber ard October 1943 (R 89， 90 ) . 
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 About three thousand prisoners sleut on concrete 

floors without bedding nr mosqritoinets. There were throe 
showers for their uso (R 36)• 

g. In 1942 a p-isoner escapnd from Old Bilibid. Fifteen 
hundred prisoners N^re placed o.i a diet of straight rice 
for three months cs punishment 〔H 141-143). 

h. On 11 or l'> Octobe：' 1944 twelve hrndred prisoners 
were evacuated from Bilibid Prison to the dock area in 
Manila Bay which was then svbjoc.tod to r.n Allied borrbing 
raid (R 129-131) 

i. On about 19 June 1942, Jnpanase arrry personnel at 
Old Bilibid Prison confiscated all quinine and medical sup-
plies brought bj prisoners of v/ar from the hospital at 
"Littl- Bag-uio" (R 15，16). 

i. Confiscated Red Cross supplies originally destined 
for Allied prisoners of war were stored in General YAMASHITA 
Headquarters in Manila. The nvmber of these bo?es was esti-
mated to be more than ？. thousand (R 151-152). 

The above mentioned incidents are merely representative 
exairples of th^ uniformly brutal treatiDent accordod to 
prisoners of war at Old Bilibid by the Japanese. 



DCCUlf^T 2795 

GSiffiEAL H3ADQJJA聽RS * 

UITITKD STATES .励iY 皿 C ®ち PACIFIC 

OJFICE OS
1

 THL T U T E H •JUDO..: ADVOCATE 
T.AH CHIM:SS SEAHCK 

APO 500 
12 Kovember 1945 

KÊ 0EA1、0)UM TO: Prosecution Section (Report Ho. 99) 

THKu ： Executive Officer, ¥ar Crimes Branch 

SUBJECT : Catanatuan (Tanaka Phase) Seiotemper 1942 to May 1S43, 

II. _IMABY_OF EVIDEI:;C2: 

There is no evidence in the record to the effect that General 
TA1UXA was in. supreme command in the Philippine Islands during the period 
covered "by this report. However, the Prosecution Section advises that the 
fつllovring four Japanese generals were supreme commanders in the Philippine 
Islands for the periods set out opposite their namesS 

General HOMMA May 1942 to August 1942 

Oeneral T 血!CA 

. • 
September 1942 to Kay 194S 

Generral IOJEODA June 1943 to October 1944 

General TAI^.SHITA October 1944 堠o the end of the war* 

For the purpose of convenience the report of investigation cov-
ering Cabanatuan Prison Camps has "been divided into four parts; each one 
covering the respective period during which one of the above generals was 
in command in the Philippine Islands. This report covers only the period 
of September 1942 to May 1943 (The Taiiaica Phase)• 

It would serve no useful purpose to summarize every oftense 
committed by the Japanese during the period of this report. "but the follow-
ing are typical examples ani give a complete picture of coniiticns at 
Cabanatuan Prison Camps: 

Living conditions ドere poor, and sanitary facilities inad-
equate • The roofs were wooden frames covered with nipa grass with a strip 
of tin along； the peak. Storms tlev holes in the roof and the H p a rotted, 
"fcut no supplies were provided for making repairs. Seven men were crowded 
into compartments 7 x 10 feet, in which they slept on tiers of "bamtoo plat-
forms, some without any "blanket• ITo clothing vas provided, and any extra 
clothes the prisoners had were taken away "by the Japanese (R 27) • 

The latrines consisted of slit trenches not more than twen-
ty or thirty feet from the "buildings. Allies evrarmed around these latrines 
and into the living quarters and mess hall as there vere no screens what-
soever (E 27). 

i v .ed . i ca l s u p p l i e s w e r e l a c k i n g e n t i r e l y o r p r o v i d e d i n s u c n 
small fjnounts as to "be of no value. There was enough quinine to treat only 
a*bout ten per cent of t>e patients needing it. Supplies of antiseptics 
were inadequate and there were very little sulpha drugs ( E l , 7 9 ) • While 
t^e prisoner hospital patients vrere forced to sleep on shelves of "bam'boo 
p o l e s , t h e J a p a n e s e h o s p i t a l p a t i e n t * h a d hospital "beds with i n n e r s p r i n g 
mattresnes, linen, "blankets, and mocquito tare (E 179, 18C).てVhile p r i s o n 
era were drying "because of lack of medicine (R 134, 140, 17©,171)

f
 the Jap-

anese refused to release adqquate supplies of adrenalin, although there T-ras 
sufficient to meet "both

f
 their needs, and those of the prisoners• Medical 

supplies from the S-ripsholni were unloaded by prisorers and. taken to the 
Japanese warehouse where large cup-plies of aspirin, sulpha drugo., organic 
iodine, emetine, "bandages, cotton, and adhesive tape were seen "by the pris-
oners. Bu.t despite this vast supply, the Japanese refused to release ad-
equate amounts for the treatment of the prisoners, (A 180). 
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Though the prisoners were so weakened 'by malnutrition and 
inadequate medical trep-tment that they were physically unable to perform 
ordinary lator, thej were forced to do heavy work and "beaten if they col-
lapsed (E 38,152). 

Prisoners of war were forced to work on military installa-
tions such ae=» "building runways and digging foxholes (E 83, 84) * 

The prisoners were also forced to submit to medical exper-
iments at the hands of Dr. HO^I (E 184). 

In Novem"ber 1942 American prisoners of v;ar were loaded into 
steel freight cars, one ̂ hundred and fifty 17- a ear, at Capas, Tar lac, and 
transported to Ca"banatuan Prison Campe. The cars were so crowded that the 
men could not sleep or lie down; the only they could rest was for half 
of the car to kneel, at a time. The men were kept in the cars in this way 
during the entire trip which lasted fifteen hours. No latrine facilities 
whatever vere provided (E 175,176)• 

In order to prevent attempted escape "by the prisoners, the 
Ja-oanese forced them to sign pledges not to escape (E 108). • The squad 
system of punishment was employed (H 1 7 , 1 8 , 21,108, 128). Under this sys-
tem the prisoners were divided into squads of ten. The Japax'esち—aruiつunced 
that if any prisoner escaped and was not a-pprehended, the remaining men in J 

I his squad would "be executed. If he were apprehended, he would "be executed 

TJXiMr： — 

There were innuinera'ble "beatings and tortures for minor mis-
takes or infractions of the rules (E 25, 4 1 , 6 9

f
 76)• A prisoner r̂ho join-

ed. the wrong group at the noon "bell was slapped on the face with a "bamtoo 
stick ancL'^Tien twenty-six American prisoners were forced to pass "by the 

I prisoiier and slap him in the face^ Many of the "blows were not sufficient-
r l y Hard to satisfy the Japanese ^.uard vho was supervising the procedure, 
I and he required the slapping to "be repeated after first having demonstrated 
| how it should "be done (H 44). At other times the prisoners were paired off 
\ and f orced to slap each other (E 15, 30, 33)• 

At least four prisoners cf war vere executed for attempted 
escape (S 4, 5 , 1 1 9 , 155). Lt. Colonel E.S.C. PiaHTLi'SG, Lt, Colonel BI&OS 
and Lt. GILBERT had attempted to escape. ̂  A Japanese who was jiu ^itsu ex— 

yjpert threw the prisoners into the air and cn to the ground, Kicked them, 
"beat then with a clu'b, and otherwise "bcidly mistreated them for aji hour and 
a half. A Japanese Lt. also "beat these men wi th. his hands» an iron pipQ.

r 

and an encased sab^j^ After the "beating, Lt. Colonel BEEITU^^had. one eye 
^^n^ing out on his cheek, one ear >ras almost t-'rn off^ his jaw was "broken 
in several places, arxd his arms and legs appeared useless* Fつllovring the 
"beating these officers were tied to fence -costs along the road, and left 
there overnight during a typhoon. All Filipinos and Japanese vrho passed 
"by were requirea to "beat them. The next morning the "three prisoners were 
talcen away in a truck with an execution squad of eight Japanese suldiers 
and four Japanese equipped with picks and shovels( Shortlv thereafter 
shots were heard and the Jaioanese later returned vrithout the prisoners. 
The Japanese Lieutenant "boasted that he load "beheaded Lt» Colonel BIOG-S and 
>ad the other two shot (H 5). The Commanding Officer at the cacip issued a 
certificate of execution of the three men (E 4, 5,117). 

Al so three Filipino prisoners of var were "beheaded for alleg-
ed attempted escape (E 149)

#
 Many other prisoners were executed on the 

charge of attempted escape, although there was no evidence of any such at-
tempt (R 102, 104, 106, 107, 122, 152, 153). Filipinos threw food to the 
prisoners, and.when, on.e of the Americans reached over to ^et the foo4, he 
an:, three others vdth whom he shared it were shot (li 102). ？our other 
prisoners, accused of attempting to escape

f
 were led through the camp with 

their hands tied "behind their "back. Ihe rest of the prisoners were called 
out to witness the execution. The four prisoners >rere made to knee丄 at tke 
edge of a trench and the Japanese shot t•-•em and "buried them in the French 
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(H 106, 1G7). Ab a farther deterrent to escape, the "beaten and matilated 
bodies of those who had attempted to escape were placed on display. The 
"body of one of these prisoners showed severe "beating and torture. There 
were compound fractures of his left arm and leg, a "bullet hole in his chest, 
arid one eye had "been gouged out. The "body vras territly mangled and had a 
horrible "bayonet vround extending from the left thigh up into the solar plexas, 
JThe ri'bs were "broken and the fac^ was mashed ii?., apparently "by rifle "butts 
(K 119rl55), 

Daring the period covered "by this report one thousanA and 
sixty-six prisoner© of war died (H 87)• 

A tovm near Cabanatuan Prison Camp was raided and "burned "by 
the Japanese who returned exhibiting heads of Filipinos stuck on the ends 
of iDaiî oっ poles (H 161, 164, 166, 167), 
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G5NERAJ, IIF-iDQUARTERS 
UNITED STATES FORCES, PACIFIC 

WAR CEiIES B R A N C H 

M E M O M N D U M TO 丨 

THRU: 

SUBJECT: 

18 February 1946 

Prosecution Section (Report No. 207) 

Executive Officer, War Crimes Branch 

Deaths of thirty-seven American prisoners of war 
at Gapan， Nueva Ecija Province, Luzon, P.I., in 
May and June 1942. 

* * * 

II. SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE: 

In May 丄 9 4 2 , about two hundred American prisoners of 
war were brought to Gapan and stayed for a period of approximately 
two m o n t h s . During this t i m e , tLirty-seven of them died and w e r e 
buried in the cemetery of Gapan (R 4, 6)。 The Americans were 
sickly when they arrived (R 丄 9 ? 20)， and continued to suffer from 
dysentery, diarrhea, malaria, beri-beri and malnutrition (R 5» 9? 
lb, 20). The Japanese became alarmed at the high death rate and 
called in a Filipino doctor. The Japanese told the doctor not to 
use medicine that was useful tc the army or civilians. However, 
he treated them with medicine of his own. The Americans began to 
improve and he was prevented from giving further aid (R 5， 6;. 
The prisoners were poorly clothed, most of them only having an 
undershirt, drawers， and sometimes overalls (R 9，13). They 
were underfed, part of the time receiving "kangkong" leaves, pig-
skin, squash, a little dried fish, and an insufficient amount of 
rice (R 9，1さ，17， 20). The natives were prevented from aiding 
the prisoners and were punished when caught giving them food or 
cigarettes (R 1 0 , 1 4 , 1 7 ? 2 1 ) . T h e evidence shows that the Japanese 
had eggs and meat to eat and gave the Americans only what was left 
(R 2 0 ) . 

Some of the prisoners worked at the Japanese garrison 
and were mistreated if they rested or askod for more food (R 8, 9) 
Others worked at the Gapan Bridge at duties difficult to perform 
because of their p'nycical condition (R 9) . For cy or fifty men a 
day hauled g r a v e l , stone and sand in sacks for road, and bridge 
repair (R 1 4 , 1 6 )。 Some of them were required to dig canals 
(R 13). The prisoners were whipped, slapped and kicked when they 
”'ere unable to do the work required (R 1 3 , 1 4 ) . All of the 
witnesses agree that the work required was too strenuous for men 
in their condition (R 9， 1 4 , 1 6 ) . The Japanese even refused to 
allow a priest to v i s i t the dying urisoners (R I 5 ) . 
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MEMORANDUM to: 

THRU: 

SUBJECT: 

GENERAL HEADQUARTERS 
UNITED STATES ARM.Y FORGES, PACIFIC 

OFFICE OF THE THEATER JUDGE ADVOCATE 
WAR CRIMES BRANCH 

APO 500 
16 October 1945 

Prosecution Section (Report #72) 

Executive Officer, War Crimes 

/o 

し 

Murder of two American PW’s a V C e b u C i t y , 

* * * . .、,:4、 

II. SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE： ^ J j ^ Q 

On 21 March 1945? American planes bombed the vicinity of Cebu 
City, P.I., and an American flyer by the name of Paul MANSELLA para-
chuted into the water from a damaged American plane (R 1 , 4 ) . The 
American was burned on both arms and legs, and either walked or was 
carried to the Summer House of the Sisters of The Immaculate Concep-
cion, about five and one-half kilometers north of Cebu City. He was 
given first aid by one of the Sisters and a short time later a Jap-
anese memhgr of the Kempei Tai, accompanied by a Filipino undercover 
agent, appearea at tftelRbuse and took him away, with his hands tied 
behind his back (R 2) March and 25 March,194ヲ，the 
Japanese Kempei Tai at Cebu City captured another /imerican flyer by 
the name of SCOTT. Although it.is not clear from the evidence, it 
is probable he was a member of the same plane crew as MANSELLA (H 6， 
9). Both men were confined at the 笮bu Normal School and on the 
；morning of 2 6 March 1945 were taken to a point approximately one 
i^ndrea and fifty (150) feet directly East of tliS Southeast corner 
of the school building, where a foxhole had been dug (R 9，10, i5> 
17). They were forced to kneel by the edge of the foxhole with 
heads bent forward while a Japanese sergeant took a saber in both 
hands, and struck each of them across the back of the neck. The 
Americans fell forward into the foxhole and a Japanese officer 
stepped up and fired a number of shots into their bodies (R 10,15， 
17， 24). 

On the same morning,and shortly prior to the execution of the 
Americans, five (5) Filipino civilians were killed by the same 
Japanese, in the same method, and their bodies left in a foxhole on 
the Normal School grounds, a short distance from where the Americans 
were executed (R 2 2 ？ 1 3 ？ 1 7 ？ 1 9 ) . 

Ground noon on 27 March the Japanese piled wood on top of the 
bodies of the Americans in the foxhole, poured gasoline on the wood, 
and lighted it (R 18). Between the time of the execution and the 
burning of the bodies it appears that one of the Americans managed 
to crawl out of the foxhole and was seen sitting on the ground 
attempting to wave to an American plane overhead； but he was thrown 
back into the foxhole, either dead or alive, before the fire was 
started (R 17,18，19). 

On the morning of 2 8 March, 1945, when American forces arrived 
in Cebu City, an officer and two enlisted men of the 110th Quarter-
master Company, Graves Registration Platoon, found three open fox-
holes with dead bodies in them on the grounds of the Cebu N c m l 
School. One of the foxholes contained the bodies of two Filipinos 
and another the bodies of three more Filipinos. All five cf these 
bodies had their hands tied behind their backs. The bodies were not 
mutilated or covered, and although no examination was made to deter-
mine the cause of death or the nature of the wounds, it was observed 
that each of them had numerous stab wounds, apparently made by-
bayonets or sabers (R 26;. In the third foxhole, located approxi-
mately one hundred (ICO) feet northeast of the other two holes, the 
cbarred bodies of two men v/ere fo\ind. The lower body was lying face 
upward with the upper body directly—on top of it and lying face 
downward. The hands of both corpses were tied behind their backs 
with ropes. Fire had consumed most of the clothing on the upper 

- 1 
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body, and only a fev/ s 1 1 shreds of wh*31 appeared to be undehwear 
remained; clctiiing on "ohe lower body had not been entirely con-
sumed by the fire and it vhs ascor-cnined that it had been dressed 
in a pair of regulation army issue idiaki trousers worn underheath 
blue fatigue tr-oasers similar to those issued by the navy (R 28, 
29). The bodies were examined for items of identification btit 
the only thing fcund was a metal belt buckle in the ashes at the 
bottom of tho fc-xnole (R 29) . Cn the face of this belt buckle 
appears the enble^i of a suread eagle and the figures _1942 (Exhi-
bit D). Pictures v/ere caKen oモ‘て]le t.wo Dodies 、iixnibits E, F , G) 
and they were then buried as unidentified dead (R 29， 30). 
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ALLIED TRi'.NSL/.TOK AND INTEKPEETEK SECTION 
SOUTH WEST PACIFIC AREA 

RESEARCH REPORT 

No. 65 (Suppl N o . 1 ) 

Other Techniques 

29 Mar 45 

(X) Extracts fron a captured booklet entitled 
Japanese Instructors ̂ ^m-H^-^-Ifiterrog-ate^. was 

• ^ Ln E?ily intelligence Extracts
?
 Feaaquarters 

10 Air F o r c e , 1 3 i-ugust. It is interesting as 
representing an official view. Its application by 
individual connanders is quite another natter, 

(2) Measures to be nornally adopted. 一 "Torture 
ベCOMON) (enbraces beating, kicking, and ？.11 conduct 
involving physical suffering)• It is the nost clunsy 
method r.nd only to be used when all else fails• 
(Specially narked in text)• W^en violent tcrture 
is used change interrogstion officers sncl it is bene-
ficial if one new officer questions in a syiipethetic 
fashion. 

"Threats. As a M n t of physical discomforts to 
cone, e.g. nurder; torture5 starving; deprivation of 
sleep; solitary confinement; etc. Mental discomforts 
to cone, e.g. will not receive srine treatnent as other 
prisoners of war; in event of exchange of prisoners 
"be will be kept till lest; he will "be forbidden to send 
letters; will be forbidden to inform his hone he is 
prisoner of vrer, etc« 

Original file in 51-0-6 

CONFIDLNTIAL 
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I J e w ell A ._Ble nkeiisii^ s t_L t, _0 I C _ M I _ F i l cs 

hereby certify tYp.t tT->e attached Internstionr.l Prosecution 

Section Docunent K o . 552 is a true p.nd accurate copy of an 

extract from ATIS Research Report No* 6? (Supplenent W o . X); 

Instructions for Interrogation, 

I further certify that the attached document is a 

translation nade by ? competent transistor fron c capturcd 

Japanese document, the originrl of w M c h was forwarded to 

the We.sMngton Docunent Ccr.ter, Wssトington, D. C , 

/s/ Jewell A . B l a n k e n s M p 
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REPRODUCTION OF PERTTNEFJ
1

 IARTS OF CArTUP^L u v U i . T O 

EXHIBIT F 

DOCUMENT NO. 

/•.UTHOR OR OWNER 

UNIT 

'CAPTURED AT 

DATE OF CAPTURE 

RECEIVED ん T I S AE 

RECEIVED /ITIS, SV/PA. 

TRANSLATED BY 

TRANSLATION CHECKED BY 

PHOTOGRAPHED ON 

も
 

1417立 

Unknown. 

Enginc^ar Unit attached to 222 
Infantry Re^t „ 

鲍 じ . H C S P — 

26 j v l v 

T/^ NAGANO, Charles H.. L\JS 

1st Lt Tsuneo G“ AUS 

25 April 1945 

/s/ Sidney F . Mashbir 
Sidney F. Mashbir 
Colonel, S.C. 
Co-Ordinator 

N o . 

No. 6 , 

Search for snd d:' sposal of mines in areas adjoining enemy 
lands reauire a unified post under a high-ranking 
comm-nder, esptoiaily when attacking the areas mentioned 
above。 

The senior commanders shall, if necessary, post the 
requisite number of engineers in each column body of 
forward troops, etc. and make each unit search for and 
dispose of the mines itself. • 

A.11 necessary controls as to time, method and area of 
searching for and disposing of mines will be exercised in 
order to keep our plans secret, if circumstances reauire 
it. 

Advance troops and scouting troops shall be given 
sufficient men and materials for the searching and 
disposal of mines. 

kn advan«e party may be specially sent on ahead, if 
circumstances require it, to deal with mines. 

No. 7. All unit (c®lumn) commanders will as far as possible 
avoid areas likely to contain mines and advance through 
areas where it is difficult to lay mines. A-t the same 
time, he will make the engineers and infantry working 



D o c . No. 2707-F Page 2 

troops responsible for clearing the mines in their way. 
In such cases it would be well to send on ahead a unit 
commanded, by an officer or a mine disposal unit (patrol 

, , I t would be advantageous if prisoners of war, natives 
or animals could be sent ahead as a preca"ution?.ry 
measure, along the route of advance. 

No* 8. Even when there is a unit ahead responsible for dealing 
. w i t h mines5 it will still be essential for each unit 

advancing from the rear to search and clear mines for 
themselves as far as possible. This is especially 
necessary in places easy of approach, strong points, 
and places suitable for headquarters. 


